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4.75 BBB- Baa3 - 124,171 122,355 0.06
04/27/21

C0GO
4.875 BBB— Baa2 BBB 11,064 10,891 0.005
06/01/21

HRINTH
3.25 BBB+ - A 27,575 27,313 0.01
06/03/21

CHINAM
Float BBB+ Baal - 39,445 38,652 0.02
07/16/21

CHALHK
4.875 - - A- 18,537 18,261 0.01
09/07/21

HRINTH
3.625 BBB+ - A 63,401 63,352 0.03
11/22/21

BCLMHK 4

01/22/22 A- - A 12,530 12,519 0.01

CHIMAO
3.6 BBB— Baa3 BBB— 92,931 91,309 0.04
03/03/22

SINOCE
5.25 - Baa3 BBB-— 39,016 37,964 0.02
04/30/22

CICCHK
3.375 BBB - BBB+ 47,067 47,569 0.02
05/03/22

CICCHK
Float BBB - BBB+ 80,349 77,599 0.04
05/03/22

CATIC 3.5

05/31/22 - Baal A- 47,082 47,254 0.02

LNGFOR
3.875 - - BBB 59,229 57,664 0.03
07/13/22

HAOHUA
3.5 BBB - A- 94,314 95,015 0.05
07/19/22

CIIANT
3.375 - - A+ 156,185 157,359 0.08
07/25/22

CHIOLI
3.95 BBB+ Baal - 24,048 24,152 0.01
11/15/22

YUEXIU
4.5 - Baa3 BBB- 47,297 46,648 0.02
01/24/23
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POLYRE
3.95 BBB- Baa3 BBB+ 266,371 268,490 0.13
02/05/23

HAOHUA
4.625 BBB - A- 65,204 65,575 0.03
03/14/23

VNKRLE
4.15 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 80,310 81,041 0.04
04/18/23

VNKRLE
Float BBB Baa2 BBB+ 7,853 7,569 0.004
05/25/23

PINGIN
4.375 - Baa2 - 65,035 65,623 0.03
09/10/23

POLYRE
4.75 BBB— Baa3 BBB+ 47,203 47,332 0.02
09/17/23

YUEXIU
5.375 - Baa3 BBB- 90,771 89,316 0.04
10/19/23

HYNMTR
4.3 BBB+ Baal - 204,052 198,492 0.10
02/01/24

VNKRLE
5.35 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 64,328 65,311 0.03
03/11/24

CHIOLI
5.95 BBB+ Baal A- 17,426 17,715 0.01
05/08/24

CCBL 3.5

05/16/24 A - A 156,630 159,791 0.08

SHGANG 4
05/23/24 - - A- 94,278 98,091 0.05

YXREIT
3.6 - Baa3 - 30,000 29,592 0.01
05/28/24

HRINTH
3.75 - Baal A 39,421 39,361 0.02
05/29/24

VNKRLE
4.2 BBB Baa2 BBB+ 38,914 39,808 0.02
06/07/24

HAOHUA
3.375 - Baa2 A- 39,863 39,758 0.02
06/19/24

CHIMAO 4

06/21/24 BBB— - - 53,159 51,185 0.03

WB 3.5

07/05/24 BBB Baal - 39,923 39,857 0.02

CNBG
3.375 BBB - A- 127,189 126,802 0.06
07/16/24

JOHNEL
4.125 BBB Baal - 41,682 41,686 0.02
07/30/24

HRINTH
3.25 - Baal A 156,140 154,736 0.08
11/13/24

2,755,987 | 2,747,835 1.34
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2020 31 1.34

Jones 17.0 43.7
Lang LaSalle Limited

CBRE CBRE Limited 9.8 25.1
Savills (Hong 4.1 10.4

Kong) Limited
1.7 4.4

Centaline Property Agency Limited

1.7 4.4
( ) )
Gammon 336.4 11.9

Construction Limited

1SG 1SG Asia (Hong 282.4 10.0
Kong) Limited

Ka 124.4 4.4
Shun Contractors Limited
Jetline 113.8 4.0
Company Limited
Pat Davie Limited 105.3 3.7
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34.0 11.9

Nicholas Charles ALLEN

65 2016

CLP
Lenovo Group Limited

RAK Rock LLC

Hysan Development Company Limited
VinaLand Limited

Securities and Futures Appeals Panel
Takeovers Appeal Committee
Committee
Accountants
of Hong Kong

30

2016

CLP Holdings Limited

Mordril Properties Limited
Stevin Rock LLC RAK

AIM

2007

Takeovers and Mergers Panel
Share Registrars’ Disciplinary
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Financial Reporting Council
2047 Vision 2047 Foundation
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The University of Manchester
Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 2017 Directors
of the Year 2017

George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY

58 2009 2010

Tracker Fund of Hong Kong 104

International Council of Shopping Centers
Asia-Pacific Advisory Board
Urban Land Institute Our Hong Kong Foundation
Limited 2016 2018 Charoen
Pokphand Group

Harvard Business Review 2019 CE0100 100
Best-Performing CEOs in the World 2019 EY 2017
EY Entrepreneur of the Year 2017 China Award
Country Winner of Hong Kong/Macau Region 2015 DHL SCMP
DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards Business Person of
the Year 2011 -

University of Canterbury
The Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania
Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute Corporate Advisory Council
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
Institute of Shopping Centre Management

80/420



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NG Kok Siong

48 2020 2018
2005 CapitalLand
Group CapitalLand
Limited CapitaMalls Asia Limited

CapitalLand Mall Asia Limited

REIT
CapitaLand Retail China Trust Management Limited
CapitalLand Retail China
Trust REIT
CapitalLand Malaysia Mall REIT Management Sdn. Bhd.
CapitaLand Malaysia Mall Trust

Nanyang Technological University
Dartmouth College Tuck Executive Program

lan Keith GRIFFITHS

65 2007

1983 2006 10
Aedas 13
1,400
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1978 1980
The Royal Institute of British Architects
The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
2009 Griffiths-Roch Foundation
Roch Castle Penrhiw Priory
Twr y Felin
Christopher John BROOKE

51 2018

2018 11
Council
Hong Kong Rugby Union
2016 10 2020
Limited
CBRE

Asia Pacific Strategic Group
Insignia Brooke CBRE
2003
Brooke International

1992 1989
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2019 12
Governing
Brooke Husband
2002 2015 12
CBRE
2003
CBRE 1992

Brooke Hillier Parker
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Ed CHAN Yiu Cheong

57 2016
Treasury Wine Estates Limited
Yum China Holdings, Inc.
SoftBank Investment Advisers
C.P. C.P. Lotus
Corporation Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited 2006 11 2011 10
Walmart China 2001 11 2006
11 Dairy Farm Group

Bertelsmann Music Group
McKinsey & Co
The University of Chicago
Massachusetts Institute of Technology
Sloan School of Management
Blair Chilton PICKERELL
63 2016
NASDAQ

Principal Financial Group, Inc.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

First Pacific Company Limited
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104

Tracker Fund
of Hong Kong
Anthemis Insurance Venture Growth Fund
2008 12 2014 11 The
University of Hong Kong Faculty of
Business and Economics
Harvard Business School Association of Hong Kong

2015
1984 Jardine Matheson Holdings Group
2003 HSBC HSBC
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited HSBC
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited
2007 2010
Morgan Stanley Investment Management
2013 2017 12

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

Harvard Business School MBA
Stanford University
Poh Lee TAN
61 2015 11
2010 11 2012 10

Baker & McKenzie
2008 10 2010 10

Mighty Oaks Foundation Limited
Independent Schools Foundation
London School of Economics
and Political Science University of Cambridge
Queens’ College
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May Siew Boi TAN

64 2013

CLP N.V. Home Credit N.V. HSBC
HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited HSBC
HSBC Life (International) Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

2014 2017
Cazenove Asia Limited
Cazenove and Co. 2009
Standard Chartered Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited (Standard Chartered Hong Kong)
2016 The Hong Kong Association of Banks Hong
Kong Trade Development Council Hong Kong Monetary Authority
The Exchange Fund Advisory Committee Currency Board
Sub-Committee 2012 2015
Listing Committee 2001 2013

Hong Kong Youth Arts Foundation
Standing Committee on Judicial Salaries and Conditions of Service
Oxfam Hong Kong

The University of Sheffield

Peter TSE Pak Wing

69 2014
2012
CLP 2013
1981 CLP Co. Deloitte & Co.
Swire Group 2018 12 2018 11 29

Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited
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The University of Hong Kong

University of Stirling in Scotland

Nancy TSE Sau Ling

67 2014
1991 Hospital Authority
2013
Prince Philip Dental Hospital

The Jockey Club School of Public Health and Primary
Care of The Chinese University of Hong Kong The Financial Reporting

Council Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee
Wheelock

and Company Limited DBS DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

HSBC HSBC

Provident Fund Trustee (Hong Kong) Limited

University of California, Los Angeles

Elaine Carole YOUNG

55 2013

Ascott Residence Trust
Ascott Residence Trust Management Limited

Shama 2010

ONYX Hospitality Group

co-living TULU
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Warburg Pincus
NOVA NOVA Property Investment Co. Ltd.
2009 RBS
RBS Coutts/Financial Times Women in Asia Awards
Entrepreneur of the Year

Eric YAU Siu Kei

46
2010 11

2015
DBS

DBS Asia Capital Limited CLP UBS

UBS Investment Bank Jardine Fleming
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce
Financial Treasury Service Committee Asia
Pacific Real Estate Association The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute

IR Hong Kong Investor Relations Association
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Kenneth Tai Lun WONG

50
2019
26
HNA HNA Group (International) Company
Limited
Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management
Group Co., Limited Hilton Grand Vacations
Inc. CcwL
Nixon Peabody CWL 14 2015

Elderly Commission
London School
of Economics and Political Science

Christine CHAN Suk Han

45

20
China Resources Group Harvest
Capital Partners Limited ARA
ARA Asset Management (Prosperity) Limited
Hutchison Whampoa Properties Limited

New York University Stern
School of Business
General Practice Surveyor
The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
Hong Kong Advisory Board
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Lorraine CHAN Kuen Kuen

51
2019
Link Together Initiatives

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited 20

University of Strathclyde MBA
2016
Stanford Executive Program 2018

Gary FOK Yip Sang

53
2014
28
NF
InfraRed NF Investment Advisers Limited
New World Group
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited

Henderson Land Development Company Limited

Hong Kong Institute of Real Estate Administrators

Peionie KONG Po Yan
50
2005
27

Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited
New World Development Company Limited
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William LAl Hon Ming

57
2019
30

Kennedy Western University MBA

Keith NG Man Keung

48
2009
27
Hutchison Whampoa Property Group

Accountants CFA
Phyllis NG Yuen Fan
56
17
Kong
University MBA
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2007

Hongkong Land Group
Dao Heng Bank Group

Association of Chartered Certified
Chartered Financial Analyst

2016

2013
The University of Hong
Guanghua School of Management of the Peking
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Max WONG Hon Keung
55
2013

28
HKR HKR International Limited

Wong Tung & Partners Limited

Kwan and Associates Limited
Authorised Person
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2005 11 25

2017 LTI

2020 29 2,487,937

2021 30 2022 30 2023 30

2005 11

2005 11

*

7.12 90
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2020

®

2019

31
—@)

30

—(#

45

2020

90
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123
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45
90

2020 22
2020 31

—5 —(
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45
45
45

30

25
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2018 21

XV
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2019 31
700
2020 31
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2015 11

ACBMs
ACBMs
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90

2020 31 100

2 4

2020 31 56.5
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40

— 1 —2 —(4)

2007 23
2007 LTI
10

2020 31 2007 LTI 477,632
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2008
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22

2021

15



0.008

2020

4

0.06

2020

31

0.02

20

150,000
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@( ) 0.006
®) 0.015 0.03
30
150,000
)
@
()
0.05 (i) (@
23.2
0.006 0.008 0.015 0.03
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®

104

2020 31
16.5

8.5
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2020 31
)
20 15
2013 2037 12 31 2.1
20 15 2013 2037 12
31 2.1
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2014 37 14
37
14 2014 2023 12 31 10
100 2016
120
37 14 5 8 2024 1 1 2028 12 31 5
102
20 2023 18
2016 37 14
37 14 2016 2023 12 31
80
20 2023 18
()
20 15 2013 2037
12 31 2.1
(M)

)
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2.1
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18
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5
€H)
2020 31
)
( ) ( )
2,076 1.300
438 0.274
202 0.126
30 0.019
127,515 79.841
31,732 19.868
8,660 5.422
19,146 11.988
6,171 3.864
193,224 120.983
11,649 7.294
(47,502) (29.742)
(406) (0.254)
159,711 100.000
— 2 —3

—@
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
31 31 31 31 31
10,718 10,037 10,023 9,255 8,740
(2,498) (2,348) (2.360) (2,261) (2,227)
8,220 7,689 7,663 6,994 6,513
(416) (405) 417) (342) (368)
(23,948) 12,269 35,493 11,494 11,263
- 2,761 7,306 1,387 396
183 85 19 4 6
(630) (598) (665) (567) (508)
(16,591) 21,801 49,399 18,970 17,302
712) (1,359) (1,420) (1,057) (953)
(17,303) 20,442 47,979 17,913 16,349
(5,930) (5,517) (5.254) (4,898) (4,368)
(23,233) 14,925 42,725 13,015 11,981
(24,835) 13,260 44,609 12,461 11,404
1,783 1,552 (2,102) 352 523
(181) 113 218 202 54
(23,233) 14,925 42,725 13,015 11,981
(17,122) 20,329 47,761 17,711 16,295
23,831 (12,151) (35,270) (11,290) (11,209)
(454) 250 368 73 24
(157) - - - -
(276) 90 - - -
- (2,761) (7.306) (1,312) (375)
4 - - - -
(189) (87) (122) (107) (101)
- - (150) (83) (67)
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291 53 150 83 67
5,965 5,723 5,431 5,075 4,634
141.47 130.62 121.50 111.75 98.99
145.72 140.55 128.28 116.66 107.19
287.19 271.17 249.78 228.41 206.18
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
31 31 31 31 31

193,224 218,496 203,091 174,006 160,672

14,395 8,441 13,313 1,934 2,780

207,619 226,937 216,404 175,940 163,452

47,502 37,611 37,336 37,443 36,011

406 587 474 256 54

159,711 188,739 178,594 138,241 127,387

16.7 10.7 11.9 15.6 16.5

22.9 16.6 17.3 21.3 22.0

193,224 218,496 203,001 174,006 160,672

- 3.10-4.50 3.00-4.20 3.00-4.20 3.00-5.20 3.40-5.20

- 3.10-5.30 3.50-4.80 3.50-4.80 3.80-5.70 3.80-6.00

- 3.00

- 4.25-4.75 4.25-4.75 4.50-4.75 4.50 4.50-5.00

- 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.25 4.00

77.61 89.48 83.06 62.47 56.79

65.70 91.80 67.00 54.45 46.00

135,204 193,636 144,054 120,498 103,185

(15.3) 2.6 (19.3) (12.8) (19.0)

2,057,898,386 [2,109,321,254 |2,150,058,972 |2,213,002,276 |2,243,148,136
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2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

31 31 31 31 31
70.3 68.0 62.4 55.3 50.0
74.9 72.5 66.7 58.9 53.7
12.1 21.0 31.2 23.4 29.0
12.6 22.5 29.1 23.8 25.9
96.5 97.1 97.0 96.1 96.0
77.1 76.4 76.4 75.3 74.6

4,423 4,380 4,463 4,927 5,250

2,827 2,719 2,492 2,239 2,022
29.6 30.2 38.9 32.6 39.1
7.1 23.8 13.3 10.8 12.8
97.8 98.5 99.5 99.6 99.5
97.4 95.5 99.3 100.0 100.0

22.19 2.77

(14.21) (23.68) (28.86) (17.37) (16.29)
4.4 3.0 3.7 4.2 4.5

10.30

27.9 26.3 24.3 22.2 20.0
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99.80
2019 92.25 63.40 2019 65.80
2020 31 65.70 2019 91.80
2020 31 287.19
2019 271.17
96.5 97.8 12.6 29.6 -11.6
6.8 6.9 10,718
2019 10,037 8,220 2019 7,689
5.6 6.3
11.6 193,224 2019 31 218,496
17,303
2019 20,442 13.3 77.61
2019 31 89.48
291 53 5,965
2019 5,723
5.9 287.19 2019 271.17
141.47 2019 130.62 145.72
2019 140.55
2020 COVID-19
2020
2020 COVID-19
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2020

7.0

2019

2020 COVID-19

2020
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2020 31 2019 31
( )
5,592 5,420 3.2 7.6
916 925 (1.0) 2.8
139 137 1.5 6.9
168 178 (5.6) (1.8)
407 369 10.3 11.8
7,222 7,029 2.7 7.0
5,525 2019 5,322
67 2019 98
2020 31 96.5
12.6 2020 31
3.4 70.3
64
COVID-19
1.7
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
31 31 31 31 31
96.4 97.4 12.1 21.0 84.2
95.0 92.2 18.1 28.7 9.0
99.4 99.5 12.2 9.6 6.8
96.5 97.1 12.6 22.5 100.0
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2020 2020 2020 2019 2020 2019
31 31 31 31 31 31
)
6 27,599 1,381 91.1 86.7 93.3 95.4
35 69,948 3,815 77.5 75.2 96.9 97.7
57 29,968 1,619 50.1 48.4 97.4 97.0
98 127,515 6,815 70.3 68.0 96.5 97.1
. 2020 31 "
AL ARBOEMI
S0 BHE RHHNBE SHERE
(%) (20204 3 A31 BRI (%)
/,.- . 28.9 RRRUKH 9.6 T
>
y / 20.6 A=ri=T—4 v P RURHGE 171 ,//
~ 14,6 Gk gt d 5.8 I 4
' RIHIB S = RHREE
(AERHICSHEE) i— T n (AREOERCSHEHE)
0.9 B 0.5
1000 &bt 100. 094

8.3
3.4
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2020 31

2 8 8 8 5 5 8

L= ]

6.8

L

WNEI AN WNRFIAN WNFIAM  EMY-R
KLEE BUTE

= WEREHCSHOME (%) = AHARCSHLES (%)

wm

14.7
15.7 11.9 16.8

2020

2020

80 2020
2019 300

300
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57,000
4.2 COVID-19
2,827
2020 31 2019 31
( )
1,494 1,496 0.1) 8.0
418 483 (13.5) (8.2)
5 3 66.7 150.0
1,917 1,982 (3.3) 4.2
2020 31 2019 31
2,827 2,719
2020 31 2019 31
( ) 31,732 35,059
561 625
2019 Nan Fung Group The
Quayside 2020
80 JP Gammon
Manulife

72
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3.6 77.2
2019 76.6
2019 8.7
7.9
COVID-
19
2020 31 2019 31
)

578 542 6.6 7.9
380 484 (21.5) (17.0)

207 203 2.0 8.9

263 249 5.6 4.6

313 274 14.2 13.5
113 131 (13.7) 17.7)

85 87 2.3) 7.6

229 159 44.0 42.9

2,168 2,129 1.8 3.6

2019
41.1 1,448 38.5 1,118
43
2020 31
97.8 2020 29.6
2020 CoVID-19
2020
2020

2020 2020 60
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2019
Tongzhou

2020 31

7.1

3.4

. ®E
4.4 23,9
20.8
| I |
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2015

2019

2020

COVID-19
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Futian CentralWalk
Beijing Jingtong Roosevelt Plaza
40
Link Square Jingan
2020 31 97.4
CoVID-19
53.4 ¢y 1
8.2,
B mis iy
- HREMHCZEHSTE (%)
e AHABICSHHBE (96)
FF1A
22 26 - EHERICEHIWE (%)
o m' AUIAHIZEHIME (%)
mmzéﬁm A

2020
60
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789
85
Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre
2018
Tseung Kwan O Sheung Tak Plaza
22 TKO
TKO Spot
Decathlon 30,467
Spot Mart 50
TKO
TKO TKO Gateway
2019
COVID-19
20 2026

2020
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2020 31
)
( )
Nam Cheong Place ) 174 14.0
Choi Ming Shopping Centre 104 18.3
Tsz Wan Shan Shopping 157 10.2
Centre
TKO TKO Spot ) 183 12.0
Fung Tak Shopping Centre ) 60 15.8
Hin Keng Market ) 76 15.6
Yiu On Shopping Centre 35 6.1
789
4 411
19 1,300
23 1,711
)
Lok Fu Place 172 2020
Kai Tin Shopping Centre 153 2020
Choi Yuen Plaza 29 2021
Tai Wo Plaza 57 2021
411
2019 12
100 100 Market Street 683 10

2020
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2025

2019

70 75

20

Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited

2020 31
218,496
127,515
2019
9,914

31

3,476

31,732

1,791

4.01

4.27

25,317

10
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2019
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15 20
10
193,224 2019 31
11.5 9.5
31
2020 31
31 28,793
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2 N 2020 2019
31 31
127,515 144,096 3.10 —4.50 3.00 —4.20
31,732 35,059 3.10 -5.30 3.50 —4.80
9,914
3.00
10,548
oo Medaen By ]
19,146 21,264 4.25 -4.75 4.25 —4.75
6,171 7,529 4.25 4.25
25,317 28,793
194,478 218,496
193,224
218,496
2020 31 CovID-
19
2.25
2020 10
0.5
2020 COVID-19
HIBOR 2019 3.0 2020
1.1 2020
2019 40 1.6
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2019

2019

2020

2020

2020

Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark

2020

10.7

4.0

2020
3.12

100

31

83
2019

31

5.0

18

716
2.50
HIBOR 0.8
DBS
2020
414
0CBC OCBC Bank
GRESB
346
162
79
2019 31 93
31 4.0
24
56.5
2019 31 4.8
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10.1

2019

2019
2019

2019
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2.28
ANZ

10

31

16.7

31
31 68
2.94

161

69.8

120

245
2019

2019

10

2.35

ANZ Bank

Global

31

31



BBB+

2019

2019 13

28

2021

2019
EBITDA

13
11 13

28
3.1
CovID-19

REIT

7.07

Moody’s
6.5

A2
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2020 31
3.5

81.7

2020

2020

2019 11 28
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2018

52
146
2021
15
6.0 6.5
2019
2019
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2020 31
11. 6%
34. 19
BEAEESEH
J6{EFEE FIL
45. 19 6. 3%
2. 9%

FBFLBTHALY 0= == AERET/ALS-0-—
A—ZRIUFELETHALY -0
NIH SR FAMETRURFALET) — BERA (FErLET

I

2020 31
3.0 8.8 11.8 8.3 20.1
1.0 1.0 1.0
TN 10.8 4.8 15.6 15.6
CB 4.0 4.0 4.0
17.8 14.6 32.4 8.3 40.7
2.2 2.2 2.2
2.2 2.2 2.2
17.8 16.8 34.6 8.3 42.9

2020 31

MTN CB

2021 0.4 0.5 0.1 0.5 1.5
2022 1.5 4.0 0.1 1.5 7.1
2023 1.2 4.0 0.3 0.2 0.7 6.4
2024 7.0 0.2 5.6 12.8
2025 12.5 1.6 1.0 15.1
15.6 4.0 11.8 2.2 1.0 8.3 42.9
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¥
4
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2020 31
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)
2020 31

POLYRE 3.95 02/05/23 264,838 266,958 0.165
HYNMTR 4.3 02/01/24 202,250 194,041 0.126
3 CCBL 3.5 05/16/24 156,831 166,216 0.098
4 CJIIANT 3.375 07/25/22 155,988 157,468 0.098
5 HRINTH 3.25 11/13/24 156,676 150,592 0.098
6 YXREIT 4.75 04/27/21 123,950 122,945 0.078
7 CNBG 3.375 07/16/24 126,572 122,845 0.079
8 SHGANG 4 05/23/24 94,499 95,329 0.059
9 HAOHUA 3.5 07/19/22 93,807 92,755 0.059
10 CHIMAO 3.6 03/03/22 92,066 92,077 0.058
11 YUEXIU 5.375 10/19/23 91,118 90,330 0.057
12 CICCHK Float 05/03/22 79,916 79,581 0.050
13 VNKRLE 4.15 04/18/23 80,623 79,483 0.050
14 PINGIN 4.375 09/10/23 64,058 64,646 0.040
15 VNKRLE 5.35 03/11/24 63,104 64,084 0.040
16 HAOHUA 4.625 03/14/23 64,081 64,077 0.040
17 HRINTH 3.625 11/22/21 63,412 63,821 0.040
18 LNGFOR 3.875 07/13/22 58,887 58,399 0.037
19 CHIMAO 4 06/21/24 53,024 54,101 0.033
20 CATIC 3.5 05/31/22 47,066 48,423 0.029
21 POLYRE 4.75 09/17/23 46,499 48,396 0.029
22 CICCHK 3.375 05/03/22 47,166 48,290 0.030
23 YUEXIU 4.5 01/24/23 46,988 47,237 0.029
24 JOHNEL 4.125 07/30/24 41,451 41,465 0.026
25 WB 3.5 07/05/24 39,739 39,010 0.025
26 CHINAM Float 07/16/21 39,269 38,639 0.025
27 HRINTH 3.75 05/29/24 39,572 38,486 0.025
28 HAOHUA 3.375 06/19/24 39,756 38,248 0.025
29 VNKRLE 4.2 06/07/24 38,879 38,075 0.024
30 SINOCE 5.25 04/30/22 39,200 37,547 0.025
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852 2828 9888
852 2828 9899

18 www.col liers.com
5701
20-15162
2020 15
77 20
HSBC
2020 31
SFC 2005
SEHK
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
2020
HSBC
127
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1VSC

2017 HKIS

RICS

100

HKIS

2014
RICS
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3.25 4.50
4.00 5.30
3.01
3.01 5.10
4.25
4.25 4.75

4.25 4.75
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. 2020

. 2019

. 2019

. 2019

. 2019

. 2020

. 2020

. 2019

. 2019

. 2019

. 2019

31

31

2018

31

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2020

2017 10 12
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2020 31

4.48

169,161,100,000

127,005, 600,000 1,270 560
4.56

31,280,100,000 312 8,010
4.99

10,875,400,000 108 7,540

2020 31 23,180,000,000

4.37

6,740,000,000 67 4,000
4.78

EC
2,910,000,000 29 1,000

5.38
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1,691 6,110



4,350,000,000 43 5,000
4.94

2,570,000,000 25 7,000
4.23

6,610,000,000 66 1,000
3.20

10.764
3.2808

MSc MRICS MHKIS RPS

GP
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127

15

110

124

116

118

83

104

73

115

121

101

123

95

93

122

97

112

108

87

78

114

99

92

107

84

700
700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

(Butterfly Plaza)
(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)
(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)
(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)
(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)
(Car Park within Kam On Court)
(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)
(Car Park within King Lai Court)
(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)
(Car Park within Lai On Estate)
|

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)
(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)
(Car Park within Po Pui Court)
(Car Park within San Wai Court)

|
(Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (I) Estate)
(Car Park within Tin King Estate)
(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)
(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)

(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

90

105

113

96

100

11

62

16

30

10

21

25

55

32

47

24

45

36

35

67

57

64

63

33

68
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(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)
(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)
(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)
(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)
(Car Park within Yue On Court)
(Cheung Fat Plaza)
(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)
(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)
(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)
(Choi Yuen Plaza)
(Chuk Yuen Plaza)
(Chung On Shopping Centre)
(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)
(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)

Fu Tai Shopping Centre
(Fu Tung Plaza)
(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)
(Heng On Commercial Centre)
(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)
(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)
(Hing Wah Plaza)
(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)
(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)
(Homantin Plaza)
(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)

(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)
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56

40

39

12

60

50

54

59

49

46

31

29

52

70

80

51

42

75

76

85

7

120

88

117

82

125

106

79

103

(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)

(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)

(Lek Yuen Plaza)

(Leung King Plaza)

(Lok Fu Place)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)

(Long Ping Commercial Centre)

(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)

(Maritime Bay)

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)

(Nam Cheong Place)

(Nan Fung Plaza)

(Oi Man Plaza)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Po Tat Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)

109

91

119

89

86

94

102

71

81

98

111

65

28

37

72

23

41

44

48

17

34

27

126

18

20

26
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1l
(Retail and Car Park within Sau Mau Ping (IIl) Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)
(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)
(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)
(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)
(Shun On Commercial Centre)
(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)
(Stanley Plaza)
(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)
T
(T Town)
(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)
(Tai Wo Plaza)
(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)
(Tak Tin Plaza)

Temple Mall North

Temple Mall South

The Quayside
(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)
(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)

(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)

1471420



66

22

43

53

58

(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)
(Tin Yiu Plaza)
TKO
TKO Gateway
TKO
(TKO Spot)
(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)

(Un Chau Shopping Centre)

(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)

Link Square, Shanghai
EC
EC Mall, Beijing

Metropolitan Plaza, Guangzhou

Beijing Jingtong Roosevelt Plaza, Beijing

CentralWalk, Shenzhen

13

14

19

74

61

69

38
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(Wo Che Plaza)
(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)
(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))
(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)
(Yiu On Shopping Centre)
(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)
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371,348 793 290.5
Lok Fu Place

Lok Fu Plaza

Wang Shun House
Wang Yat House
Lok Fu Estate

358,510
371,348
793
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2020 31

4.22% 6,749.2 4.30%

1983 1991

Wang Tat House

Link Properties Limited
New Kowloon Inland 6451 107,428/335,530

2007 12 31 50

T T Town 206,649 1,177 264.7

Chung Fu Plaza

Tin Chung Court

1,177

4.03% 5,653.8 4.68%

1999 2000

— Tin Shui Wai Town 18 A

2,021/363,535

— 41

1999 50

149/420
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3

Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre
4

Temple Mall South
5 TKO TKO Gateway

198,712 940 221.4

1997

Tsz Lok Estate
940

2007 10

146,528 688 184.0

Wong Tai Sin Plaza

Lung Kwong House

Lung Lok House Lung On House

688
2007 17
165,935 623 181.2
11
Hau Tak Estate
623

4.34%
198,712
6442
50
4.12%

50
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4,692.9 4.72%
198,250
81,055/481,546
4,074.4 4.52%
1982 1983

Lung Fai House

Lower Wong Tai Sin 1l Estate

6438 51,200/323,235
4.01% 4,045.1 4.48%
Hau Tak Shopping Centre 1993

Tseung Kwan O Town

2005 10 14

150/420

50

99
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Kai 184,936 461 178.7 4.32% 3,988.5 4.48%
Tin Shopping Centre

1999 2003

Kai Tin Estate

184,362
184,936
461
6481 65,207/256,946
2009 29 50
TKO TKO Spot 129,951 1,280 170.6 4.24% 3,780.8 4.51%
Sheung Tak Shopping Centre 1998
A
B
C
Sheung Mei House
Sheung Tak Estate
1,280
129,816 129,951
98 95,092/467,545
2007 26 50
137,622 473 158.1 3.94% 3,724.0 4.24%
Temple Mall North
Lung Cheung Plaza 2001
Upper Wong Tai Sin Estate
473
6439 53,974/311,854
2007 23 50
155,118 611 177.4 4.31% 3,561.4 4.98%
Sau Mau Ping Shopping
Centre
2002
A
Sau Mau Ping Estate
611
6453 57,670/833,450
10/833,450

2007 23 50
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10
Plaza

11
Plaza

12
Plaza

13
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Choi Yuen 127,754 536 165.7 4.41% 3,317.6 4.99%
1982
— Choi Chu House Choi Yuk
House Choi Ping House Choi Wah House
125,394
127,754
536
Fan ing Sheung Shui Town 230 34,746/286,392

2005 17 50

Cheung Fat 165,572 590 152.3 4.34% 3,313.1 4.60%

1987

Cheung Fat Estate

590
Tsing Yi Town 172 49,331/171,904
2005 50
Leung King 183,796 616 157.3 4. 45% 3,108.4 5.06%
1988
Leung King Estate
616
(Tuen Mun Town) 458 54,922/426,295
2001 50
Wo Che Plaza 170,625 828 141.4 4.13% 3,036.1 4.66%
1977
— Tai Wo House Foo Wo House
Hau Wo House Chi Wo house King
Wo House
Wo Che Estate
828

Sha Tin Town 549 55,437/474,742
2007 23 50
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14 193,063
Yat Tung Shopping

Centre

15 Butterfly 174,331
Plaza

House
16 Choi 92,857
Ming Shopping Centre
15
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1,900 147 .4 4.41% 3,000.8 4.91%
2001 2003
Yat Tung Estate
1,900
Tung Chung Town 30 107,811/930,819
2009 50
313 148.7 4.53% 2,951.6 5.04%
1983
— Tip Ling House Tip Sum
Butterfly Estate
313
473 38,316/248,783
2005 10 14
765 144.4 4.33% 2,914.4 4.95%
2001 2003
— Choi Ming Court
King Ming Estate
765
82 44,614/346,996
109 39,133/420,644
2001 82 2010
50 109
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17 Tai Wo Plaza

18
Tin Chak Shopping
Centre

19
Yau Mei Ko
Cheung Lei Yue Mun Plaza

20 Tin
Shing Shopping Centre

125,452

130,719

100,769

78,235
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454 140.8 4.40% 2,771.0 5.08%
1989
0i Wo House
On Wo House
Hei Wo House
127,470
125,452
454
Tai Po Town 176 40,117/414,930
2000 10 50
302 130.1 4.31% 2,652.5 4.90%
2001
Tin Chak Estate
302
37 38,810/272,897
2005 10 14 50
0 131.7 4.30% 2,642.7 4.98%
2001
Yau Mei Court J K L
6459 19,357/392,161
2005 50
1,458 118.2 4.33% 2,404.6 4.91%
2000

1,458

Ting Shing Court

17

1997 11 28

154/420
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21

22

23

24

Plaza

Plaza

Chuk Yuen

Tin Yiu Plaza

Siu Sai Wan

Fu Tung Plaza

138,546

93,297

99,942

104,879

1984

1,103

1992

480

1989

558

1997

537

1,103

117.6 4.44%

Chui Yuen House

Sau Yuen House

Chuk Yuen South Estate

6452
2007 16 50
480 120.3 4.34%
Tin Yiu Estate
38 31,581/574,611
2005 17 50
558 118.1 4.47%
Sui Yick House
Chai Wan Inland 176
2007 26 50
537 114.3 4.45%
Fu Tung Estate
40 44,218/209,377

2008 30 50

155/420
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2,398.2

62,198/354,665

2,396.7

2,281.1

34,606/418,894

2,246.6

4.90%

5.02%

5.18%

5.09



25

26

27

28

Centre

Centre

Centre
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82,430 995 101.9 4._44% 2,049.6 4.97%
Chung On Shopping
1996
Chun Ping House
Chung On Estate
995
544 41,385/223,886
2005 10 14 50
74,948 577 102.1 4.40% 2,029.4 5.03%
Tin Shui Shopping
1992
Tin Shui Estate
577
39 34,646/599,404
2007 50
Tak Tin Plaza 97,580 754 90.8 4.47% 1,968.1 4.61%
1991
A
B
Tak Hong House C
Tak King House
Tak Shing House
754
6326 25,782/308,756
1999 18 50
96,488 662 94.6 4.34% 1,965.2 4.81%
Sha Kok Commercial
1980
— Osprey House Sand
Martin House Sha Kok Estate
662
552 32,438/340,309
2008 50
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29

30

31

32

Oi Man Plaza

Choi  Wan
Complex

Nan Fung Plaza

Fu Shin Shopping Centre

Commercial
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183,846 808 88.3 4.48% 1,923.0 4.59%
1975
A D
Chiu Man House Hong Man House
Chung Man House
0i Man Estate
808
9826 54,395/204,983
1968 75
161,150 859 90.5 4.44% 1,908.7 4.74%
1980
Fei Fung House
Choi Wan Estate
859
167,585
161,150
6461 61,003/394,552
2008 12 29 50
81,246 0 7.7 4,00% 1,851.7 4.19%
1999
187
23 154,634/1,485,995
8648 1995 11 21 2047 30
105,549 525 82.9 4.36% 1,824.6 4.54%
1986
Fu Shin Estate
525
189 33,761/330,620

2005 10 14

157/420

50



33 Homantin
Plaza

34
Tai Yuen Commercial
Centre

35
Hin Keng Shopping Centre

36
Heng On Commercial
Centre

EDINETOOOO
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101,179 299 86.2 4.43% 1,764.4 4.89%
2001
Ho Man Tin Estate
299
11119 A 3,411/57,202
20,327/214,270
1998 11 20 50
136,435 594 78.5 4.42% 1,752.4 4.48%
1980
A
B
Tai Man House Tai Tak House Tai
Wing House
Tai Yuen Estate
594
192 38,718/396,392
2007 29 50
94,383 636 81.8 4.36% 1733.5 4.72%
1987
Hing Keng Estate
636
94,374 94,383
503 37,320/396,392
2000 10 50
114,747 585 77.6 4.32% 1,723.5 4.50%
1987
Heng On Estate
585
500 C 39,206/40,831
812/247,314
1998 50
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37 201,691 731 79.3 4.46% 1,722.7 4.60%
Shun Lee Commercial
Centre
1978
|
1
A
B
C
Lee Foo House Lee Hong House Lee Yat
House Lee Yip House
Shun Lee Estate
731
6465 56,354/295,872
2010 31 50
38 Yu 112,784 1,175 78.5 4.21% 1,675.7 4.68%
Chui Shopping Centre
2001
Yu Chui Court
1,175
462 48,967/361,200
2001 18 50
39 Lek Yuen Plaza 106,208 438 68.8 4.23% 1,640.5 4.20%
1976
Wing Shui House Wah Fung House Fu
Yu House (Fook Hoi House) Kwai Wo House
Lek Yuen Estate
438
550 28,600/199,774
2007 50
40 81,542 736 76.2 4.34% 1,604.7 4.75%
Kwong Yuen Shopping
Centre
1991
Kwong Yuen Estate
736
506 29,929/279,026

2001 50
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41 Stanley Plaza 98,382 411 66.7 4.15% 1,603.3 4.16%
1999 2000
Murray House
Village Square
Ma Hang Estate
411
Stanley Inland 98 37,045/116,974
2009 11 50
42 Po 82,838 1,083 76.9 4.30% 1,587.4 4.85%
Tat Shopping Centre
2002
|
1
Tat Cheung House
1,083
Po Tat Estate
6470 75,195/546,029
2009 50
43 113,912 421 74.0 4.22% 1,570.1 4.71%
Tsui Ping North
Shopping Circuit
1990
Tsui Tsz House Tsui Lau House Tsui Pak
House Tsui O House Tsui Yue House
Tsui To House
Tsui Ping North Estate
421
Kwun Tong Inland 754 31,542/345,220
2002 24 50
44 75,506 620 66.2 4.28% 1,415.3 4.68%
Sun Chui Shopping
Centre
1983
Sun Yee House
Sun Chui Estate
620
554 27,934/395,903

2009 25 50

160/420
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45 71,917 487 62.2 4.29% 1,336.1 4.65%
Fung Tak Shopping Centre

1991
Bang Fung House Ngan Fung House
487
71,998
71,917
6318 A C
1,070/202,138
1998 50
46 (Nam Cheong
Place) 56,541 547 64.0 4.33% 1,319.2 4._85%
Fu Cheong Shopping Centre 2002
547
6437 31,469/355,647
2005 17 50
47 61,270 635 62.6 4.18% 1,315.5 4.76%
Fu Tai Shopping Centre
2000
Fu Tai Estate
635
418 38,769/382,833
2001 12 50
48 Tai 101,698 672 58.7 4.42% 1,304.2 4.50%
Hing Commercial Centre
1977
Tal Hing Estate
672

484 27,288/474,882
2009 18 50

161/420
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49 Mei 75,843 375 57.2 4.24% 1,257.4 4.55%
Lam Shopping Centre
Mei Lam Commercial Centre 1981
— Mei Fung House
375
558 29,125/273,313
2010 22 50
50 92,061 564 62.6 4.50% 1,250.3 5.01%
Long Ping Commercial
Centre
1987
Yuk Ping House Shek Ping House
Kang Ping House
Long Ping Estate
564
Yuen Long Town 521 32,958/498,969
2006 15 50
51 86,730 398 60.1 4.45% 1,243.6 4.83%
Po Lam Shopping Centre
1989
|
1
— Po Ning House Po Kan House
Po Lam Estate
398
88 25,495/341,494
2004 10 19 50
52 0i 81,029 634 59.4 4.36% 1,222.9 4.86%
Tung Shopping Centre
2000
01 Sin House
0i Tung Estate
634
Shau Kei Wan Inland 849 34,910/194,191

2005 17 50

162/420



53
Un Chau Shopping
Centre
54
Lung Hang Commercial
Centre
55 Fu

Heng Shopping Centre

56
Kwong Fuk Commercial
Centre

EDINETOOOO
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50,180 213 52.4 3.87% 1,177.5 4_45%
1999
213
6478 17,388/355,830
2010 11 50
63,197 440 55.3 4.25% 1,167.7 4._74%
1983
440
557 23,047/289,255
2010 31 50
55,030 517 55.2 4.39% 1,162.3 4.75%
1990
Fu Heng Estate
517
178 22,900/358,013
2000 10 50
69,768 461 52.5 4_45% 1,157.1 4._54%
1983
Kwong Yan House
Kwong Fuk Estate
461

196 23,946/351,384
2010 17 50
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57 Hing Wah Plaza 80,525 268 56.7 4.38% 1,143.2 4._96%
2000
May Wah House
Hing Wah Estate
82,011
80,525
268
177 27,675/160,197
2007 28 50
58 82,792 359 52.9 4._.39% 1,084.4 4.88%
Wan Tsui Commercial Complex
1978
Yee Tsui House Shing Tsui House
Lee Tsui House
Wan Tsui Estate
359
180 26,208/222,534
2010 31 50
59 Maritime Bay 41,017 0 49.3 4.00% 1,082.1 4.55%
1998
HK Great Land (HK) Limited
49 573/5,411
SK 8530 1995 27 2047 30
60 98,078 650 50.6 4.31% 1,076.6 4._70%
Lok Wah Commercial
Centre
1985
Lap Wah

House

Po Wah House Kan Wah House

Tat Wah House

Shun Wah House
Lok Wah North Estate

650

6460

2008 50

164/420

Ning Wah House

38,134/513,788
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61 Yiu 50,698 547 49.2 4.27% 1,004.6 4.90%

On Shopping Centre

1989
Yiu On Estate
547
50,765
50,698
505 12,616/306,501
1999 18 50
62 72,204 353 46.3 4.34% 978.8 4.73%
Cheung Wah Shopping
Centre
1984
Cheung Lai House Cheung Chung House
Cheung Wah Estate
353
226 26,310/299,811
2014 16 50
63 Hoi 40,360 225 43.6 4.20% 956.0 4._56%
Fu Shopping Centre
1999
E J—
D J—
225
11141 9,413/204,120
1999 16 50
64 Hiu 34,560 637 45.3 4.32% 940.9 4._81%
Lai Shopping Centre
1996
Hiu Tin House
Hiu On House
637
6205 A 1,000/249,375

1994 11 11 2047 30

165/420
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65 69,580 176 40.3 4.38% 849.8 4.75%
Sam Shing Commercial

Centre
1980
Chun Yu House Moon Yu House Fung
Yu House
176
481 14,434/115,271
2010 22 50
66 Tin 36,865 289 40.1 4.26% 824.7 4.86%
Tsz Shopping Centre
1997
Tsz Ping House
Tin Tsz Estate
289
40 17 511/202 482
2007 29 50
67 Hing 53,034 420 26.8 4.36% 579.4 4.62%
Tung Shopping Centre
1995
420
851 23,786/155,258
2010 50
68 Kin 36,623 273 25.5 4._26% 560.4 4_54%
Sang Shopping
Centre
1990
Kin Sang Estate
273
441 A 14,100/28,621
1998 50

166/420



69 Y
Tung Shopping Centre

u

70
Ping Tin Shopping Centre

71
Retail
and Car Park within Tung
Tau Estate

72
Shun On Commercial
Centre

63,147 685 23.7
1994
Yiu Tung Estate
685
852
2010 29 50
24,344 406 25.1
1997
Ping Tin Estate
406
6446
2009 30 50
38,060 493 21.3
1982

Cheung Tung House
On Tung House

Tung Tau Estate

493
6413
2002 24 50
80,993 459 20.1
1978
On Kwan House
Yat House
Shun On Estate
459
6472
2008 28 50

167/420

Yue Tung House
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4.45% 512.4 4.62%

35,548/381,831

4.51% 510.0 4.92%
16,966/362,174

4.44% 484.0 4.41%

Hong Tung House

Wong Tung House

16,942/349,186

4.43% 467.1 4.31%

On Chung House on

20,130/179,429
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73 0 763 20.1 5.00% 379.2 5.31%
Car Park within Kin Ming
Estate

2003

Kin Ming Estate

763
109 39,133/420,644
2010 15 50
74 10,584 150 18.3 4.26% 377.9 4.84%
Yin Lai Court Shopping
Centre
1991
150
389 A
1990 21 2047 30
75 3,915 484 18.0 4.57% 363.8 4.95%

Retail and Car Park
within Cheung On Estate

1988
On Tao House
484
160 D F
403/293,522
1998 50
76 11,532 333 18.6 4.60% 355.5 5.23%
Retail and Car Park
within Cheung Wang
Estate
2001
333
178 13,010/259,640
2009 25 50
77 17,956 549 16.1 4.39% 345.1 4.67%
Retail and Car Park
within Hong Pak Court
1993
549

6095 A
1991 25 2047 30
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78 0 560 13.2 4._40% 277.0 4.76%
Car Park within Tin Yuet
Estate
2000
560
41 50,802/297,568
2010 50
79 16,086 226 12.2 4.63% 264.2 4.62%
Retail and Car
Park within Lok Wah  South
Estate
1982
Chin Wah House
On Wah House
226
6460 13,231/513,788 667/513,788
2008 50
80 13,686 0 9.8 3.30% 263.6 3.72%
Po Hei Court Commercial
Centre
1993
A B
6117 1,354/20,256
1992 17 2047 30
81 7,342 379 11.2 4.30% 245.6 4 .55%
Retail and Car Park
within Wo Ming Court
1999
Wo Yat House
379
52 A 728/82,796

1997 11 28 50

169/420



82
Retail and Car Park within
Ko Chun Court

83 Car
Park within Ka Tin Court

84 Car
Park within Wah Lai Estate

85

Retail and Car Park
within Ching Wah Court

86
Retail and Car Park within
Tong Ming
Court

7,332 323 11.6

1993

Chun Moon House

323
6189
1993 2047
0 348 11.4
1988
348
290
1898 99
0 411 11.6
2001
411
445
2001 25 50
9,118 348 10.6
2001
348
137 2,516/36,665
1999 20 50
21,283 291 9.2

1999
Tong Wong House
Tong Fu House
291

54

1997 26

170/420
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4_47% 2443 4._76%
A 530/81,791
30
4.40% 232.7 4.90%
2047 30
4._60% 227.9 5.09%
A 21,700/102,614
4.39% 227.0 4.65%
4.29% 219.9 4.19%
A 1,153/98,512

30



87 0
Car Park within Tin King
Estate

88 7,040
Retail and Car Park
within Hong Yat Court

89 8,784
Retail and Car
Park within Tin Yat Estate

90 0
Car Park within Wang Fuk
Court

91 1,476

Retail and Car Park within Tin
Wah Estate

380

355

446

408

287

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

380 10.5 4.30% 219.5 4_79%
1989
444 4,036/197,161
1999 18 50
355 9.8 4.39% 209.5 4.68%
1993
6329 4,582/99,200
2001 50
446 10.0 4._56% 207.1 4.83%
2001
42 15,485/22,221
2008 10 28 50
408 9.2 4.10% 204.9 4.48%
1983
27 A
1898 99 2047 30
287 9.9 4.36% 204.0 4.84%
1999
43 11,225/236,423

2010 12 50

171/420



92 Car
Park within Tsz Man Estate

93 Car
Park within Ning Fung Court

94

Retail
Tsui Wan Estate

and Car Park within

95 Car
Park within Ming Nga Court

96 Car
Park within Ying Ming Court

0 364 11.0 4.90%
1994
364
6441
2008 28 50
0 299 8.9 4.20%
2001
299
477 3,072/78,707

1999 10 15 50

13,631 182 8.7 4.38%
1993
182
166 3,254/123,068
1999 18 50
0 345 8.2 4.00%
1985
345
36 A
1898 99
0 274 8.1 4.30%
1989
274

Junk Bay Town
1898 99

172/420
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202.4

9,121/139,291

192.7
190.5
184.1
2047
173.8
A
2047

5.45%

4.60%

4.54%

4.47%

30

4.63%

30



97
Car Park within Po Pui
Court
98
Retail and Car Park within Yan
Ming Court
99

Car Park within Tsui
South Estate

Ping

100
Car Park within Yue On

Court

101 Car
Park within Lai On Estate

7,019

5,275

277

262

229

296

181

277

1995

1994

262

1987

229

1990

8.2
728
2047
7.2
1990
A
22 2047
8.5
755

2009 11 27 50

296

1988

1982

181

1993

2009

6.9

117
75

7.0

6482

50

173/420
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4.30% 173.6
A
30
4.38% 162.1
30
5.05% 155.3
6,785/291,576
4.30% 148.3
A
75
4.80% 140.6

5,099/90,111

4.74%

4.44%

5.49%

4.65%

5.01%



102
Retail and Car Park within
Tsz Oi Court

103

Retail and Car Park
within Nam Cheong Estate

104 Car
Park within Kam On Court

105 Car
Park within Yee Kok Court

13,306

8,112

Cheong On House

199

156

238

240
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199 6.4 4.73% 137.0
1997 2000
6211 A
1995 2047 30
6265 699/113,761
1999 50
156 5.8 4.31% 134.0
1989

Cheong Shun House Cheong Yat House

Cheong Yin House

6427
2005 17 50

3,670/109,764

238 6.3 4.30% 133.1
1987
283 A
1898 99 2047
240 5.6 4.10% 129.1
1981
5911 A
1898 99 2047

174/420

4.66%

4.34%

4.73%

30

4_35%

30



106 12,616 265
Retail and Car Park
within Lok Nga Court

265
1898
107 0 228
Car Park within
Upper Ngau Tau Kok
Estate
2002
228
2008
108 | 0 395
Car Park within Sau Mau
Ping | Estate
2002
B
395
10/833,450
2007
109 11 1,507 205
Retail and
Car Park within Sau Mau Ping
11l Estate
205
2007

5.3

1984

5969

99

6.7

6471
50

5.1

6453

23 50

6.0

1996

6453

23 50

175/420
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4.13% 128.6 4_14%
A 1/28,952
2047 30

4.80% 128.5 5.22%
9,334/126,664

4.00% 124.6 4.10%
14,364/833,450

4.53% 119.3 5.07%

7,222/833,450



110 Car
Park within Ching Wang Court

111
Retail and Car Park
within Ying Fuk
Court

112 Car
Park within San Wai Court

113
Car Park within Yee Nga
Court

114 Car
Park within Tin Yau Court

786

179

163

185

159

192

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

179 5.2 4.30% 114.9 4.53%

2001

137 2,516/36,665
1999 20 50

163 5.3 4.54% 113.9 4.62%
2001
6266
1999 50
185 5.1 4.30% 105.9 4.85%
1990
326 A
1992 2047 30
159 4.5 4.10% 103.4 4.32%
1993
120 A
1991 22 2047 30
192 4.6 4_30% 101.9 4.53%
1992
10 A

1992 23 2047 30

176/420



115 Car
Park within King Lai Court

116 Car
Park within Fung Lai Court

117
Retail and Car Park
within Hung Hom Estate

118
Car Park within
Court

Hong Keung

119
Retail
within Tin Wang Court

and Car Park

3,994

9,946

158

134

45

93

79

158

1

989

1985

134

1

45

997

1996
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3.8 4.20% 89.5
5943 A
2047 30
3.3 4.10% 80.3
6240 1,512/33,911
2047 30
2.8 4.09 73.7
1999

Hung Fai House

93

1

79

Hung Hom Inland 554 1,573/51,548
2008 29 50
3.2 4.70% 67.2
999
6239
1999 50
2.6 4.37% 61.7
1992
6131
1991 21 2047 30

1771420

4._29%

4.15%

3.85%

4.74%

4.17%



120
Retail and Car Park
within Hong Shui Court

121 Car
Park within Kwai Hong Court

122
Car Park within Pang Ching
Court

123 1
Car Park within
Lower Wong Tai Sin 1 Estate

124
Car Park within Chuk
Yuen North Estate

345

102

88

67

70

61

102

1998

88

1993

1990

67

1991

1990

70

1982

2001

61

1987

1999
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2.6 4.30% 55.1
1999
6227 A
14 50
2.2 4.50% 52.1
420 1,100/35,351
2047 30
2.0 4.70% 41.5
6121 A
21 2047 30
1.6 4.10% 34.4
6373 674/240,107
50
1.0 5.10% 20.8
6327 687/364,071
18 50

178/420

4.65%

4.19%

4.81%

4.52%

4.60%



125

126

127

within Ko Yee Estate

Mong Kok

485 38
Retail and Car Park
38
2010
The Quayside 883,127
2019
457
20240 2015
700 176,563
700 Nathan Road,
T.0.P
11419 1980
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0.6 4.02% 14.5 4.18%
1994
6480 1,518/80,343
50
2020 31
10,875.4
Century Land Investment Limited
6512
23 50
1,253.9
4,341.1
Trade and Industry Department Tower 2017

T.0.P This is our Place
Link Monte Hong Kong Limited.

10470 24,750/25,000
30 75

179/420



2

Link Square, Shanghai

EC EC Mall,
Beijing

Metropolitan Plaza,
Guangzhou

(Beijing Jingtong
Roosevelt Plaza, Beijing

7,375 75,780
2003
226
Ltd.
2001 16
55,423 0
2009
367
ECM
Ltd.)
2011 13
88,726 0
2011

The Riverside

1,034
Estate Company Ltd.
2002 10 21
67,546 0
2014
B L
576

271

Real Estate Management Company Limited

2010 12

226 322.1
2051 15

367 156.5
2051 12

1,034 215.1

2042 10 20

576 108.7

2050 12

180/420
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2020 31

4.29% 6,740.0 4.78%

Shanghai Xing Bang Properties Co.

50

4.50% 2,910.0 5.38%

(ECM Property Holding (Tianjin) Co.,

40

4.75% 4,350.0 4.94%

Guangzhou Qian Qing Hui Real

40

4.75% 2,570.0 4.23%

Beijing Yateng

40



83,900
CentralWalk, Shenzhen
2006

741

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

2002

29

344

741

2042

181/420

221.6

28
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4.25% 6,610.0 3.20%

Baoyi Property Management

40



19
31
59
80

73
78
83
84
87
90
92
93
95
96
97
99
100
101
104
105
107
108
110
112
113
114
115
116
118
121
122
123
124

2020

31

182/420
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= O

Ol B W N - =

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

700 (

EC

(Lok Fu Place)
T
(T Town)
(Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre)
Temple Mall South
TKO
TKO Gateway
(Kai Tin Shopping Centre)
TKO
TKO Spot
Temple Mall North
(Sau Mau Ping Shopping Centre)
(Choi Yuen Plaza)
(Cheung Fat Plaza)
(Leung King Plaza)
(Wo Che Plaza)
(Yat Tung Shopping Centre)
(Butterfly Plaza)

(Choi Ming Shopping Centre)

(Tai Wo Plaza)

183/420
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4.226%
3.540%
2.938%
2.551%
2.533%
2.497%
2.367%
2.332%
2.230%
2.077%
2.074%
1.946%
1.901%
1.879%
1.848%
1.825%

1.735%



18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

(Tin Chak Shopping Centre)
(Yau Mei & Ko Cheung (Lei Yue Mun Plaza))
(Tin Shing Shopping Centre)
(Chuk Yuen Plaza)
(Tin Yiu Plaza)
(Siu Sai Wan Plaza)
(Fu Tung Plaza)
(Chung On Shopping Centre)
(Tin Shui Shopping Centre)
(Tak Tin Plaza)
(Sha Kok Commercial Centre)
(Oi Man Plaza)
(Choi Wan Commercial Complex)
(Nan Fung Plaza)
(Fu Shin Shopping Centre)
(Homantin Plaza)
(Tai Yuen Commercial Centre)
(Hin Keng Shopping Centre)
(Heng On Commercial Centre)
(Shun Lee Commercial Centre)
(Yu Chui Shopping Centre)
(Lek Yuen Plaza)
(Kwong Yuen Shopping Centre)
(Stanley Plaza)
(Po Tat Shopping Centre)
(Tsui Ping North Shopping Circuit)
(Sun Chui Shopping Centre)
(Fung Tak Shopping Centre)
(Nam Cheong Place)

Fu Tai Shopping Centre

(Tai Hing Commercial Centre)

184/420
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1.661%
1.655%
1.506%
1.502%
1.501%
1.428%
1.407%
1.283%
1.271%
1.232%
1.230%
1.204%
1.195%
1.159%
1.142%
1.105%
1.097%
1.085%
1.079%
1.079%
1.049%
1.027%
1.005%
1.004%
0.994%
0.983%
0.886%
0.837%
0.826%
0.824%

0.817%



49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

(Mei Lam Shopping Centre)
(Long Ping Commercial Centre)
(Po Lam Shopping Centre)

(Oi Tung Shopping Centre)

(Un Chau Shopping Centre)
(Lung Hang Commercial Centre)
(Fu Heng Shopping Centre)
(Kwong Fuk Commercial Centre)
(Hing Wah Plaza)

(Wan Tsui Commercial Complex)
(Maritime Bay)

(Lok Wah Commercial Centre)
(Yiu On Shopping Centre)
(Cheung Wah Shopping Centre)
(Hoi Fu Shopping Centre)

(Hiu Lai Shopping Centre)
(Sam Shing Commercial Centre)
(Tin Tsz Shopping Centre)
(Hing Tung Shopping Centre)
(Kin Sang Shopping Centre)
(Yiu Tung Shopping Centre)

(Ping Tin Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Tung Tau Estate)

(Shun On Commercial Centre)

(Car Park within Kin Ming Estate)

(Yin Lai Court Shopping Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Cheung On Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Cheung Wang Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Hong Pak Court)

(Car Park within Tin Yuet Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Wah (South) Estate)
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0.787%
0.783%
0.779%
0.766%
0.737%
0.731%
0.728%
0.724%
0.716%
0.679%
0.678%
0.674%
0.629%
0.613%
0.599%
0.589%%
0.532%
0.516%
0.363%
0.351%
0.321%
0.319%
0.303%
0.292%
0.237%
0.237%
0.228%
0.223%
0.216%
0.173%

0.165%



80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

(Po Hei Court Commercial Centre)

(Retail and Car Park within Wo Ming Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Chun Court)
(Car Park within Ka Tin Court)

(Car Park within Wah Lai Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Ching Wah Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tong Ming Court)
(Car Park within Tin King Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Yat Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Tin Yat Estate)
(Car Park within Wang Fuk Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wah Estate)
(Car Park within Tsz Man Estate)

(Car Park within Ning Fung Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tsui Wan Estate)
(Car Park within Ming Nga Court)

(Car Park within Ying Ming Court)

(Car Park within Po Pui Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Yan Ming Court)
(Car Park within Tsui Ping South Estate)
(Car Park within Yue On Court)

(Car Park within Lai On Estate)

(Retail and Car Park within Tsz Oi Court)
(Retail and Car Park within Nam Cheong Estate)
(Car Park within Kam On Court)

(Car Park within Yee Kok Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Lok Nga Court)
(Car Park within Upper Ngau Tau Kok Estate)
(Car Park within S;u Mau Ping (1) Estate)
(Retail and Car Pa:LIwithin Sau Mau Ping (111) Estate)

(Car Park within Ching Wang Court)
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0.165%
0.154%
0.153%
0.146%
0.143%
0.142%
0.138%
0.137%
0.131%
0.130%
0.128%
0.128%
0.127%
0.121%
0.119%
0.115%
0.109%
0.109%
0.101%
0.097%
0.093%
0.088%
0.086%
0.084%
0.083%
0.081%
0.081%
0.080%
0.078%
0.075%

0.072%



111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

(Retail and Car Park within Ying Fuk Court)

(Car Park within San Wai Court)

(Car Park within Yee Nga Court)

(Car Park within Tin Yau Court)

(Car Park within King Lai Court)

(Car Park within Fung Lai Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hung Hom Estate)
(Car Park within Hong Keung Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Tin Wang Court)

(Retail and Car Park within Hong Shui Court)
(Car Park within Kwai Hong Court)

(Car Park within Pang Ching Court)
|

(Car Park within Lower Wong Tai Sin (I) Estate)

(Car Park within Chuk Yuen (North) Estate)
(Retail and Car Park within Ko Yee Estate)
*
The Quayside
700

700 Nathan Road, Mong Kok

Link Square, Shanghai
EC

EC Mall, Beijing

Metropolitan Plaza, Guangzhou

Beijing Jingtong Roosevelt Plaza, Beijing

CentralWalk, Shenzhen

2020 31
RICS
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0.071%
0.066%
0.065%
0.064%
0.056%
0.050%
0.046%
0.042%
0.039%%
0.034%
0.033%
0.026%
0.022%
0.013%

0.009%
6.023%

2.718%
4.609%
1.990%
2.975%
1.758%
4.520%

120.983%

2020 31
2017 HKIS
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2020 31 2019 31
9,007 9,082
7,791,925 7,758,604
6,815 6,660
) 8,074,377 7,990,671
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
31 31 31 31 31
96.5 97.1 97.0 96.1 96.0
2018 2019 31 2019
2019 2020 31 2020 31
2020 31
883,127
457
2020
2020 31 2019 31
733 752
1,407 988
378,750 378,750
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
31 31 31 31 31
97.8 98.5 99.5 99.6 99.5
97.4 95.5 99.3 100.0 100.0
10
10
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®)
13 14 15
( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )| ( )
( ( ( ( ( ( ( (
) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
13
2018 ¢ | 178,594 (2,441,380 | 175,836 (2,403,678 83.06 1,135 81.78 1,118
14
2019 ¢ > | 188,739(2,580,062 | 185,775 (2,539,544 89.48 1,223 88.07 1,204
15
2020 ¢ | 159,711 (2,183,249 | 156,712 2,142,253 77.61 1,061 76.15 1,041
2017 12 2,673
2018 12 10 2,759
2019 12 10 2,966
2005 11 25
2019 86.45 1181.77
2019 10 85.45 1168.10
2019 11 80.00 1093.60
2019 12 82.50 1127.78
2020 79.00 1079.93
2020 72.20 986.97
2020 65.70 898.12
2020 69.60 951.43
2020 57.95 792.18
2020 63.35 865.99
2020 60.15 822.25
2020 61.70 843.44
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. 2017 2018 31 5,431 249.78
14 2018 2019 31 5,723 271.17
15 2019 2020 31 5,965 287.19
s 2017 2018 31 37.5 3.7
H 2018 2019 31 11.0 3.0
8 2019 2020 31 (10.3) 4.4

A B =+ Bx 100

A+ Bx 100
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®
13 1,561,196 0 64,504,500
2017 2018 31 .561, ,504,
2012;1 2019 31 1,407,782 0 42,145,500
2018 2020 31 411,632 0 51,900,500
2020 31 2007LTI 477,632

51,900,500
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2
1
2
2008
2020 22
2020 22

2,057,898,386
205,789,838

31

10
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GAV

DRI
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CCASS
HKsCC CCASS
CCASS
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(

(

(

20
i ii
20
iii
20
i ii iii
2020 31 51,900,500
— 1 —5 4 — 2
—2
)
)
)

202/420



(

(

)

)

HSBC

2020

31
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29

50,000,000

30
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@

15

0.10
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10

21

10
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)
(vii)
viii)
(i)
2007 23
2007
—4
22
2007 LTI
2019 30

(1) (i)
(iv)
(1)
23
(1)
(i)
2007 LTI
2007 LTI
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(vi)

20

2007 LTI
10

2007 LTI 2017
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L
S
LP
L 113,471,409 5.51
ABP Stichting Pensioenfonds ABP
JP L 80,879 L 187,289,107
JPMorgan Chase & Co. L 13,203,863
S 13,892,431
JPIC L 4,638,537
L 9.10
¥ LP 153,385,134 S 0.67
L 15,980,694 LP 7.45
S 13,892,431
(L&LP)
153,385,134)
L 125,667,924 6.10
State Street Corporation
L 124,124,695 6.03
The Capital
Group Companies, Inc.
L 190,923,853 9.27
BlackRock, Inc.
S 901,000 0.04
APG N.V. APG N.V. APG N.V.
ABP APG
N.V. APG N.V. ABP
113,471,409
JPMC
9,402,927 632,000
162,750
1,200,000 3,193,899
4,214,278
13,182,827
657,000 1,316,710
3,320,649 6,928,600
959,868
190,923,853
901,000
766,500
413,000
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2020 31 2,057,898,386
15
2020 31
15
2020 31
2020 2019
31 30
)
88,750 - - - 48,394 137,144 0.0066 137,144
118,089 - - - 12,489,987 | 2,608,076 0.1267 | 4,108,076
- - - - 364,486 364,486 0.0177 -
72,220 - - - 14,828 87,048 0.0042 87,048
- - - - 11,328 11,328 0.0005 11,328
8,000 - - - 15,284 23,284 0.0011 23,284
8,500 - - - 15,438 23,938 0.0011 23,938
12,750 - 12,000 - 16,074 40,824 0.0019 40,824
108,750 - - - 18,432 127,182 0.0061 127,182
25,000 - - - 17,755 42,755 0.0020 42,755
20,750 - - - 16,074 36,824 0.0017 36,824
9,750 - - - 16,034 25,784 0.0012 31,784
792,300 - - - 776,188 | 1,568,488 0.0762 | 1,568,488
)
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2020 31 2,057,898,386
63,750
2020
2019 10
2017 LTI
2019
2020 31
15
2020 31
2020 31 2019 30
7,616,772 0.37 10,239,473
The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited HSBC
31,000 0.00 1,000
Principal Financial Services, Inc.
HSBC HSBC
2020 31 HSBC 682,022
2020 31 2,057,898,386
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2020 31 2020 31
CEO CFO
2020 31
135,819 115,085 276,471 55,527 105,230
MTN 2009
The Link Finance (Cayman) 2009 Limited 2016 21 2026 2.875
500
2020 31 2019 30
Dah Sing Bank, 49,700,000 9.94 49,700,000
Limited
HSBC 35,000 0.01 35,000
500
MTN 2009 2014
2024 3.6 500
2020 31 2019 30
7,800,000 1.56 -
HSBC 34,171,000 6.83 34,921,000

500
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2024
2019CB Link 2019 CB Limited 2019
2024 1.6 4,000
2020 31 2019 30
HSBC 22,000,000 0.55 33,000,000
40
2017 LTI
2017 10 2017 LTI
2017 22 2007 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI i
i)
2017 LTI 2019 2019 10

366,239
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2017 LTI
2017 LTI
10
10
12
12
0.1
50
50
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
2017 LTI
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2017 LTI

10

2017 LTI

12

2017 LTI

2017 LTI

10

8.1

221,456,347

0.1
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CEO

2017 LTI 2017
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2020
Aon

2017 LTI 10

2017 LTI

2020 31 2017 LTI
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2019 2020 2020
31 31

2017 2017 14 11,250 -1 @i.250) - - - 211 1,236
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 11,250 - - - - 11,250 119 764
14 2020 30

2018 2018 10,500 - - - - 10,500 275 642
2020 30

2018 2018 10,500 - - - - 10,500 183 428
2021 30

2019 2019 - 8,072 - - - 8,072 203 203
2021 30

2019 2019 - 8,072 - - - 8,072 135 135
2022 30

2017 2017 14 269,075 - | 1,981y - | (57.094) - 414 18,652
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 269,075 - - - -| 269,075 | (2,902) 13,090
14 2020 30

2018 2018 518,763 - - - -| 518,763 1,893 15,863
2020 30

2018 2018 518,763 - - - -| 518,763 3,984 14,885
2021 30

2019 2019 -| 591,693 . - -| 591,693 8,239 8,239
2021 30

2019 2019 -| 591,693 - - -| 591,693 5,506 5,506
2022 30

2018 2018 65,800 - - - - 65,800 240 2,012
2020 30

2018 2018 65,800 - - - - 65,800 505 1,888
2021 30

2019 2019 -| 116,443 - - -| 116,443 1,621 1,621
2021 30

2019 2019 -| 116,443 - - -| 116,443 1,083 1,083
2022 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - (3,500) - 4 - 66 385
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 37 238
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 85 199
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 57 132
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,414 - - - 2,414 61 61
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,414 - - - 2,414 40 40
2022 30

2018 2018 3,250 - . - - 3,250 85 199
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 57 132
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,414 - - - 2,414 61 61
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,414 - - - 2,414 40 40
2022 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - (3,500) - - 66 385
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 37 238
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 85 199
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 57 132
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,642 - - - 2,642 66 66
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,642 - - - 2,642 44 44
2022 30
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2019 2020 2020
31 31

2017 2017 14 3,500 - -|  @.500) - - 66 385
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,500 - - - - 3,500 37 238
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 85 199
2020 30

2018 2018 3,250 - - - - 3,250 57 132
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,719 - - - 2,719 68 68
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,719 - - - 2,719 46 46
2022 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - @750y - - - 70 412
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 40 255
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 92 214
2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 61 143
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,662 - - - 2,662 67 67
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,662 - - - 2,662 45 45
2022 30

2017 2017 14 4,250 - @.250) - - - 80 467
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 4,250 - - - - 4,250 45 289
14 2020 30

2018 2018 4,000 - - - - 4,000 105 244
2020 30

2018 2018 4,000 - - - - 4,000 70 163
2021 30

2019 2019 - 3,091 - - - 3,091 78 78
2021 30

2019 2019 - 3,001 - - - 3,091 52 52
2022 30

2017 2017 14 4,500 -|  @.500) - - - 84 494
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 4,500 - - - - 4,500 47 306
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,750 - - - - 3,750 98 229
2020 30

2018 2018 3,750 - - - - 3,750 65 153
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,878 - - - 2,878 72 72
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,877 - - - 2,877 48 48
2022 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - @50y - - - 70 412
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 40 255
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 92 214
2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 61 143
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,662 - - - 2,662 67 67
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,662 - - - 2,662 45 45
2022 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - 6.0y - - - 70 412
14 2019 30

2017 2017 14 3,750 - - - - 3,750 40 255
14 2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 92 214
2020 30

2018 2018 3,500 - - - - 3,500 61 143
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,642 - - - 2,642 66 66
2021 30

2019 2019 - 2,642 - - - 2,642 44 44
2022 30
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2019 2020 2020
3L 31
2017 2017 14 68,738 -1 @s.60m) -1 @o,131) -1 a.ean 2,935
14 2019 30
2017 2017 14 68,738 - - -1 e8.738) -1 3480y -
14 2020 30
2018 2018 175,075 - - -1 ars.o75) -1 @229y -
2020 30
2018 2018 175,075 - - -| @ars,075) -1 3,280 -
2021 30
2019 2019 -| 178,650 - -| @rs,650) - - -
2021 30
2019 2019 -1 178,650 - -| @rs,650) - - -
2022 30
2017 2017 14 458,686 - | @90,901) -| (67,785) -1 a9 29,027
14 2019 30
2017 2017 14 457,948 - - -| @or.642)| 350,306 | (3.781) 17,285
14 2020 30
2018 2018 473,543 - - -| @i,omy| 363,532 1,326 11,114
2020 30
2018 2018 473,543 - - -| @ia,s68)| 358,675 2,756 10,292
2021 30
2019 2019 - | 441,103 - -| 7,682 | 383,421 5,341 5,341
2021 30
2019 2019 - | 441,103 - -| 7,682 | 383,421 3,569 3,569
2022 30
4,225,622 | 2,720,169 | (366.239) | (7.000) [(1.689,083) | 4.883,469 20,381 | 175,430
3.2165
98
2020 31
182.6
96
1.9
2020 31
2020 31 2020 31
2020
2017 LTI
2019 10
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2017 LTI
2017 LTI 21

2007 LTI

2007 23 2007 LTI 2017 22 2007 LTI

2007 2020 31 2007 LTI
15,684,034 2020 31
2,057,898,386 0.8 2017 22 2007 LTI

2007 LTI 2007 LTI
2019 30 2007 LTI

2007 LTI

2007 LTI 2018

2007 LTI

2020 31 2007 LTI
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2019 2020 2020
3L 31
2016 2016 11 14 13,750 - @3,750) - - - 132 1,467
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 231,000 - | 43,737) -1 (e7.263) - 1,558 15,336
11 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 38 427
11 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,000 - (4,000) - - - 38 427
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,250 - (4,250) - - - 4 453
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - (4,500) - - - 43 480
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 5,000 - (5,000) - - - 48 533
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 5,000 - (5,000) - - - 48 533
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - (4,500) - - - 43 480
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 4,500 - (4,500) - - - 43 480
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 54,500 -1 @3.912) -|  (20,588) i 368 3,618
1 14 2019 30
2016 2016 11 14 403,472 - | (250,483) -1 @52,9809) - 2,709 26,726
1 14 2019 30
738,472 -| @17,632) -| (260,840) - 5,109 50,960
96
3.6
31
2020 31 2020 31
2007 LTI
2019 10
i
5,750
2,604 ii
4,750
3,357
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2007 LTI
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€Y)

@

®

38

59

23

103

Institute of Certified Public Accountants

13.67

193

Independent Auditor’s Report

2020

2221420

131
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€H)
2020 31
31
2020 2019
( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
10,718 146,515 10,037 137,206
(2,498)  (34,148) (2,348)  (32,097)
8,220 112,367 7,689 105,109
(416)  (5,687) (405)  (5,536)
15(a) (23,948)  (327,369) 12,269 167,717
2,761 37,743
183 2,502 85 1,162
(630)  (8,612) (598)  (8,175)
10 (16,591) (226,799) 21,801 298,020
12 (712)  (9,733) (1,359)  (18,578)
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(C))
REIT HKAS 24
2020 31
HSBC
HSBC *
(i)
)
)
)
REIT
() 2020 31
2019 11 17
) 2019 30
REIT 2019 11 17
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()
HKFRS
( )
2020 2019
() (23) (20)
HSBC ()
(55)
HSBC (61) (65)
HSBC 38 39
HSBC 20 10
) )
O ®)
@ @)
@ @
©) (16)
)
13) €Y
)
() () €)) ®)
®)
() 9 8
() ) @
)
)
0.008 0.03
150,000
2020 0.006 0.015
)
() 2019 11 17
2019 30
2020 31
)
2019 31
2020 31
2019 31
)
)
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©
( )
2020 2019
©) @
HSBC (2,820) (1,940)
HSBC (55)
HSBC (5) ®)
HSBC 4) ®)
HSBC o (123)
HSBC 6,569 2,002
@
2020 31 10 10
“ Audited”
26 28
( )
2020 2019
9 8
128 143
33 122
170 273
2019 2020 HKFRS
2019 2020
2020 2019
)
1,000,001 3,000,000 1 2
3,000,001 5,000,000 2
5,000,001 7,000,000 2
7,000,001 9,000,000 2 4
9,500,001 10,000,000 1 1
10,000,001 10,500,000 1 1
11,000,001 11,500,000 1
11,500,001 12,000,000 1
12,500,001 13,000,000 2
13,500,001 14,000,000 1®
32,000,001 32,500,000 1@
73,500,001 74,000,000 1@
112,500,001 113,000,000 1©
() 12 13
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)
) &) (b) 2019
© (d)
2020
26 27
71 74
() 2019
2019
2019
2020 2019
9 10
21 16
2 11
32 37
32
2020 31
2020 2019
6,384 6,259
10,061 10,432
1,125 1,416
17,570 18,107
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2020 31
100
22,000,000 100
160,539,360 100
100
39,500,000 100
162,500,000 100
60
5,000 100
ECH 1,242,300,418 100
R-E. 100
HK 1,000,000 100
600,000,000 100
2019 CB 100
HK 100
100
1,000,000 100
5,000,000 100
(HK 100
287,595,000 100
2006 100
2009 100
100
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year enced 3| March 2020

o it}
Mo HIEE M HES M
Ravanie & 0.1 WOF
TRt PG Sl A (24%E) o)
IET PRIy iNC0me B30 T6RS
Germrrad and adminititalive erpene (#18) [405)
Chings i Talr values ol ieestmssl properties 15{a) {22,%40) 11265
Gains on diEposal of Svestmant propties - L%
Intecest incomne 183 85
Finance costs ] (o3a) {500y
{Loss]/profiy befere taxation and transactions with Unltholdars o (6,557 BT
Tasation 2 () nass
(Loas)/prafit for the year, belore transsctions with Unithalden (17,30) A4
Dtributtions paid to Unitholde:
= 02D interm divtnib ben (L. 96E) -
= 204 final chestribartion [2.564) -
= 3% intenm disfiGution - [k ]
= 3018 final distritation - {1750}
{23,333) HEs
Represanted by
Change i net aisetd antributabhe 10 Unithelde, exdloding idued of
fe UNiES And units bought back {24.83%) U260
Aot aiing from exchangs resene and cath fiow hedging reserve
mayements I8 1,783 L5852
Man-comrolling intaness {187) i1t}
23,230 =525
(Loss)peolit loe th yedr. bifons taniadtiond with Lnitholders atritiutabse to
= Unitholders (hoie) B {7.123) e
- Mor-contmoifing infemest {1e1) it |
{17,200) 20447

The notes on pages 88 to 143 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Mote: (Losslreamings per unit, based upon {lom]/prafit for the year, belom tansactions with Uritnolden attributabs to Untholdem and the weighted
iveage number of units in Bive, [ S8t oul in Mobe O bo the consabdated findncial tlatemems
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Aftar
 Bafare Transactions tramsactians
transactions with with Mar-
Unithodders Mt i) ok (] interest Total
M HESM i HKSM L
For the year ended 31 March 2020
L fof the yedr {7y 18,908 1.1 {181 1,602
CFttes € ompr Eherriheg INcOme
DB NFE iy D8 reClasufed sirsequently
151k condobodabed imoome stalemant
= Carsh fiaw Pedging resere (o) - %) ™ )
= Exchange ressée {1,B687) - {1,687} - {1,587)
Tatal comprehantive bass for the year {18,90%) LY - (] [rmn)
Fior 1he yenr srclad 31 Maech 209
Prod for the yoar o] [4]:%rra 1,552 na 1560
Criteter Comprabarehag ingamss
e That mary be necletified subsequently
1ot condnbdated inoomss Labement

- Cash e Feisdiging regerve (238 = (v ] - (236)
- Exchange resare 38 = (L3} = 0316
Total comprehenive income fai the yes /e 41 B ia - n3 5]

The notes on pages 93 to 143 are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Mighed

() Transatih with UriCholods Comatise Thi thilrdulions to Untholgen of HKSS.50) miller (3076 HCSS,5T7 million) and chang in mil asen artiaiacie 1o
Unithoidery, @xiuding i55ues of R LNt afd units hought Dack, weiich i & Oecrese of HKS24ETS malbon (209E an increase of HKSTE 260 mallon)

i)  inaccomance with tha Tnat Deed, the urds of Link Beal Extate investrent Tnust contain condractual abligatiors fo pay fo ity Unitholders cash drgnbutiong
and a5 upon temrination of the trust, a share of i met cash proceeds derved from the sale or realiation of the assets of the trast less any Rabdites, in
accordance wath their proportionate nbesests in the Snust ot the date of the termination The Unithokders’ funds are heselore clnsfiod = a financial Kbty
rather than equity in sccordance with Hang Kong Accounting Standard 32 Fmancial instuments; Fresertation: Consittent with Unthoiden' funds being
classified oy 3 Tnancial kablity, the distributions o Undholdery and changs in net Jasets sttibutsble to Unitholders, excuding miuses of sew units and undy

L to L holden, after the bidmactiont wilh Lnitholders, 5 fon.

bought back, ane Fadnce casti Acccedingly. the total com
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For the year ended 31 March 2020

‘2020 it
Mo HIEE M HESM
{Leds]/prafit far the yesr, belore tranisdtioni with Unithalden sttributable
te Unithobders {17.123) HO3IF
Adpust et
~ Change in far values of investment procenies attnbucabie to Lnitholderns. n.mm [AsY
= Perfgrmed taxation on change in far vauees of imvestment properties attributable
0 Linithoiders (258) i
= Change in fair values of desnvartive Components of convertitile bonds [RiTy!] -
= Change in fair vaives of financial Fshiuments {ams) 90
= (aairm on disposals of invesiment properties, net of Sramaction costs - (3,761
- Depreciation snd amaitistion of real eitate and ielated siaets al -
= Dithar o -Cash Income (R {1713
D retiornary distibtean (Hote (i} Hri 51
Total Distributable Amount (Hote (1) 5965 por:]
Indesim distribusicn, paid 1,565 2,759
Final distiibution, bo be pald o the Unithalden 1,599 1564
Total dirtributiont for the year 5585 L% i1
Units in lszue at 31 March n 2,057,598, 388 L5, 320754
Detnibulions per unit fo Undholders
- Irterim distribution e urier. paid (hote (&) HE LAY conts HEANLA2 cents
= Final fistriudion per unit, 1o De pasd to the Lirsthalders (dote (w)) HKWS.72 conts HIC055 cents.
Dlstribution per unit for the year HEIET.Y9 comts HEITII centy.

The notes oh pages 98 10143 ane an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Beates

1]

24

Lirrter 1 Etme Of tha Trul Deed, Link Real Eate inssviensnt Trumt i 1equitsd to ditirens to Unitholden ne ket than S0% of it divtributable mooms for
wich linancial yead Dirbantable noime, sconidog bo e Tl Deed, o the Geoups conschadated prohl afte Lanation siinbatable 1o Unholdsis, &
aduistid to elimirate the elect ol certain now-ca AdusTmets which hawe heen mooded in The conaldated Fnome Tatsment b (e vt year
Foal 1t it fradbindt 3 Wanch JOOG the hanages P decied (o distribaute 0% (D015 00%) of (i ditibuCalie intome to Unfhokien. in sddition, te
hanager recorrenchid 3 capital rebum im the torm ol & decretisheny dstribution of FCSIOT madlon (RN5: HESSE millics]. Together with the dacretiahey
diribtion, Totsl Dintutable Amour epretented 00% (00 10TR) of the diatributsbie ircorne of e Group for the yeal anded 11 Mach 2000

Thar infterim distrbution per unit of HEELAT conts (2019: HKEOGE conts) for the s months ended 30 Seplemias 2019 wii caCulated tased on the imlenm
distrimtion of HESZ B milllon (20T HCSLTSE milion] for Ehe peiod and 206667 BBG wnits (2008 1T SH6,754 Lnity] in ivwe 24 at 30 Septamber 207,
Thee ilerim diztribution was paid bo Unithoiden on 50 Decemiber 201

The fnal gigtreubon par unat of HOME T cends (301 HEA0LE cents) for the year ended 1 March 2090 i Calouianed based on e Bnal 342ibuhon 1o b2
ik e e Unitoicers of HESE IR0 miion (0T HESLOE4 milfion) for ke secord half of the Tirancial yeas and 2O5TR%EIBE unils Q099 L300.101.254 uni
S0 a6t 31 Marcn J020, WILROUE 18EING NS0 RCO0UNT any Change i 1R nUMEST Of uniTs in [S5ue subsequent 10 the apgecysl od The comolcared
finare ] sLatmmints, Th feal iinbasion will Be pald 1o Ueithobdis an 10 hdy 2000
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Af at 31 Manch 3020

Flerii] 2oy

Kate HEE M WIS
Aeniti
Goodwil 1] Ay 413
ivesimant progertied 15 WA, e I 406
Propey, plant and equlpment L] 1380 e |
Financial aseets at amorted cost i) 2,756 =
Depecits and prepayiments &9 L]
Drerivativee Francial inssruments 25 m a2
Trade avd otbe recelvabibes. L] 1,21 533
Bank deposits =] - 4035
Casn and cash equivalents L) 7.0 1504
Tatal asssts 207,618 226517
Liabilties, exchuding net sssets stiributable to Unitholden
Detered tax Labiltios n .8M 3
Long-term ircerdive schemes povhion n 1385 0
Cribest liabilities a 3.0 5.0
interest hearang Hakelties 13 15650 24,277
Cormertible bonds a4 3,50 -
Security diposils 1M LT
Darrvative Financial mstremets s ER 745
Prowision for taxation I n
Trade payabies, receipts n advance and sconubs % 2.640 2,585
Total Habilithes, lwding met azsets It bile to Unliheldsers 47,50 anon
Non-centraliing intarest Aon A7
et assets attributable fo U =3, MR, 730
UndEs in s o 2,057,598, 386 210630254
Het aisets per unit atiribotable to Unitholders HES 7781 HELES 48

The notes on pages 53 to 143 are an integral part of thete conalidated financial statements,

On bahalf of the Board of Directors of
Link Asse? Management Limited, as manager of Link Real Estate investment Trust

Hicholas Charles ALLEN George Kwok Lung HONGCHOY
Chairman Chief Executive Office:
1June 2020 1 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and
Net Assets Attributable to Unitholders

For the year ended 31 March 2020

miributable to Tetal eantroling
Lmniheddurs raLErvEt ntarest
Hate Hit§m™ HES'M HHEMA
AL Apl 2019 180,739 ELL S8
lsmaance of unity Lrder 1B 2007 LT Plan Ly = -
Urels bowught back for cancefation [a,240) - -
Lorss fow thee year encled 31 March J020,
before ransacions with Unitholders 17,123) - (787)
Distributions pald o Unitholdern
- 2L inperim drssnibu tan {2.964) - -
= 20N forad Gtribastion {L564] = -
Change In fair values of cash Now hedges i) - [LE-1] -
amount Iranadered 10 the cormolicaitc neome STRTETEN i - £t} -
Exchange legs on Transiation of Tinancis statesments il - [, &AT) -
Amount arking from sxchangs ressne
and ik tiow hedging reiéree movemsnts Fi) {1, 783) 1,783 -
Changs n nel 25511 a1 rbutabe 10 Lintholoss amd non-contnlisg
interett far the yeit ended 11 March J020, exclodng Haues of
reesw units and units bought back [2a,85%) - (ra1)
At 31 March 2020 58,7 580 406
ALY Apnil 2078 TR, 5594 520 474
diibfite oF units urider 1he 2007 LT Pan w0t - -
Lirsins Boeagnt Back far canceiatson .26 = =
Frofdit for the year enced 31 Margh 2005,
b Eransactions with Lintholoen 20139 = ™
Deitributions paid to Unithohdern
- X% inténm distnlnition 2758 - -
2015 final distributian WLT5E)
Change in {air values of cash flow hedges Fa: | - gy -
Amount raniiered 1o the cormolidated inoome STtement F ] = 74) -
Eschange loks on translation of financial statements Fi:] ' [L3'%) =
amount arsing hom exchanis ressne
ana canh flow hedging reterse mowements i) MLELT 1583 -
Chang in net msets attrbutabie to Unitholdeds and non-cantioliag
Interest for 1he year endad 31 March 2019, sxclsding Eases of
ey il S il Ll boughl etk T2EN - il
AL 31 Manch 2019 AT SEQ gy

The notes on pages 98 to 143 ane an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Fer the year snded 31 March 2020
o 2018
Kate HEE M ML
Oparating sctivithen
Mot cash generated from operating activities 29a) 6,580 534
Investing activities
acpesitinn of butdrewes {67 {7.88)
Proceeds from dispasal of investment properties - 12030
Additans 1o Invertment properties {1, 34m) (2627}
Additions o propeety, plant and eguipmant (Fal ] ()
Purchase of fmancal assets at omortised cost [FRerid] -
ntefest Hiome roelved i o2
Depost paid Tof acquisition of & property [¥65) -
Decieans in bane deporsits waih origenal matunty o o e
thres months 9,005 A43
Mat cash (used inlgerarated from investing activitles .3
Financing activitles
Procesds [rom intenest Dearg Ratities, net of [rarsation (o5 1,610 14,804
Hepayment of Irteresl Dearing liabiites (15, &74) (124}
Proceeds from convertiie banos, net of transaction costs 3,974 -
Inciease (A amouont due 1o Aon-contioling inerest 158 G50
INCRTESE FEperGes paid (Eaz) (48}
Bayment of lease lablities {z) E
Distributiont paid to Unitholdern {5, 930) {551
Linits baughl back 1o canfedation (#,240) (1l
IR IRt e et e e Lt B R g e .
Mt Ircrenisfidoeraaie) in cash ane eath squivalents 5.1 (426}
Cath and cash equivalents at ¥ Apil 1654 3554
EHpct on enchange ate changes on cash and cash equivalents {uoa)y [&4)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 March LE] T.ETY 2694

The notes on pages 98 to 143 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Link Real Estate Investment Trust (LInk) s a collective investrment scheme authorised snder section 104 of the
Securithes and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kongl. Link ls governed by a trust deed entered into
on & September 2005 (3 amended and suppliemented by 13 Supplemental Deeds dated 4 November 2005, B November
2005, 16 January 2006, 21 Movember 2006, 13 July 2007, 23 July 2007, 5 October 2000, I3 July 2010, 25 July 2002, &2
February 200, 15 January 2015, 25 July 2008 and 1 April 2020) {together the “Trust Deed”).

The principal activity of Link and its subsidiaries (the "Graup?) is imeasting in real estate (other than real estate of a

rasidential, hotel or serviced aparment nature] and undertaking property development and relates acthities in respect
of 2l types of davelopments that contzin retall and/er commercial portions. The addresses of the registered offices of

the Manager, Link Asset Management Limied, and the Trustes, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, are 20/F,

Tower 1, The Quiayside, 77 Hol Bun Road. Kwun Tang, Kowdoon, Hong Kong and 1 Cuseen's Road Central, Hong Kang,
respectively

Basis of Preparation

(a) statement of Compliance
The conslidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reperting
Standards (HKFRS2T), the requirerments of the Trust Deed and the relevant dischomens regquirersents as set out in
Appendix C of the Code on Real Estate imwastmant Trusts (the "REIT Code’) issued by the Securities and Futures
Cornmission of Hong Kong, HKFRSS is a collective term which includes all applicable HKFRS:, Hong Kang
Aocounting Standands (HKASST) ana Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Puiiic
Arcountants

() Accounting Convention
Duting the year, the Group has changed the presentation of the consolidated statement of financial position by
adopting the liguidity basis as it Is considered to be more relevant and meaningful to readers based on the timing
of thelr realization or settlement of ascets and Rabdlities as justified by the market situation The change in the
presentatian has been applied retraspectively,

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the hestoncal cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of dervative financial instruments, long-term incentive schemes provision, derivative components
of convertible bonds, investment progerties and non-controlling interest put option obligation, which are stated
at fair values as explainad in the significant accounting policies set out in Note 3

Lirk Hoal Exfate inyestment Tnnt Annual Report 20992020

276/420



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of Preparation [Continued)

(c) Adoption of Mew and Revised Accounting Policies

For the year ended 31 March 2030, the Group has adopted the following raw standands, amendmonts and
interpretations which became effective or available for early adoption

HEAS 19 Amendments Plan Amendmaent, Cortailment or Settiemen:

HKAS 2B Arnendments Long-tarm Intenests In Assoclates and Jolnt Ventures
HEFRS 3 Amendments Defmition of a Business

HEFRS § Amencments Prepayment Features with Negative Compentation
HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Irt 23 Uneertainty oviér Income Tax Treatments

Anrual Improsements wo HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The adoption of those now standands, amendmants and interpretations has not had any sgrificant effect on the
resuits reported and financlal position of the Group, The accounting policles have been updated where applicakcie
for these new standards, amendments and interpratations.

This following naw standards and amendments, which have baen publishad but ane not vat offactive, have not
been earty adopted in the consolidated financial statements. These ane effective for the Group’s accounting
pariods beginning on ar after 1Apdl 2020,

HEAS 1 and HEAS B Amendments Definition of Matenal®

HKAS 39, HKFRS T and HKFRS 9 Amandments Interest Rate Benchmark Reform™

HKFRS 10 and HEAS 28 Amendmisits Sale or Contribition of Assets between an Wiwestor anhd Its
Associate or Joint Venture™

HKFRS 17 Inurance Contracts

Conzeptusl Frarmewadk fod Financial Repaning 2018 Revissd Conceptual Framewaork for Financial Reporting™

L] Efective Fot bicouniing percds beginning on of STHef | lanuary 2020
L abipctive for acoounting panceds beginning on or after | lanuary 2008
B e mandatoy ifpclive Site o deoetmined vt BUL saity IpElcaten it peimited

Thie Group 1 in the process of making an assessmant of the impact of these new standards and amendments epon
initial applicaton

Governance, Diclowurss and Financlal $1atemsnts 3%

277/420



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting polickes adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set ot
below. Save as the adoption of new and revised accounting policies, these policies have been consistently applied 1o all
the years presenied

(a) Basis of Consalidation

The consalidated financial statements incofporate the ascets and labdities of Link and all its subshdianes as at 31
March 2020 and thelr results for the wear then ended,

Subsidiaries are entities, including structured entities. over which the Geoup has control The Group controls an
entity when the Gioup ks exposed 1o, of has rghts 10, varlablke returns Taom it imaahsement with the entity ansd has
the ability to affect those retuins throwgh its power over the entity.

Subsicharkes are consolidated from the date on which cantrol is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-ompany transactions, Balances and unrealised gaing on transactions BETWeEn group Companies are
elirminated Unrealised lasses are glso eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of iImpaimment of the
558t ransfered,

The Group applies the acqusition method to account for busingss combinations The consideration transfemed for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transfered, the lizbliities Incumred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the units izswed by the Group. The consideration transfered includes the fair valve of
ary asset or llability resulting from a contingent consideration anangement. dentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent labilithes assumed in 2 busingss combination are measored initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. Acquisition refated costs are expensed in the consolidated income statement during the
period in which they are incumed.

\Where the Group enters into a contract that contains an obligation (for example a written put option exercisable
by the contract counterparty) to acquire shares in a parthy-owned subsidiary company from the non-controlling
interest, which i not part of a business combination, the Group records a financial liabifity for the presant value of
the redermption amount with a comesponding charge directly to net assets attributable to Unithodders. Changes o
the value of the financial Eabiity are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

From 1 Apeit 20¥9, the Group has adopted the HEFRS 3 amendments. which clanifies the definition of & business and
introduces an optional concentration test. Business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition
date is onor after 1 April 2019 may elect to apply an optlonal concentration test, where substantially alf of the fair
value of gross assets acquired & concentrated in a single identifizble asset or a group of similar identifiable assets,
the acquired st of activities and assets is not a business and the transaction is then not a business comaination.
Where the concentration test is not applied nor met, a transaction may still be considered to be an asset
acquisition if a substantive process has not been acquired. A substantive process is the ability to develop or
carvert inputs into outputs.

(b) Segment Reporting
A segment is 2 distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing a particular type of
service, of in providing sendces within a particular economic environment, 2nd which i subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments. Consistent with the Group's intemal financial reporting to
the Manager, being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpase af making decisions about allocating
resources and assessing performance, segment assets consist primarily of tangible assets and receivables and
segment iabilities mainly comprizse operating lisbilities

W00 Lk Hesl Extate nyestment Tnet Anovual Repost 20082030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cantinuad)

(c) Forelgn Currency Translation
() Functional and Prosantation Currancies

Iems inchuged in the financial statements of each of the Group™s entities are medsured using the cumency of
the peimary econsmic environment in whech the antity operates (the “Tunctional eurrency’). The
consclidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong Dollars, which is the functional
currency of Link and the Group's presentation cumrency,

() Transactione and Balances
Foreign currency transactions are transiated Into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevalling
at the dates of the transactions of valuation whene items are re-measurad. Forelgn exchange gains and bosses
resuiting from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation at the repcrting date exchange
rates of monetary assets and llabilities denominated in foreign currenches are recognised in the consolidated
Income statement. except when defened In other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualfying net investmant hedges

(iily Group Companies
The results and financial position of all the Group's entities that have a functional curmency ditferent from the
presantation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position of the Group's entities are translated at the
repeeting date closing rate;

- Income and expenditunes for each income statemen? of the Group's entities are translated at average
exchange rates (unless ths average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenditures are translated at the
rates on the dates of the trangactions); and

= all resulting cumency transiation differences are recognised in other comprehentive incomea

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acguisition of a foreign entity are treated as atsets and
liabilities of the fareign entity and translated at the reporting date closing rate. Currency tramslation
differences arising are recognised in other comprehentive intome.

{d) Investment Properties
A property that is held for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, is classified a2 an investmeant
property. It also includes properties that are being constructed or developed for futune use 25 investment
properlies
Investment property comprises land held under government leates and treated under finance lease and buildings
held under finance leases.
An Investment property is measured inftially at (ts cost, including related transaction coste.

After initlal recognition, an investment propery is cartied at fair vaue, representing open market value determined
at each reparting date. The canying value of the investmant property is reviewed every six months and is
independenthy valuad by external valuer at least annually.

Arny gain or lass ansing on disposal of the investment property (calculated as the difference batween the disposal
proceeds and the carrying amaunt, including revaluation, of the asset) is recognised in the consolidated incarme
staternint i the period in wikch the investment propeay s disposed of,

Changes in fair values of the investment properties are recognised in the consalidated inceme statement.

Subsequent expenditure ks capltalised 1o the asset's carrying amount only when it i probabde that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cott of the item can be measured
feliaily. All othes repar and mainlenance costs are expensed in the consoldated income statement during the
period in which they e Incurmed
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e}

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment, inciuding ngnt-of-Use Fweets drising froam property leased for own use, ane stabed
at historical cost less acoumilated depreciation and accumulated Impalment losses. Histedical cost includes
expendifune that s directly attributabie to the scquisition of the Remd

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carmying amount of recognised as a separate asset. as appropriate,
onky when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the iwerm will flow 1o the Group and the
cost of the (vem can be measured reliabhy, All other repalr and maimtenance costs are expensed in the consobdated
incame statement during the pericd in which they are incured,

Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment is calculated using the straight-line method 1o allocate cost less
estimated residual value bess accumulated Enpalrment losses over the estimated uselul Iives as follows:

Land and building Lease terms

Leasehold irnprovements Five wears of laase tarms (If apoScable)
Right-of-use assets Lease terms

Equipment Three to five years

Motor vehicles Five years

An asset’s residupl valpe and useful ife are reviewed and adjusted if aporopriate, at each reporting date.

An asset’s carning amount i written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s camying amount i
greater than its estimated recoverable amount, a5 an impairmaent loss

Gains and bosses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the camying amounts and are
recognised in the consofidated income statement.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financlal assets at amortised cost are recognised Initially at falr valee and subsequently measured at amortised
cost, kess provision for impaimment. The Group holds cetain dett securities with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows which represents solely payments of principal and interests and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method Regular way purchases of sales of debt
securities ate recognised and cerecognised on a trade date basis.

Imterest income from financial assets at amortised cost is recognised wsing the effective interest rate method The
Growp assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit osses associated with the financial azsets at
amortised cost. The impairment methocdalogy applied depends on whether there has been 2 significant increase in
cradit risk.

Trade and Other Recelvables

Trade and other receivables are recognited initially at fair value and subsequently mezsured at amortised cost, less
provision for impairment The Group holds the trade and other receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method The Group applies the HEFRS 9 simplfied appicach in assessing expected credit losses which uses a
liletime expected loss allowance for trade receivables. The expecied credit losses on trade receivables are
calculated using a provisicn matrix where a provision rate gpplies based on its historical observed default rates
adjusted by current and forward-looking Information
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies [Continusd)

(h} Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inchede cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other chort-tarm highly biquid
imvestments with eriginal maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts

(i) Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisithon over the fair value of the Group's snare of the net
identifinbde assets of the acquined business at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on business combinations is stated
a5 a separate asset Separately recognised goodwill s tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
sccumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed. Going ond losses on the disposal
ol an entity Include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. Goodwill s allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of impairment testing

(i) Unitholders’ Funds as a Financial Liability
In acoordance with the Trust Deed, Link is required to distribute to Unitnoldars not less than 907% of the Group's
Totzl Distributabbe Income for each financlal vear. The trust also has a Amited (ife of 80 years from the date of
establishment. Accordingly, the units contain contractual obligations of the bust to pay to its Unitholders cash
distributions and alvo upon tenmination of the trust, a share of all net cash proceeds derfved from the sale or
realisation of the assets of the trust |ess any labilities, in accordance with their proportionate interests in the trust
ak the date of the termination. The Unitholders' funds are therefore dassified as a financial liabllity rather than
equity in accordance with HKAS 32: Financial instruments: Fresentation This lizbility is shown an the consolidated
stetement of financial position as the net assets attributable to Unitholders, Distributiors to Unitholdars are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(k) Trade Payables and Provisions
(i} Trade Payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subseguently measured at amertised cost using the
effective interest method.

(i) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
Is probable that an outfiow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amownt can be made. Where a provision is expected to be reimbursed, the reimbursement i recognised
as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions ane measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects cufrent market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the cbligation The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest
axpense.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

m

(m)

Leases

Frosm 1 Apei 2008, the Group has adopted the HXFRS 16 retrospectively and changed 15 accounting pokcy for leases
where the Group is the lessee.

A5 the Groap's non-cancelabde operating leases expired within 12 manths from the date of indtial application of
HKFRS 16, thie Group used the practical expedent peimitted by HEKFRS 16 ta account foe these a8 short teem lsases
Consequently, the adoption of HKFRS ¥ has nat led to an adjustment 1o the opening consolidated statement of
financial position

Leases are recognised as a right-ol-use asset and a comesponding Aabillty at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the group, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months of less and leases
of low-value assets. Assets and labslithes arlsing from & lease are intlally measured on a present value basis Lease
liabilities are the et presant vabse of the fixed lease payments discounted wsing the interest rate Implicit in the
lease and subsequently stated at amortised cost

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost, The fingnce cost s charged to the consclidated
income statement aver the bease period 5o a5 to prodece a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liabilicy for each period.

On the Group's consolidated statement of finoncial position, right-of-use asset has been ncluded in proparty, plant
and equipment and lzase liabifities have been included in acoruals.

Current and Deferred Taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and dedemed tax Tax ks recognised In the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprenensive income of directiy in
equity. In this case the tax Is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly In equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge Is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
repatting date In the countiies where the Geoup's subsidiaties operate and generate taxable Income, Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax retusms with respect fo siuations in which applicable tax requlation 5
subject to interpeetation It establishes provisions whete appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
b0 thee Lax authorities

Deferred taxation s provided in full, using the Rability method, on temporary differances ansing between the fax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts In the consofidated financlal statements. Deferred
taxation is determined wsing tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the defemred tax Hability is
settied.

Deferred tan assets are recognised to the extent that it i probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary dfferences arnising on investrments in subsidiares, except where the
timing of the reversal of the tempaorary dfferences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred taxation ansing from investment property is detemmined based on the expected manner a3 to how the
investment praperties will be recovered {through sale or throwgh use) with the cofresponding tax rate applied
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Palicias (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Interest Bearing Liabilities

Intenest bearing labilities ane recognised indtially at fair vakue, net of transaction costs incumed. Interest Bearing
liabilities are subsequently stated at armortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
COS1S] and the redemption value i recognised in the consoidated ncome statement over the period of the
Imstrument using the effective interest method.

Convertible Bonds
Convertible bonds with conversion right comprise a derivative companent and a llzbility component.

At imitial recognition the dervative component of the converbible bonds is messured at fair value. Any excess of
the proceeds over the amount Inltially recogresed a5 the dervative carmponent B recognised 55 the habdity
component Transaction costs rolating to the isswe of the comertibie bonds are allocated to the lability and
derlvative companents b proportian ta the sllocation of procesds. The portian of the trancaction costs relating to
thae hability component is recognised initially as part of the liability componant and the portion relating 1o the
derlvative componant is recognised immediataly n the corsalidated Inconme staterment

The derivative companent is subsequently remeasured at fair vahwe, with changes in fair value recognised
immediately in the consclidated income statement. The liability companent is subsequently measued at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in the consolidated Income statement on the liability component
is calculated using the affective interest method

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

Azzats that ase subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed by the Group for impairment whenewer
events or changes In circumstances indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverzble, An impaiment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carmying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Mon-financial assets
ather than goodwill that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impaiment at each reporting
date.

Revenue Recognition

(i) Rentals from Retall and Commercial Properties
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the tern of the lease agreement.
Contingent rental income {representing income over and above base rent) such as turnover rent, is
recognised according to the bemms of the lease agreements when the amount can be reliably maasured, in
the accounting pericd in which |t is epamned Lease incentives pravided, such as rent-free periods, are
amortized on a straight-line basks and are recognised as a reduction of renlal incoma aver the respective
term of the lease,

(i) Rentals from Car Parks
Rantals from car parks ame recognised as revenus on an accmial basis

(ili) Service Fees and Charges
Senvice fees and charges such as air conditioning income arising from the prowision of services are recognised
when such senvices are rendered

(iv) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using effective interest method.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(1)

(s)

{t)

(u)

Expenditure
Expanditures, including property related outgoings and other expenses, ane recognesed on an accrual basis

Employee Benefits
Emploves benefits such 5 wages, shlanes and bomnrses are récognised as an expense when the employes has
rendered the service.

Employee entitlements ta annual leave are recognised when they accrue 1o employees. A provision is made for the
estimated lability for anngal leave &5 a result of services mendered by emplovess up to the reporting date
Employee entitlements ta sick leave and matemnity leave are nat recognised until the time of leave. The employer's
contrbutions to the Mandatory Provident Fund fer emglowess ane expensed as imeurmed,

Employees’ Long-term Incentive Schemes
Incemtives In the form of a long-term ncentive schemes are provided to eligible emplovees (Including directoesk

Empiovee services rendered in exchangs for the grant of the long-term incentive schemes awards are recognised
&5 an expense, with a comespanding incresse in the liability incurmed, This expense is charged to the consolidated
income statement ower the vesting perleds. Until the liability is settled, the valee of the liability is re-measured at
each reporting date and at the date of settlement, with any changes in valug recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the vear. At each reporting date, estimates of the numoser of long-term incentive schemes
awerds that are expectad to vest will be revised and the impact of the revision is recognised in the consalidated
income statement. The camying value of the long-term incentive schermes awards is reviewed every six months
and i5 independently valued by extemnal valuer at least annually. If the awands do not vest on the vesting dates, the
amounts charged to the consolidated income statement will be writtan back

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

A devivative & initially recognised at fair value on the date a denvative contract is enterad into and is subsequently
re-measured at its fair value, The method of recognising the resulting gain of loss depends on whether the
derivative I5 designated as a hedging Instrument. and if so, the nature of the [tem being hedged.

At the inception of the hedging. the Group documents the economic refationship betwesn hedging instruments
and hedged items, as well as its risk management abjective and strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions

(i} Cash Flow Hedge
Hedging relationships are classified as cash fiow hedges when such relaticnships are used to hedge against
exposure to variability in cash flows that are attributable to 2 particular risk associated with a recognisad
asset or liability and such variabiity could affect profit or loss

Thee changes in the fai value af the effective portion of dervatives that are designed and qualify as cash
flow hedges aré recognised in other comprehensive income and defemed in a cash flow hedgng reserve. The
gan or loss relating 1o the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statemenl.

Amounts accumulated in hedging reserves are transferred to the consolidated incorme statement in the
periods when the hedged item aflects profit or loss However, where the hedged item subseguently results
in the recognition of 2 non-financial asset or a non-financial Fabdity, the gains or losses defemred in cash flow
hedging reserve are transferred from hedging reserve and included within the initial cost of the assator
liability,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Palicias (Continued)
(u) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities (Continued)

U]

(i)

(i

Cach Flow Hedge [Continuad)

Whn a hedging nstrement expires, of i5 sald or terminated, o when a hedge no longer meets the crteria
far hadge accounting, any cumulative defemed gain of loss and deferred costs of hedging in the cash flow
hadging reserve at that time remains in hedging reserve until the forecast transaction ocgurs, resulting in the
rgcognition of a non-financlal asset such as imventary. When the forecast transaction k5 no longer axpected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in hedging reserve ane immediately reclassified to the
consciidated income statement

Falr Value Hedge

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments 1o hecge the fair value of recognised assets o liabilities may
gualty as fair vatue hedges.

Thie Gressp uses iNterest rate swap contracts 1o hedge its exposura to vanability in fair values of recognised
liakifities against changes In market intarest rates

The Group uses Cross curmency Swap contracts 1o hedge its exposure to variabllity In fair va'ue of recognised
foreign cumency liabilities aganst changes in foreign currancy axchange rates and market intenest rates. The
changes in fair values of the cross cumency swap contracts are recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement.

Changes in the fair values of these derivative contracts, together with the changes in the fair values of the
hedged liabilities attributable to the hedged risk ane recognised In the consolidated income statement s
finance costs on intenest bearing liabilities. At the same time the carrying amounts of the hiedged Habillties in
the consolidated statement of financial position are adusted for the changes in fair values.

Hedge Ineffectiveness

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through pesiodic
prospective effectiveness assessments to ensune that an economic relationship exists behween the hedged
item and hedging instrument.

The Growp enters inta hedge refationships where the critical terms of the hedging instrument match exactly
with the terms of the hedged item. The Group therefare perfarms a qualitative assessment of effectivensss.
If changes in circumstances affect the terms of the hedged Item such that the critical terms no longer match
exactly with the critical terms of the hedging instrument, the Group uses the hypothetical dervative method
to assess effectiveness

In hedges of forebgn curmency purchases, ineffectiveness may amse if the timing of the forecast transaction
changes from what was osiginally estimated, or if there are changes in the credit risk of the derivative
counterparty.

(v} Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial pericd af time to get ready fof thewr intended use or sals, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the asseis are substantially ready for thedr intended use or sala All ather
barrawing costs ane recognitsed in the consolidated Incame statement in the period in which they ate incured
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The Group's activities expose it 10 3 vanety of financial risks: market risk (ncluding intenest rate nsk and cumency

risk), credit risk and ligquidity risk.

Risk management is carmed out by The Manager, The Group's cverall nsk management programme focuses on the
unpredictabdity of financial markets and seeks 1o minmise potential adverse effects on the Graup's financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swap contfacts and Cross

CURTBNCY SWap CONMacts to manage financlal risk

(i}  Market Risk
(A) Interest Rate Risk

Thie Gresp 15 exposed to interest rate nisk through the impact of rate changes in interest bearing
liab#ities and assets. The ricks can be separated into cash flow Interest rate risk and fair value interest

rata sk

Cach flow intenest rate ik is the risk that changes in market nterest rates will irpact cash flows anising
from variable rate financial Instruments, Bomowings at lloating rates therefore expose the Gioup to

cash flow interest rate risk. The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed
interest rate swap contracts. Such interest rate swap contracts have the economic effect of canverting

borrowings from flozting rates to fixed rates.

Fair value interast rate risk is the risk that the values of financial kablities will fluctuate becauss of
changes in market interest rates The Group manzges its fair value interest rate risk by entering into
interest rate swap contracts which have the economic effect of converting borowings from fixed rates

to fioating rates.

The effects of the interest rate swaps on the Group’s financial position and performance ane as follows:

Carylng amount - Habilneg)/ st
Notional amcant
Matwrity date

Hedge ratio

Changs in far value of cutstanding hedging instruments
Hnce 1Apdl

Change in value of hedged ivem uwed to determing
hedge effectiveness

Weghled average hedged rate for the year

015
HIS'M
L]
10400

Al 2018 -
ey 20206
i

[y}

mr
1%

As at 31 March 2020, it interest rates on floating rate interest bearing liabilities net of fioating rate
interest bearing assets had been 100 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
lags for the year, before transactions with Unitholders, would have been HEST? million higherflower
{2019: profit for the year, before transactions with Unitholders, would have been BES59 million ower/
highex), mainly as a result of higherAlower interest axpense on floating rate borrowings. As at 31 March
2020, if interest rates had been W00 basis points higherlower, the hedging reserve would have been
HIS54,560 million (H018: HKSI99,M34 million) higher/lower mainly as a result of an increase/decrease in

the fair values of the cash flow hedges as descnbed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial Risk Management (Cantinusd)

(a) Fimancial Risk Factars (Continued)
() Market Risk (Continued)

=)

Currency Risk
Cumency risk arlses on account of monetary assets and liabilitles denominated in a currency that is mat
the functional currency.

The Group has certaln meestments in Mainland China, whose net assets are axposed to foreign
cumency transiation risk This gave rise to an unrezlised loss of approximately HKS1,687 million (2015
HK51.316 million) on translation of these operations’ net astets to the Group's Hong Kong Dollar
reperting currency, which is reflected as a movement in reserves under the heading of exchange
FELEMNME.

s at 31 March 2020, the Group's has certain medium term notes and financial assets at amortised cost
[20¥: certain medium term notes) denominated in United States Doifars. The Group uses Cross cumency
swap contracts to hedge its exposure against changes in foreign exchange rate on its medium term
notes. Since Hong Kong Dollars is pegged to the United States Dollars, management considers that
there iz no significant currency risk with respect to financial assets at amortised cost.

s at 31 March 2020, the Hong Kong Dollars eguivalent of United States Daollars medium term notes
stands at HKS?.918 melion (2019 HKS? 481 million). The effects of the cross cumency swap contracts on
the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:

000 201
HEE'M HESM
Carnang amount - g iubiities n {215)
Hoticanal amgus 7,753 s |
atumity date September 2024 - Ceplember 200 -
luly 20026 huly 2024

Hedoe tatis " 1
Change In tair valua of pulstanding Pedging instramants

since LApnl [427) [LFEH
Change in value of hedged Mem used 1o determing

hedge effectiveness agr 7]
Wergited aveiage hiedged rale lof the yesr L% 1%

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has Australian Dollars denominated cash and cash equivalents and
interest bearing iabilities amounted to HKS1,003 million {2019 Nil) and HKS1,003 million (203 Wiy
respectively, Management considers that there i no net cumrency risk exposure with respect to
Australian Dolars

Governamnce, Diuclorurss and Financlal Statemsnts 109

287/420



EDINETOOOO

O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

4  Financial Risk Management (Continuad)
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)

(i)

Cradit Risk

Credit risk anses from the potential failure of the Group's counterpaties to meet their chligations under
financial contracts The Geoup it exposad to crodit rigk on its cash and cash aquivalents and depeotits with
banks and financial institwtions, financial assets at amortsed cost, denvative financial instruments as well as
trade receivables

Credit risk s managed on a group basis. The Group manages its deposits with banks and financial institutions
by limiting the level of deposits to be placed with any counterparties. Deposits placed with any ndhvidual
counterparty cannot exceed a pre-defined limit assigned to the individual counterparty. As 3t 31 March 2020,
all hank deposits were placed with financial institutions with extémal credit ratings of no less than “BEE"

For finzncial assets at amortised cost, the Managear closely monitors the financial performance of the ssuers
and their credit ratings (o ensure that adeguate Impairment losses are necognised for imecoverable debts. in
this regard, the Manager considers that the Group's credit risk |5 low,

In respect of credit exposures to tenants, oredit risk exposure s minimised by undertaking transactions with 3
large numier of counterparties and conducting credit reviews on prospective tenants. The Growp also has
policies in place to ensure that rental securlty deposits are requited lrom tenants peior to commencemeant of
leases. It also has other monitoeing procedures 1o ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover guendue
debis Inaddition, the Group reqularly reviews the recoverable amount of sach Individual trade receivable to
ensure that adequate provision for impairment losses Is made for potentially imecoverabla amounts The
Group has na significant concentrations of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the camying amount of each financial asset in the
comsolidated statament of financial position after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arsing from financial assets at amartised cost amounted to HKS2,746 milion (2019; Nil)
and is set out in Mate 17, The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables amountad to
HES210 million (2012: HES1 million) and is set out in Mote 18 The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits amounted to HEST 77 million (2019; HKSE, 789 million) and is set
out in Mote 19, The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments amownted to
5230 million (2019: HES42 million) and is set out in Noke 25,

Liquidity Rizsk
Prudent fliquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availzbility of funding from:
committed credit facilities and oparating cash fiow,

The Group has cash and cash equivalents and bank depasits of HKSTE7Y millien (201 HKS6,768 million) as at
3 March 2000, In addithon to the cash resources, the Group has total available bormowing facilities amounting
to HKS42,896 million (2013 HKS33.875 million), of which HKS34,589 million (2019: HKS24,545 milion) was
drawn as at 31 March 2020, The undrawn committed facilities, in the form of bank loans, totalled HKSE 307
mitlion {2019; HKS5,330 million) as at 31 March 2000,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fimancial Risk Management (Continuad)
(a) Financial Risk Factors (Continued)
(i) Liquidity Risk [Continuad)
Thi table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity growpings based on the

rafnainInG patod at the reporting date to the contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed n the table
are the expected contractual undiscounted cash flows which comprise both interest and principal cash flows,

L'-;ﬁ'“ Tand 2y 1and 5 5 o
MM o MRS W™
At 31 March 3030
Trade payaies and socruas 31 | - -
Derrvative financial instruments (rot setthed) 15 24 28 35
Security depayita 113 a1 €15 13
Carsertitshe Bonds [ 2] L] 419 -
interest bearing lshilSies T.638 3.307 13,157 1,082
Amouns due Lo non-tontroling intenest - 1,958 - -
Men-cantroling iberest pul aption
whibgalicn = 6 = =
Refention amount for acquiston ol
2 e Fall - - -
Uinithaide funds - - - 55, ™1
At 31 Maich 2008
Trade payabios and accruais 2300 - -
Dervative finincal instruments (ned wetthed) 2 ] 5 ™
Scurity deposis 600 a0 L] mn
interest bearng labiktics anm 3500 rie] -] 15,070
Amount due to non-oondroling intenest - - P -
Mon-pontraling intenest put option
obbgation - = 065 =
Aotention amount flor acqusiton of
& buniness . 758 -
Unithoigers funds = = = BH,139

(b) Capital Management
The Group's objectives whien mansging capital aie Lo saleguard the Group's ability Lo continue a3 3 §aing concemn
whilst seeking to maximise berefits to Unitholders.
The Group monitors capital on a regular basis and obenes the REIT Code's maximurm gearing ratio of 455, Thic

ratio & calculated as total borowings (interest bearing llabilities and convertible bonds) divided by total asset
value as shown in the consclidated statemant of financial position,

el )]

LS IS

Tirlal boirearngs 1,550 24,2107
Tiotal w55t v iar 207,618 J2GFHIT
Ceing ratio 16.7% KT%
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

4  Financial Risk Management (Continuad)

(c) Fair Value Estimation
(i) Failr value Hierarchy

HEFRS 13 requires disclosure of fair valug measurement by three levels of fair value measurement higrarchy,
This following table prasents the Group's assets and labllities that are measuned at falr value:

Level 1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets ef liabllites

Level & Inputs other than guated prices incheded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or Rability,
@ithar directly [that is, as prices) or indirectly {that ts, derved from prices).

Level 2 Inputs for the asset or liabllity that are not basad on observable market data {that Is, uncbsenvable

Inputs).
Luvel 1 Laval 1 Lowwl 3 Tatal
HESM HIES™M HESM HHE™M

At 31 March 2030
Assets
IRwestment roperties - - 10,334 13,234
Dot e (inancial ins rummnts = i) - m
Total aasets - m 163,134 A58
Liabittes
Desivatree nancial instruments - o - 1
Man-cortroding inferest pat option

obligabon - . 530 530
Toaal labdities - Bl il L1
AL ManCh 2015
ATseLs
Investment pioperted - - LA JIH, 885
Derivative financial instruments - Q. = 42
Total ansets . 4] IBARE 118,538
Linbiltes
Dethvative financial instruments - 236 - 246
Han-cantroding intenest put oprion

Cigagen = z Fiss o
Total labiities - 295 T 109

There were no transfers berween these three levels during the year (20 ML
There is ro offsetting arangement Detween the Group's financial assets and financial liabikties

The Group’s policy (5 to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the
event of change |n ciroumstances that caused the transfer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

() Falr Value Estimation (Continuad)
(i) Fair Valua Disclosure
Thie carrying vabwes less impailsment provision of trade receivables and the camying values of trade pavables,
accruals, bank deposits and interest bearing labilities that are expected o be recovered or setthed within
©Ne yar ane a reasonalble approximation of ther fair values due to their short-term maturities.

Thie falr vaises of interest beanng labilitses, Tability components of conventibhe bonds and accruals, that are
expected to be settled after one year are based on marke: prices or are estimated by using the expected
future payments discounted at market interest rates.

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation af the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires the use of certam critical
acoounting estimates. it also requires the Manager to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
Eccounting policies.

Estimates and [udgements are continuady evaluated and are based on hstorcal experience and other factoes, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances,

The Group makes estimates and assumplions conceming the future, The resiiting accounting estimates will, by
defintion, schdom equal the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have 2 significant risk of cawsing
& material adistment ta the camying amounts of assets and Fabiities within the next year are discussea below,

(a) Investment Properties
The fair value of each investment propedy is individually determined at each reporting date by inoependent valuer
based on a market value assessment. The valuers have relied on the income capitalisation approach as their
primary method, cross-referenced to the direct comparison approach where applicable. Details of the valuation
technigques and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 15

(b) Financial Instruments
In estimating the fair value of its financial Instruments, the Group uses valuation techniques such as dealer quotes
and discounted cash flows The Group also makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each reporting date.

(g) Long-term Incentive Schemes Valuation
The value of awards granted is estimated based on valuation techniques and assumptions on unit prices.
outstanding length of the awards, distsibution pay-out rates and other masket conditions, which management.
considers as representing the best estimate of the value of the lizbility for such awards at the reporting date. The
camying value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six months and is independentiy
valued by external valuer at least anmually.

{d) MNon-controlling Interest Put Option Obligation
The fair value of the non-contralling interest put aption abligation is detarmined at each reparting date by
independent valuer based on a market value assessmant. The valuer has tsed discounted cash flow as the
valuaticn technigue. The valuation s based on various assumplions, including the estimated fair valie of the equity
intarests of the non-wholly owned subsidiary at the expected time of exercise of the put option, the expected
time of exarcise itsalt, the cash fow and the discount rate used. Detalls of the valuaticn technique and
assumptions have been disclosad in Mote 22
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

6 Revenue
Revenue recagnised during the vear comprises

X0 e
| HESM HESM
Rerak
= Hong Kang retail properties 605 6560
= Hong Kong car parks 1912 197
= Muinlind China rétal propetties 1073 E45
- Cithers (Mare) 41 e
........................................................................................ AN
Cahes nevenues
= Alf conifitiormg serdce lees 84 348
= Cither property related revense T 62
475 40
Tatal ieverue W, e 037

Mt Cithir inchuds remali inom commencial pregesrtiet in Homng Kong snd the Menked Ching

Leasas with tenants pravide for monthly Base rent and recovery of certan outgoings. Additional rents based an business
turncwer amounted to HKST million (2009 HK5133 milllon) and have been included in the rental income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 Segment Information

proparties car parks. prepertie Othen Total
HHSM HESM HIE'M HEEM HES'M
Far the year snded 31 March 1030
Ervenie 1313 1517 13 a7E 10,758
Segmient results 5,576 1489 EM (60] 7.804
Change m Lair vishses of imvestment
[propes ties. (17, 807) [a,0a8) {asa) [AR=Foy] [13,940)
Ivterest Income 3
Firance costs 630)
Loas befaie taaation and tansstion
weith Linitholders {18,551
Taxation —FI!I
Loss for the year, befane transactionsg
with Unitholders [TF.300)
Capial expaaditune o mr 167 505 Loca
Depeecianon = il ] 74 75}
As at 31 March 2020
Segrent ety 128,857 FLR: T 19,475 16,728 a6, 341
B0l a4
Firancial assofs ak amortised tosl 2,746
Derivative financial mstruments an
Cash o cish equivalents TaTT
Tetal dssaty ...
Segment abilities 2,354 I Has 11 a.411
Provsion ior tavation ¥
Lang-term incentive schemes
pravision 136
Irrterest benring Tabiities 10,008
Convertiie bongs 3,98
Detivativa firancial sliamants BE
Delerred tax Babilines 8n
Other kabilities. 5,07
Tolal labiltes, exchuding net asets
Miriputable 10 Unitholders __________'_ﬁt._?_ﬂ_l__
Mon-controfing inferes 4“-
et assaty attrisutable to Unitholders Ham

For the year ended 31 March 2030, revenue of HESL A48 million (2019: HX51.026 million) is artiburable 1o extemal
cusiomers from Mainland China and HKS9.270 millien (2089 HKSS.0N million) s attributable to external customers from

Homng Kong.

A5 3t 31 March 2020, specified assers (which Include investmant propedties, peoperty, plant and equipmant, and
goadwil) of HES25,474 million (2009 HES28,956 million) is located in Mainfand Chéna and HK5169,563 milion (2015
HES190,T million) & located In Hong Kong.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

7 Segment Information (Continued)

Hong Karg Mainland
redai Hang Kong Chira retail
FIopenties car parks. praperies Others Total
HESM HESM HES M HEEM HES
For the year ended 31 Masch 25
Heerme Flry] 1962 (i 8 WLOHT
Segmaert resuts 5374 1508 498 5] T84
Cnange ir; fair vahes of investment
pROpErTies 758 290 1000 TN 11265
Gains on dEsposals af vesiment
BROpnies |
Intenest moame a5
Finance costs {550
Profit before tanation and transactons
with Uinithaklen EM
Taeation —D.-’l!l‘!l
Prodn o Che yedr, Defone (Eanisc o
with Linishaddars #0442
Capital expenature 102 ) o 1583 e
Depreciation = - i x (Fr ]
AL B B March My
Segmert assets laada fLACH ILE3 BT eI
Goodwil 13
Dervatve Bnanoal instnmsnty aF
Rark depoiity A4055
Cath and cah equivalents 2554
Total Esers a8
Sugmart Labdities 2337 3 &4 3 4138
Privdsion lof taxstion Eri ]
Liofia-2TT [ ErLive G2 heamed
peowiton 200
Interest bearing labilties wa
Derrvstive financial Inatnumenty 246
Defiried Lie HalnBlies i
Criber laiies 5000
Totnl Babslities, excludng not assets
artributale 1 Urithalders ITEN
Non-controliing nbenest zar
Met swets attributabie 1o Unitholden WBETI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

8 Property Operating Expenses

aea0 019
HE$M HESM
PropefTy managers feed, seCutity and cleaning L] 50
SLatd costs 81 515
Repair and mainterane 16 e
Utilibies 17 e
GetwaetnIFment reat and rated " ma
Bramation and marketing expenias a1 14
Extate common area cosis B8 1]
Raal ectate taoes in Mainland Chirg L] ™
Othar ¥ i3 e 158 ws
1450 FET:]

9 Finance Costs
‘ao20 201
IAlErett SNpenset of inlaredt beafing Rabiies fLiH ] T
Interest expenses on convertible bonds (Note 74) 125 -
Other bamowing oot (Mote (i) W n
1100 b
Let: capitadised undes investment properties (MNate () (53) ()
1,047 508
Change in Fair valoes of desivatae components. of comvertlile bonds (Mote 24) {57 -
Fair value |gainkfioss on non-controlbng interest put option obligation (Note LX) fritil] ol
630 L

Kobes:

M Other bormwing costs maindy nciude HESIT milllon (08 HC556 milion] intenest expenies to non-contiofineg interest, HIS38 millon (I075: 578
million] net gains on nterest fate swap contracts designated as cash flow hedges, HESE melion net keses. (2006 HICSM millon niet gains) on ooss
CRETEnCy Wvap conracis and intenewd rabe vwap contracts devgnabed 25 fal valus bediges and vanous buniing and finsnong chasges

(6] Irherest pvpemoes Fave e capitaied unded Tt ment paoperties at sn averasge intetest rate of 339 (0% 12%) per anhum
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

10 (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation and Transactions With Unitholders
{Loss)/prafit before taxation and transactions with Unithodders for the year is stated after chargingy/(crediting):

an fria ]

HESM HESM

Sraff costs (hate 1) L2k L& ]
Depureintion of property, pRant and equipment 5 2
Trustea's tee ] 20
Walustion fes a 1

Ao NemRINETALENY
Akt and sieht-related asuirants serdces o L]
Acquisition refabed professional fees F 2
kst 1 =
Total suditor's remunaration o o
Bank charges ] 5
Commissann 1o proderty Bgenti 0 14
Bonamans 14 i
Exchange gain fas) {43
SHT-LEr) B S e L ] -
Operating kease (halpes - 15
Orther legul and prafessions fees n E1]
1 5taff Costs
—

HIE™ HESSM

Wilges and Selarey T hs
Contritiices. b mandatony provident fund scheme (Note 51} 14 ]
Long-erm incerlive schiemes awarcs -1 e
T 01
Less: capitalised undet Frrestimert (eaperiiey [¥a) LEE ]
Staff costs [Nabe &) &89 830

Mg

F)  The Ghoup CRerates & PEnUOn schims = Mandatory Provades] Fund, Tne sCReme 5 3 defined Comnbuion pian funced Thiougn sayments Lo
Eruites-gab=inivtared lunda A delined contribusion plan i 3 peniisn plan under which Be empleys pags fised contiButisny into & Wepante enlily
{a o). Thee Gircssg ks g Turthesr pasyment cltdgations onos the cominbunion have besn pad
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 Taxation

Hong Kong profits tax has been proviced for at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated pssessatle poofit for the
year, Corporate income tax in Maintand Chona has been provided for at the applicable rate on the estimated assessable
profit for the year,

The armount of taation charged/{credited) to the consclidated moome statement reprasents:

2020 g
HMS'M S

CLITENL TELat
= Hong Kong B B50
= Mairkand China e 11
Delemed tazatian [276) 338
Tanatson b4t 1159

The differences between the Group's expected tax charge, using the Hong Kang prafits tax rate, and the Group's
taxation for the year were as follows:

00 261
HEE M RS
{Lesslypralis belore Lacatian {18, 557) 21,80
Eapecied tix calculated at ihe Hong Kong profits i e of 4% (0% % E%) [z.73m) EL )
Tau effect of dirferent taxstion rates [&6) L
Tax effect of non-geductibhe e xpenses. 3,664 206
Tax effect of non-taatles income [az) [L¥58)
Tax effect of olber temperary Silfetencey [5a) il
Utdigation of previously unmecognised ta koss ) e
Withhalding tax on whiemitted eamings of iubsidaret ia i
Taxaton m 1350
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13 (Loss)/Earnings Per Unit Based Upon (Loss)/Profit for the Year, Before Transactions With

14

Unitholders Attributable to Unitholders

Toan e

(Lossiprofe for be year, beloe ransactions with Uniboloeds aitibutatle to

Unithoiders (HKSTF, 122 millien) HICRI0, 325 millian
Weigtted average numbes of units for the year 1of calcidating basic

[lessl aRimingt per umit 2,056, 244, 905 J13E G Oy
AN Iod ikt ConlingSally 1SSuabhie WS

undar hl'll?-[!l'l'l inoentive schames = 4HT
Wakginted auprage nuehss of umitt ioe the year o0 calciating diuted

Mossl/eamnings per unit 056,144,909 2128334334
Buarueg [hoess)fearirags peet urit (HISETT) HE$5 56
Dikuted (loss)/eamings per it {HiCs.17) HICs2.56

Thee convertible bands isswed on 3 April 2015 have an anti-dilutive effect on the baskc loss per unit for the year ended 31

March 2020, thus the diluted koss per unit i equivalent to the basic loss per unit

Goodwill

20 in )
HESE™ HESM
ALT Apil an 415
Exchange adusiments {3 L
Acquisiticn of budiness - 4y
CHiprial s - 13
At 31 March a4 33
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 [Investment Properties
(a) Detalls of the Movements of Investment Properties are as follows:

Completed  Froperty under

progerie developmant Total

HICS M HIEM HME™

ALY Apri 2079 107,548 0,528 1B A%
Exchiangs adjrstments (fote (81) (1791 - L)
Additions 1,029 117} 1,583
Trather bo property, plant and equpment (Note () - 1L1E) {1.m8)
Tramiles [0 Compieled peoDenies LR 1] [0, 90mE) -
Change in falr values {23,548) - (33948}
e ¥ March 200 193,724 = 493,234
1 pre 200R 54,35 Al 030
Exchange adjrstments (Nate (e]) [LE70) - )
Acquitticn of butises: W] - MBS
Additions 1 1532 A
Dizposals 000 (9,080
__C'u_r_-;_[: n_1_a-r :m!u:a LG i 1229
Ar 31 March 2019 T840 10,548 2496

(b) WValuation Process
The investment properties were revalued on a market value basis by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited
(the “Prindpal Valuer?), an independent firm of professional qualified valuers, which was rewly appointed as the
Principal Valwer of Link for property valuation as at 31 March 2020, The independent property valuation as at
31 March 2010 was performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited.

The Manager hald discussions with the Prancipal Valuer and reviewad all significant inputs used by the Principal
Waluer, Discussions of the valuation processes and results at each reporting date are held between the Manager
and the Principal Vahser,
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

15 Investment Properties (Continuad)

(e} Valuation Technigues

As at 31 March 2020, the Principal Valuer has railed on The incame capitalraton appeoach as the primary approach
with cross-referenced to the direct comparison approaach (207%: income caplitalisation approach, discounted cash
ficw anatysis and residual approach as the primary approaches, cross-referenced to the direct comparisan
approach]. The use of income capitalisation approach ls in e with market practice of propery valuation for
Income-producing commercial assets which are the main asset class of Link and is in comgpillant with the Trust
Deed

The income capitalisation approach is based on the capitalisation of the current passing rental income and
potential reversionary Income of the property from the date of valustion st appeoptiate mestment yiebds to arlve
at the capital valwe, The appropriate adjustments/deductions for rent-free period, orgoing vacancy voids)’
matketing perods and non-recoveratile expenses for the vacant space have bean allowed,

The discounted cash flew analysis requires perledic net cash flows to be fesecasted over the life of the investment
end discounted at a risk-adjusted opportunity cost of capital to arrive at 8 present value, The discounted cash flow
znalysls takes imto consideration the yearly net cash flows after deductions for expenditure, and having regard to
the assurnptions made relating to rental growth projections, vacancies, rent frees, replacemsant rasenve, non-
recoverable outgolngs and leasing costs. The discounted cash flow analysis incorporates an assumed 10-year
heiding pesiod and the reversianary value in yvear eleven, discounted by an appropriate dscount rate to denive at a
net present value

The residual valuation method involves firstly the assessment of gross development value, which s the value of
the proposed developmeant, as If completed, at the date of valuation. Estimated outstanding cost of the
dewelopmens including costs of construction, professional fee, finance costs and assoclated costs, plus an
sllowance for developers risk and profit are deductad from the gross devefopment value The resultant figure is
the residua’ value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 [Investment Properties (Continued)

{c)

(a)

Valuation Technigques (Continued)
Thier three valuation technigques are summansed in the below table with their respective signiicant unobsensabie
inpus
Ralationship of signiticant
Significsrt unobrervable inputs unabrervable inputs to feir value
Income capitalisation spproach
Completed properties - retail and I} Capitaisation rate [Btended) Ther tigher the capitalsation rate, he lavwer
comimercial properties and car parks ROTH = 510°% (2015 100% - 475%) tha Bair value
1) Mt pamging inCome P BRru Tha Fighisr 1hl Fret PASENG NGO The
HESOGM = HESI51EM highet thee fait value
208 HESOGM - HESIE04M)
Discountad cash flow analysis
Complated propemies - rerall and (1 DSt rane: Mot pplicatie Tred Faghves T ISCOUNT FALE, The: liwer [he
cormmedcil preperties and car pars [0 TI5% - B50%) Pair value
(mpplicaple for 31 Manch 20% only)
i) Ml passing inoome pet AnFum: Ther mirghisr the Nt passng noome. the
Nt 3ol icaie et The Tait value
(200 BRSOAN - HKSIE0.L
Rusldual approach
Piopeity under deseiopmenl Estinated develogment costy and Thes highes the estimatied development
{spplicable for 1 Manch 20% only) alorwance far developers ik and profit codts and allawante fof developers fk

and prafE, The loeer The Tair valie

The investment properties are included in Level 3 (209 Level 3) of the fair value hierarchy.

Restriction of the REIT Code

Link acquited 77 Hoi Bun Road in Kowloon East for commencial development, Baging lingtong Roosevell Plaza in
Baijing and CentralWalk in Shenzhen, the completion of which were on 23 February 2015, 23 January 2019 and 14
March 2019 respectively, while the commearcial development at 77 Hol Bun Road, now known as The Quayside, was
completed during the yvear. In accordance with the REIT Code, Link [s prohibited from disposing of its properties for
at least twio years from either the time such properties are atouired or the date: of the completion of tha
development af the properties, unless the Unitholders approved the proposed disposal by way of special
resolution passed in accordance with the Trust Deed.

Exchange Adjustments

The exchange loss on translation is attributable to the Group's investment propertias in Mainland China as a result
aof the depreciation of Renminkd This amcunt is included in exchange resende as set out in Note 28

Security for the Group’s Loan Facilities

As ot 3t March 2020, certain of the Group's investment properties in Mainland China, amounting to approxmalely
HKSH0.026 million (2019: HKS10,701 million], were pledged 10 secune Group's loan lacilities of HKS2.177 mallion (2019
52580 milion),

Transfer to Property, Plant and Equipment
During the year, the Group has occupied twa floors of The Quayside for seli-used office. The value of which was
transfemad from investmant properties 1o proparty, plant and equipment.
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

16 Property, Plant and Equipmeant

Land,
bullding snd
teasehokd  Right-afdse Matar
Improvemants amats wahider Iw Tatal
AL April 207 -] 2 m 128
Amitkans e 2 1 4] FF]
Tranafer from vestment properties 116 - - - .16
[CHspesais m = = 4] [t
Depreciation chage far e year [=0) {2) (1 2] 5]
AL T March 2030 1,254 T 2 neé 1,383
AL T March 3030
Cost Lne L] 7 n 1,545
A ceninulited depeacistion Hﬂl !H [l-]- l_'ﬁ'] h!iil
het bock valun 1158 T 3 e 1380
AL Apil X8 2 - 2 wn NS
Additions & 1 k'] a5
'Dm-r.-t.l:‘nuhtﬁuqe furlht;p_tflr [.-I? - fl] 113] I_H}
At T1 March 200 % - 2 m 1
AL 11 March 2009
Coosx :a] - & 255 34
Het bk value 15 2 121 138
17 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Financial assets at amortised cost include the following debt investments:
0320 b
HIE M HKE'M
Leted corpaiate bonds 278 -
Linfittes covporate Bandy EL -
21,746 -

Druririg Uhwe year, thee Group has interest income arsng from financil assets at amortised cost amounted to HESEE milion
{2075: M), The carmying ameunts of the financlal assets at amortised cost are expected to be recovered after one year,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 Trade and Other Receivables

20m0. 201
Trade reCarankes o m
Lets: prowision for impaiemsnt of trade recetvables (&) i
Trade recenvatiles - el T mw
Dther neCwvabies 10N B2

1m a1

The camying amounts of these receivables approximate their fair values and are expected to be mostly recovered within
one year,

These are no specific credit tenms given to the tenants. The net trade recefvables are generally fully covered by the
rental deposits,/bank guarantees from corresponding tenants

The ageing of trade receivables, presented based on the due date, is as follows:

2030 2019

HEEM HEEW

030 days 7 5
-5 deys 60 7
Over 90 days L 5
70 i

Manthly rentals in resgect of retad and commercial progerties ane payable in advance by tenants in accordance with the
learses while daity gross receipts from car parks are recedved from the car park operaters in armears, Included in the naet
trade recelvables of HKS0 million (201%; HKST million) presented above were HES52 million (2019: HKSED million) of
corped car park Income and HKSO million [2009; M523 mallion) of scomnsed tumaver rent, which wene not yet due 35 at 31
March 2020,

Mowvements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

e o

HEE'W HSM

At Apl & o
Provaian for enpaement of trade receivaties 55 4
Feosivanies written off during the year as uncoliectitile m (&)
AL 1 March &0 o

The creation and relezss of provision for impairment of trade receivables have beanincluded In propanty operating
expenses in the comsolidated income statement. Amcounts charged to the provision account will be wiitten off when
these is no expectation of recovering additional cash

The ather classes of receivables included In the trade and other receivables do not contaln impaired assets.
The maimum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date ks the fair value of trade receivables
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

19 Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits
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020 2015
HESM HESM
Cash &t bank 6307 1955
Bank deposits with oreiginal matuity of kess than thoee months 1,550 g
Cath bhd caah squivalents 1877 1684
Bank Sepowis with cerginal martunty of mang than thies months = a0%
7877 [
20 Deferred Tax Liabilities
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method,
Analysis of net defered tax liabilities as follows:
1030 o
HES™M HES M
Deforred tax asseds {ns) E]
Detered i abities 2,988 iraa
LEH ik
Deferred tax assets and liabilities afe expected to be recoverable and settied after ane year,
The movements in defered tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:
ablawance Gtbars. Tatal
HESM HES™ HHEM
ALT Agiil 2005 1,204 ) m
Exchange adpstments {3m) 18] (84)
Recognised in the consolidated income statement (287 i (375)
At 31 March 3030 2u79 =] 287
At Aguil 20%8 1805 () 185
Exchange adpriments (¥5) 5 (&
Recognised i the consolidated income statement 130 B 138
At 31 Maerh 2019 1,204 11 1%t
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

21 Long-term Incentive Schemes Provision

‘2020, 01
HEE'M HESTM

Long-Term incentive schemes provesion
- gxpected to be settied within one year 1} o
- gipected ta be withed alter oo you 13 =11
126 2040

2007 LTI Plan

A long-term mcentive plan (the 2007 LTI Plan”) was adopted on 23 July 2007 ang expired on 22 July 2017 after being in
aperation for 10 years After its expiry, no further awards thall be granted under the 2007 LTI Plan. Monetheless, awards
granted and accepted prioe to its expiry but et to vest shall continue to have effect and be geverned by the rules of
the 3007 LTI Plan

Linder the 2007 LTI Plan, the Manager might grant three types of awards - restricted unit award, unit option and
conditional cash award - to dimectons and key amployees of the Manager. Mo unit aption hat ever been granbed under
2007 LTI Flan since (ts adantion up il expiry

For those restrictad unit awards granted with performance goas, the eventual numbers of new units to be ssued 1o the
relevant grantees on vesting are linked 1o the perfarmance of Link in terms of total Unitholoers return {"TUR and net
property incorme (NPT of cartain vesting conditions. Conditional cash awards are granted in conjunctaon with restricted
unit awasds, bastowing upon each grantee a conditional right to recelve a cash payment representing an amount
equivalent to the aggregate of the distibutions during the vesting period.

Duririg the year, the Group isswed 477532 units (2019: 1,407,782 units) lor restiicted unit awards which have vested in
scoordance with the 2007 LTI Plan.

2017 LTI Scheme

On 10 Juty 2017, Link adopted a new long-term incentive schema (the “2007 LTI Schemw”), Under the 2017 LTI Scheme,
the Manager may grant restricted unit awards and conditional cash awards to directors of the Manager and key
employess of the Group,

Dunng the year, certain directors and employess of the Manager were granted restricted wnit awards and condithonal
cash awards at nil monetary consideration under the 2077 LTI Scheme. The restricted unit awards granted under the 20T
LTI schem, in general, will vest approximately two to three years from the date of grant. Under the 2017 LTI Scheme,
units will be purchased In the grantees’ favour from open stock market to satisfy restricted units awards vested. For
those restricted wnit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of units to be purchased ineach
grantee’s favour upon vesting are linked to the perfommance of Link based on the TUR, NP1 or certain vesting conditions.
Conditional cash awards were also granted in conumction with the restricted unit awards. bestowing upon each grantee
& conditional right to receive a cash payment repiesenting an amount eguivalent o the apgrecate of the distributions
during the vesting period.

During the year, the Group purchased 366,239 units (2019: 8,000 units) from the market for restricted wnits awards which
have vested in accordance with the 2017 LTI plan,

Gowernamnce, Diiclorurss and Financlal Statemsnts 127

305/420



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

n

Long-term Incentive Schemes Provision (Cantinued)

During the vesting period, 2 Rability is recognised epresenting the estimated value of the awards granted under both
the 2007 LTI Plan and the 2017 LTI Scheme and the portlon af the vesting peried expined a5 at the reperting date. The
wilue of the awards was estimated at the reporting date by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an independent
external valuer based on valuation technigues and assumptions on unit prices, cutstanding length of the awards,
distribution pay-out rabes and other market conditions, if appropriate. The change i value of the outstanding awards
was charged to the consolldated Income statement. In the event that the vesting conditions ame not met. the amount
previously accrued will be written back accordingsy.

Movements in the numiber of restricted unit award during the wear and the maximum number o units to D wested woon
wvesting of restricted unit award are as fodows:

Dutstuning et Vool Coulled lgwd  Osteteding 1]
o daring  during  dharing dhing HE v
D o grant Vaitieg paried Than tha e e yaar® tw Gy TMeeh X0 veitieg fate®
3540 LT Plan
4 Nt X0 0 vt 20 10 0 e 1 - LAy - {57,259 - -
N ... N i =
27 LT etk
L H ety 2702 I e 00 i = loati (e (L] > =
M iy X072 X e 2O LI - - - L sim wun
4 iy Xm0 4 by 10 1 0 e O 546,50 - - - oy ] LT
&y 1088 1 30 ke 01 48,10 # - = I Hin Bad el
Sy X8 § iy 18 10 0 e - L - - ot i LELAE
Ay HVS 0 B0 e 00 +: 1934 - - et e v
ki ot ool e O R v O ) O
Sansnl HETE L1481 {oshiny (] ) LI Lsiy
A oru e e e Y e e
] - - (0. - - -
20 tatal L LN paLET) (i [ Lisbar LB
i ol Lm el fL T [153 RS54 LsN LB
Nctew

Iy Resanicied undt awied vERing pecbaTages during The year ranged from 54% 1o 2000
[0 IF ceermin vesting conaRions e meL
fif} Adaitonsl unts over W00 of estricted unit awand granied wene wrsbed porsuan to the elevant vesting conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22 Other Liabilities

20 20m
Amount due 1o non-Controlng infenest imm 1552
Hon-controding interest put cption obligation 530 e
Betention amount ot scqaiition of 4 busines o A
Lo 500

O 20 Fetstuany 2075, 1 Groo 1hnoudh & nor-whaly sehid subiaany (the Project Company”, o which Link b s indiiect 5% inlerest and Ban
Fung Development Liméted [Ham Fung’) hat an indirect 405 interest] scouired 77 Hol Bun Road in Kowioon East for commestsal develapmet. For
the puipode of funding 1he commenisl development, Man Fundg, & nof-<ontholling mtesest of the Profct Cormpany Res contitasted cnh in

prope 10 tha holding ratho to the Promct Company: The amount due to non-controling istenest i ereecured, intofest bearing at an
APtk INlenest rate of 13% (200 12%), Kas no fxned repaymaent term and B fot fepayabie within one yeat. Such Bmount inclasing sy storued
irrterenl will ba repaid trom the Froject Company's mapius cash after mesting i1 payment cbigstions

[H) Pursant 1o the shasshokiery’ sgresment, Ham Fung Fias a right to sxercis & put option te reguile Link te puschase ail the nsued shaies Nan fung
helds im the Progect Compary #t the then tar market value, alter the second arnivessary of the completion of 1he commedcsl propery
deviopment and Calain COntans Pave Bt satsfod Tho ron controling menes put optdn oblgaton wak recgnsed ai 3 fnancial labikty
barsed 0N & yaluateorn pericnmed By Crows Homwath Feut Trist Agpranal PTe Lid, an indepencent Tim of paofesonal guakitied vaksees. Thit value! has
usad disgoumied cash Foow i the valuation Technique. The valuation i Based on vanous 35sumpiont snd caloulabed by refrence (0 8 rumbss of
ungEaervabie iputy, INCLesng the estmated fair vilue of 0 equily interests of e Propct Company 3t 1ne aepected Time af srenciss Of the pen
option, this sspaected Bime of sosrcion tted, tha cath Now amd the ditcount 'ate used. T Managed hiid daoussant with the value and reiswed
% significans inputs Liea [NsCuerticrs of the valugtion professes and remiRs at each reporting date are held between tha Manager and the valuer,
Fair walue of the put aption obligation i included n Leved 3 {3000 Lewel 1) of the fakr vaiue Merarchry, if the ectmated far value of the equity
Iniarents of the Promot Company at the time of exeeciss i highar 1he T value ol the pat eption obagation would also be highae. I the expected
tirme of gmorciue b laber or if the discount rate s hgher, then the tair vale o the put opbion oblgation would be knwer

[ Puruaant 1o the Frrnewsr Agheement dated 3 Zebniary 3015 in relation 1o the a2 quisition of entire iswed share capitl of MR RATMOE
T B] (Maend Property Managesent [Shenzfen) Company Lirmited], 3 retenticn amourt af RMBES0 millon [squivalent to spororimately HEST
miflian] shall ba tetaingd by the Group, srcd (Pall B paid by ths Gooup 10 The felier on of bElord The egond annnecisy of 1Fe HEnisBon
cEaeticn dale

=2

The moverment of non-cantralling intenest put option ebligation during the yesr is a5 follows:

2020 2019
HHSM WS
AL Apeil b
Becognited in the consoldated income staboment:
- Fir wisho# [phind e Note ) {288y ol
At 31 March 530 TS
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

23 Interest Bearing Liabilities

HES™ HKEM
Unsecuied Sank borewings .77 6732
secured bank borrowings 2977 4580
Midilim teim notes 1®,778 14,505
30,688 M
The carrying amount of interest bearing liabilities are expected to be settled below:
2020 Fo )
HIESM HESM
Due in the first year
Unsecured bank borowings 419 1998
Secured Budhi Bodfowings BA 51
Wit tarm noted 150 1306
937 3,367
D b the second wear
Linsecured bank borowings 1,963 245
Secured BEnk Sormawings na #
Madiur Tem foled 1,619 L]
........................................................................ e A iy
Dua in tha third year
Unsecured bank bomowings e 1030
Secured bank borrowings tre] 128
Mediurm tem Aoted 1337 L2
........................................................................ L
Due in the fourth year
Uinsecured bank barowings 5575 ™
Secuned hank borrowings 158 560
Mo dium tem notes - 1226

Dua in the fifth year

Unsecured bank bomowings 1,008 5
Secuned Bank Doowingy 151 s
Miediom feim notes A4, 718 -
iom "
Due beyond the fifth year

Secured bank Domowings 1518 1961
Meadiurm terr notes B,043 0585
5,558 11548

10,688 wmanw
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interest Bearing Liabilities (Continued)

ke

M et Yor medaim Derm nobed of W57 Il meban (20 HXSTE milon) wih ane derarenabéd n Lsted States Dolist ad bark bomowhgs of
MESEETT mitlion (2013 HESY 550 millon) and MESTOOT milian (D015 Nil which are deromenatad in Rermnbi iod Australian Dolan eipectively, all
Ehe Gt interest Baarng babiited sre danominsled in ong ang Dolliry

() A of Lini's borioongs denominaied in United States Doilars are fully hecdged into Hong Kong Dolar.

[l Thwe @fectnes interest rate of the nteiedl beddng |Emes which she denominaled n FMssg Kang Dolers a5 Unied Stees Dollers Taking @ita
SECOUNT CIE SUTMESDY DAap comeaty and INDeretl Fate ywas ConLIact] ot the feporting date wad 204'% ROE: 1% and trat of the inte et
Beafing REDIes which a6 Sehdmeranid n Henmirds and Ausiraian Dollars wene SSE% (UM 507%) and 1AFs (RS- h/AR] respacivedy.

Convertible Bonds

©n 3 April 2019, the Group issued HES4 billion convertible bonds at 16% per annum due 2024, These bonds are
convertible into new Link units at an Initis conmversion price of HKS100.30 per unit at the option of the bondholder, Link
has the aption to redeem the bonds if the closing price of the units is 130% or above the initial conversion price while
bondholders have the right te require Link to receem all or some only of the bonds on 3 Apeil 2002 The convertible
baonds are unsecured, The effective intergst rate of the convertinle bands at the reporting date was 112%.

HREM
Liability tompanents
A1 Apeil J01% -
Fauanee of comeertible bonds 3|7
Firunce couty (Mofe 5) =8
ItEiedl Sapeniet pasd l_f.l‘.!jl
e S L L . skl
Darivative companents
AT ARl JO01F -
Bsuance of comeertilble bonds 157
Chisnge in Lair value (Note 9 {157)
3,550
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

25 Derivative Financial Instruments

HRSM HESM

Deerivative ariets
Designated as cash flow hedge

= mEerest rale Ywap coniracls - -3
Designiated as tar value hadge

= CIOSE CUFTBNC Y Sekap cortract rard a

=~ nEEnEst 18 twap conlract 1% 3
........................................................................ L3, O AT
Derivative liabilities
Deesignated as cash Niow Padge

- INERres F8 SWaD Contracts. (BE} ini
Desgnated as tar value hedge

~ LSS CUFTBNCY Soal coniracs = (235)

= Inerest e swap confracts - [£)]
B . 2 A (295
Het dervatree aseinflabities) 143 et ]
Mifes:

b The fair valers of financial im&nements that ame not traded in an active market are determmined by wsing valuation techniqu. Thess valuation
tettrinues marimise the uve of cbaervable market data whene it |4 avalable and rely a3 Fttie as possible on entiy soecific estimates I sl sgrificant
Inpits requited to far vakee an iralnomend e obsenvable, the instrument iz incloded o Level 2 of The fal value Fesrarchy.

(i} Tha s vialesss of croks curmncy vwap conbracts and mbesast rte twag conbracis aie Cakutated by iefersace 1o the esant vakie of the sitimated
Buture cawh flows taking into scoout market cbmenvable yiekd cutves s formand sxchange mies al sach epofiing dabi Cross CETenoy vwap
CORErACTS and INERIBST rale P cosimacts ate mciuded in Level 7 (3073 Level 3) of the fair valus hisrichy.

The carmying amounts of net derivative asseis/Nliabilities) are expected to be settled as below:

HiEE™ HESM

\Within one yoar @ &
Aftes one year Rris [ralH]
a3 (o)

TF Lk Besl Extate myestment Tnet Anoual Repost 20682030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 Derivative Financial Instruments (Continuad)
The Group WHes Cross CUrrency SWap contracts (swapping from foreign cumencies 1o Hong Kong Dofdars) and interest
rate swap contracts to minimése iis exposure to movements in forelgn currency exchange rates and interest rates in
relation to its interest beanng liabilities. Ay change in fair values of the effective portion of the cash flow hedges in
relation to interest rate swap contracts is recognised In the hedging reserve. Any change in falr values of the fair value
hedgaes in relation to interest rate swap contracts and any change in fair value of Cross curmency swap Contracis an
recognised directly in the consalidated Income statement A net amount of HKS36 millon (2019 HKSZ36 million) hag
baen debited to the hedging reserve during the ywear as further set cut in Note 28

As at 31 March 2000, the darivative financial instruments qualifying as cach flow hadges have, In affect, provided tha
Growp with an average fixed interest rate penod of 650 years on HKS3,000 million borowings (3015 359 years on
HKS6.000 mitlion borrowings) from the reporting date The notional principal amount and the webghted average fised
Interest rate of the outstanding floating rates to fixed rates interest rate Swap contracts as at 31 March 2020 were
HKSE,000 million (2019 HKSE6,000 milllen) and 158% (2019 182%) respactively, The notional principal amount of the
outstanding floating rates to floating rates interest rate sWap contracts a5 at 31 March 2020 was HES2,000 million (201%
HK53,000 million).

s at 31 March 2020, the detivative fimancial Instruments gualifying as falr value hedges have, In effect. converted part of
the Group bormowings into Hong Kong Dollars fixed rate and fioating rates interest bearing labdities. The national
principal amounts of the outstanding cross cunency swap contracts and Interest rate swap contrects qualitying as fale
valye hedges 25 at 31 March 2020 were HKS7,753 million (2009 HICST.753 million) and HKS1,400 million (2019: HK$1400 million)
respectively.

Gains and bosses on interest rate swap contracts recognised in the hedging reserve (Mote 2B) as at 31 Manch 2020 will be
released to the consolidated income statement.

&5 at 31 Manch 2020, the Group has outstanding forward contracts of selling Renminkd 584 million [2015; Renminbi 702 milkon)
&gainst Hong Kong Dollars These forwand contracts were entered fior the purpose of locking in part of the Group's
futwre Renminbi denominated net incame in Mainland China in Hong Kang Dollars term, and not designed for hedge
accounting

The Group's hedging reserves disclosed in Note 28 relate ta the following hedging instruments:

ALTApeh JOTF 8 B
Change ifi Lar value of hedging instrumment fecognised

1 other comaneheniive income (R4 ] [=a)
Reclaisifiod from athe: comgrehendie Incomme (o consolidsted incame statemen [EL]] 8}
AR 31 March 2020 {28} (Ba)
At Apel 20l T ol
Change in Fer valse of hedging inttrumsnt iscegnited

i BERAF COMOREhEvE iRcome 62y L]
Reckissified from ather compashensiye income to consolidated income sEabemaent 7a) {74}
AL T March 208 A |
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

26 Trade Payables, Receipts in Advance and Accruals

HES™ HKEM
Trace payabies 1] 2
Receipts in advance 10 183
Aceriaaly 2,350 208

LE480 L5683

Thi carrying amounts of these payables approximate thesr Tar vaiues and ame sxpecied 10 De seithsd a5 bebow:

2020 ]
HESM HESM
Withiin cane yea 2,630 1585

Attor one yoar 2
1,640 1L83

The egeing of trade payables, presented based on the due date, 5 a5 follows:
020 it
- HEEM HEEM
0-30 s 11 e
T1-50 days 0 3
Croer 00 B3y 7 5
80 152
27 Units in Issue

W20 -t
Numiber of upits Humber of units
At 1 Agiil 2,500.301.358 250058972
Lirits bought back for cancedlation {51,900,500) (42 148 £00)
Unis Baed inder the 2007 LTI Plan A LAGT TR
At 31 March 2,057,896,308 L5 254

Pursuant to the general mandate granted to the Manager by the Unithoiders, the Manager (on behall of Link) bought
back 4 total of 51,900,500 units (2015 42,145,500 units) 8t ah aggregate prce of HKS4,240 million (2019; HKS3,.286 milion),
All units bought back wene cancetied during the year.

Closkng price of the units &3 at 31 March 2020 was HKS55.70 [2015: HES9180) per unit. Based on 2/057,858,386 units In
sue a5 at 31 March 2020 (2015 208,321,254 units), market capitalisation was HK3135,204 million (2019 HKS193,636
millien).

T Lk Hesl Extate investment Tret Anovual Repost 20082030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 Reserves

AL April 2015

Casn Nor hadgas.

= iChange in fair values

= Amaunt transfemed o 1he consobdated
npomae satoenent (Nete )

Exchange hoss on Uamstation of financial
ALAlEmertl

Mt ety attriutable to Unitholders:
- AMGunt anEng rom exchange resere
miceemerts (Mate (i} = E = 183 1Ty

At 31 March 2020 {5} [} (2.071) 2150 {58a)
S S . N v N .. AN .. B it
Cash flow hedges:

= Change in tar values - 43 = o 3]

- Amount tramshemmed to the consoldated
Istome sTatement (Mote 5} - 74 = = 74

1. .. S ..

Exchangs koss on Crandketion of finandial

et asots attrbutable to Uinitholders:
- Amount aring from exchange resenve

ared cah Mew hedging ressve
miavemeits (Mote (i} - - - 1552 1552

At 31 March 3019 (58] B {30y 17 (58}

Nobes.
[ Amount trandersd o the consclidaied incoes statemant in rspect of cash Now hedges was included in Finance Lows” (Note 1)

() The amount fepredanted aarmmal fetarsid bor the yei 1o offset the dechangs ieiaive and cith Boiw Redging istefe movemedts
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

29 Mote to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

s i
(Lesslyprant betone taxaton and Uansactans wilh Liniholcers 16,597 2180
Long-term incentive schemes awands s 4
Depreciation chirge 7 .
Gans on dirposals ol Investment properiies - (el 21
Lose an disposal of property, plant and equipmast 1 -
Ieitetent ncame {183) 85
Firase coss B 500
Eachango difference (a8} 4%
Change in fair valses of inyesiment properties 23,540 1365
Increase in tride and ather receivabie, depoils and prepayments (200) L]
Decrease In trade payabies, receipts in advance and acoiuals [32) [2596)
Increase in sesurily deposity L B
Long-ferm incent ive schemes settied a3y [Ha
Incoime ta pald {533) (ARIER]
Het cinh generated from operating activities 6,509 554

(b) Major Non-cash Transactions
During the year, additional units of HK547 million (308 HKS101 midlion) were issued under the 2007 LTI Flan

{c} Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities

Intarait Drarivative o nan-
Tabibitiad s Accruabi  Inatruments "m Tatal
:};_mup-um _ 24,217 - n . i!ll ) 1552 L !;I..IH_I-
ch from fina casn
fose ¥om wanchg
Trofm iebetegt i ] - - - - il ]
beareg Faswities, net of
[T Tion cosls
L of it rest 5474 - - - - AT
e St Ly
Proceeds from convertioke - 3,574 - - - 3578
Borek, it Gl framsactian
Costs
Increase n amount due (o - - - - 159 158
nioe-contraling interes
Iterest {pakflrecded - i (a1 kL (453 (8E)
Paymaent of kg habd e - - {2 - = (¥ ]
Tata changes Fom Enanong
MUV 2 e Lo gy e ™ e il
Hon-cash changes
cr.nctlﬁ \r dair values of - - - &8 - s
cash llow hedges
Finance costs 405 [10]] 05T (aat) m S0
Othern {1=a) - ] - = {183}
Tatal fon-cash changes iy [LE] L LY] (LT ] m s
A3 at 31 March 3020 30,688 3,540 w1 143) kRl 38,333

Lirk Hoal Exfate inyestment Tnnt Annual Report 20992020

314/420



EDINETOOOO
O000000000000000000000O(E15194)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

29 MNote to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows [Continued)
{c) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising from Financing Activities (Continued)

Aumaount dus
Interast to AaEn-
llabiities Aceraaly imtrumants inturest Total
- HES'M HEEM HHKS ™ HEE'M™ HES'M
s a1 1 April 2018 1% 7ah B Gt 2557 it T
Charges frem Prancing cash Nows
Proceeds from inferest bearing 14,604 - - = 14, B8
liamdites, met ol rantaction costs
Pegayment of interest Dearning (T2} - - " [
ligtril s
InCreass in amount due 1o 550 G50
man-cantrolling mtenest
Ingerest (Dakd)recaived - (T Wo - 2]
Total changes from fimancing activities {a,350) (TaE) oo 555 [i8,0004)
Man-£irsh changes
Changers in fair valuss of cach iow - - we 1 L
necpes
Finanoe costs m T (1543 55 25
Acganition of bunness 157 L] - h Pt
Criners & (L] - - 1
Todal non-Cash (hanges Ty A B 95 A58
At 38 30 March 208 FER T @ e 4553 JH0
30 Commitments
{a) cCapital Commitments
o a0
HEKE'M MM
Capital expenditure of imestment properties contrected butl not provided
o4 41 the end al the e & 1159
(b} Short-term Leases Commitments
As at 31 March 2020, the analysis of the Group's aggregate future minimum lease rental payables under nan-
cancellable shart-term leases is as follows:
Pl 2015
HES' HESM
Within ore yest - £

Governance, Diuclorurss and Financlal Statemsnts 07
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

n

Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances

Information required 1o be disclosed conceming related party transactions is set out in this note unless dsclosed
elsowhare in thete comolioated financlal statements

(a) Nature of Relationship With Connected/Related Parties

The table sat forth below summanses the names of the connected/related parties, as defined in the REIT Codes
HKAS 24 (Rovised) “Related Party Disciosunes”, and the nature of thalr relathanship with the Group as at 31 March

2020
HEBC institutional Trust Services (Ada) Limited (the Trusles? * The Trustes of Link
Thee Harghong and Shanghs Bahiing Corponation Limed and Associntes * of the Trustes

5 subsdiaries (eaziuding the Tstes ana ks propristany
submidiaries) the HIBC Group’] *

Colbers intermational {Hong Kong) Limited {Hote 1) The Principad Valuer of Link

Fanes Lang Lasalie Lmited (tne ‘Former Princlpal Valser) Thee Bgemner Proncipsl Waluer of Link
[Mate [i)

banis Lang LaSalle Management Serviocs Limened (Mate (i Assoclate ' of the Former Princioal Valuer

Baijg Jomes Leng Letale Property Management Senices Axsociste " of the Farmer Princioal Viahoet
Company Limited Shenshaen Branch (Mate §i))

Aaidas Limited * Associte” of dinectorn

fupdas Beipng Lmited * &szociate” of director

Dt Sing Bank, Limited Asaciste’ of divector

The Chambser of Hong Kong Listed Companies Auociate® of dinector

* These connected pafted aie 880 consdeted i nelated partled of the Groum
“Associate” nas the meaning ascrbed (o & under the RETT Code

Fobe.
(- e intemational (Haong Kongh Lirsted i the Principal Msfuer of Link who is responsible for the property valustion of L s at 3 March
2020 Collers Inberrational (Hong Kong) Limded was apponted &4 the Principal Valuer of Link with efiect from 17 MowemBer 200

(W] doneen Linvg LaSdhe LimEed wit The Tonmer vaiuer of Link whi 'was respontiie fof the propety salustion of Link up 1l 30 September 2009
ot Lang Lakalle Limted tetivad &1 the Principal Valuer of Link in acomedancs with the REIT Code an 17 Nosemben 2006 a0 Unce then,
Janed Lsng LaSalle Limted and its msocinled omased 10 be corvched parties of Link

Lirk Hoal Exfate inyestment Tnnt Annual Report 20992020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
{Continued)

(b) Transactions With Connected/Related Parties

The following transactions recognised under HEFRSS wene carmied out with connected/related parties:

Trsces's fee pakd and payable 1o the Trustes Pote (5]}

Trarsactions with the HIDC Greus [Mote (i)
Agency fee on dispeasi: af irvestment propertics

Inferest expense and viria financing charges to the HSBC Group on
inZerest bearing lisbillies, cross curfency e contracts and intenest
rate S centiacts

FeiLal Income: From the HSBL Group on leasing of nitall units
Ineerest incone froen the HSBC Group on bk depoity

Trarvactions with the Principal WValoer (Motes (i) and (W)
Valuation fes
Corultancy wervioes fees
Amency fee

Changes for phovision of Nitter services paed snd payaiia 1o
Jomes Lang LaSalle Mansgement Senices Limited {Nate [}

Peogrerty management fee paid and payable to Beifrg Jones Ling LaSae
Progierty Managemaent Serices Company Limited Shenrhen Branch
(et (i)

Archiecioralreneyation conastancy servces Tees pakd and payabie 1o
hedas Limited (Notes (if) ana (V)

Architeciualrenovation conutancy sereces Teet pald and payable to
Aidas Bejing Limsted (Nobes (i) and (vi)

Rental ineame tnom Dol Sag Dunk Lmted of 2a6ng of retal it
(otes il and ()

Irgerest sxpenies and vatiows finencing chaiges to Dob Sing Bank, Limed
{otes (il and {w))

a0 201
CHMEM HEST
an 20}

= {55)
(&1 065}
EU EL]
0 0
) {5
[£]] ]
{2 ]

() ne
i) i
m {5

{5) -
L] a

i =

Mrbe

L]

P 0N ol i L gt lary COUMNs of Dusiniia.

AL Eoe e CTaa rplabed Dy UramECond wile Cariid out in sceondands 4o thi 10met o 17 relanant sy aermenil QoVeming s

§  Ther Trusles s enirthed b0 necerse am annuial tnushess Bee (CalcUlated &nd peld montiey) at rated mmQeng Eom 00CSS per annurm to 003% per
v of 1he latest propecty value 35 debermined in the latest errasl waiaition repo of an independen] proparty vakssr recornmended by
e Minages 3o apponted by the Trustes: fiot and on behall of Link from tme 13 time, iubgect to & minimum of HECS 150,000 pee man®, With
ettt fraen 1| Aped 2000, the thuiles fee changed 4t rabes fanging D000 pei anmrn 1o BITE bid srruimn

i} Thay braevsactions wirne antesed info at anms length cn nomal commaencial temr

e} Colliers ntirrmiatronal jHong Kong Limibed was sppoined as (be Principal Yaluer al Link with effect from 17 hovermber 2013, The Formet
Brincipal Vs, konet Lisng LiSadle Limitid, wrdl tespornitle Lor the progssty viuation of Link up 13 the period ended 30 Septenban 2093
\I’lludluuIutl'u'mtmmdlm!1M-miﬁﬂnfWnlhmmﬁlnﬂhmpﬂ-nmdﬂrmmmmm Kongp
Lirmited i Searuet Lien) | Sl | it isc] imapebe ity wviile watkuation fes of MCSS milion wort paid 10 koo Lang LiSalie [imited fof the year
ended T March 3009 Conaultancy sendced fee of MO0 milicn and sgency fee of HES milkon wiee paic snd paysbie Lo Jones Lang Lislie
Lirnited Aof the vea' endid 11 March 300 while consulanty sennded eed off HKS2 mallon bhd dgency fee of HICL milllor wene pakd Eo Jonid

Lang LaSalle Limfed for the yesr ended 11 March 308

i) Andas Limited and Apdas Beding LImTed ane 2530013005 of B n Kefth GRIFFITHS.
vy Dty Sieng Bk, Lirmitand i n s ate of My Blasr Crstbon PICKERILL
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

31 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
{Continued)

(c) Balances With Related Parties
Balances with related partics are 46t out below;

om 2019

HHS™ HESM

Trusnesy fed payabie foine Trustes (£ @

Inbeest Dearing labEces with the HIBC Group [3.820] (L840

Agency hes payable to the HLSBC Geoud - i55)

Met inbenest payabéie to the HEBC Geroun 5] [.1]

Lecyunty deposi s from the HEBE Group {a) £}
Cro%t EulfBncy Twap contiacte snd inlanetl rale Dwan contrseil Wik

the HEEC Growip {1 grai]

DeEgosits paced with the HSEC Group 569 2002

(d) HKey Management Compensation
As at 31 March 2020, key management composed of two Executive Directors, 10 Mon-Executive Directors and 10
senior management statl. Further details of the remuneration ol the Directors on a named basis are discioged in
highlighted sections of the Corporate Govemnance Repart with a heading of "Audited” on pages 26 to 28, These
sections famm the “Audited” part of Corporate Governance Repart and are part of the financial statements.

The aggregate amounts of emaluments of the key managemen: stalf of the Group are as follows:

0 il

HEE™ HESM

Feed ] fl
Basic m@larnes, alowances and other beneits 128 M3
Long-enm incendive schesmes awands 13 22
™ m

M0 Lk Hesl Extate nyestment Tret Anevual Repost 2062030
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11 Connected Party Transactions and Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances
{Continued)
(d) Key Management Compensation (Continued)
The armounts refiected in the emolurment bands below are those In the financial statements under HKFRSS in the
yiar 2018/2020, and include shoart term remuneratson paid in cash and portion of the long-term incentive schemes
recogresed (although 3 portion of which has not been vested) in the year 2000/2020 attributable to the Executive
Directors and senlor management

Emaiumes hunds fate (] individualy Feiidua.

HCEL 0000051 000000 1
LM O W 5.0 008 k]
HCS5.000 001k 7,000,000 1
HEET, 000 00%4052.000.000 H
HOC B S0 E- e 000 D0 i
HC3,000.008 HK 5500000 1
HESTLOOC, Xm0 1, 500,060 1

HACETLE00, D0%HKS 12, 000,000 1
HCSTL 500,007 HEF 1,000 000 = 2
HICST, 500,008 Hars 1,000,000 ™ -
S 00K -+ 12, KD = Lol
HCSTAS00.000- HILS T4 000,000 ™ =
HICETLE 500, 30 HCSTEL 000,000 - b

Tl nusrkser of Exeduthve Ditecton. dnd venion managemend (Note (i) L n

LIl S

M The calculaton of the 1olal remunedation ol D smoument bandi B based an (ke value af the lomg:lerm imoentive @wardh recognig
dhuifing 18 ypar and Tha Wt 1o renmuSeration psd Snd rdogniusd dureg Th year

(¥ Emoiumants pad and recognesed for the Executive Dvpcton. Mr Geooge Kasok Lung HOMGCHIT™ and My Kok Siong NG™ (200 Mr Goorge
Kok Lung HOMGCHOY™ and M Andy CHELING Loo Ming™). Mr Kok Siong WG 'was appointed as a0 Ensoutive Direchor with effect from 1
February 2030 Out of the total remunaration awarded, ondy 3 morrhs remumeration wae attribufable o sarvices provided as an Executive
Dinector, Detals ane e olt in the Femuneration Awarded to Exscutive Dinecton” section on pagis 18 to 17 The nespactive smaliments.
muchude the portion of tha long-tem incentive schames ecognised for tha year, which the details ane et out n the Lorg-berm et
Schames” section on pages 71 .and P4 The temaiming i the paid short-tefm remuneration

{id) Puchdesd one (POHE one retied Seniorn manosiment saf

The frve highest paid individuals for the year include twe (2019; two) ainectons whode emoluments reflected in the
above emalument Bands The emoluments paid and recognised 1o the remaining three (2010: threa) individuals

during the year are as follows:
ax0 2018
HEE HICSM
Bac satanes, othar Alowances and bensdins in king ] w
Distrotiariary bonus n 1
L1 inoenthes sChamses awands ] n
iz 1)

Gowernamnce, Miclorurss and Financlal Statemsnts 141
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Motes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements

32 Future Minimum Rental Receivables

A5 at 31 March 2020, the analysis of the Group's sggregate future minimum rental ncome recehvables under non-
cancellable operating leases s as follows:

HKE™ HESM
WIthin cne year 6,584 6,159
Bartwseen one and five yoars 10,061 830
Besgand live years 11058 146
.50 18,07
Most of the operating leases are on fixed terms and for tenms of three years (2019: three years).
Principal Subsidiaries
Link heid the fofiowing principal subsidianes as at 31 March 2020
Farticatary of
st thare
Piacs of sstablishmant and  caphalf
kind ol legal sty registeed N
[Hroctly tict
The Link Haidings, Lisited Cayrran slands, mited Habily Investmert Aolding uss i
cammpanyy Hong £oang
Linke Asset Management Limvted Hang Keng lmited kabdity st maragement S 21000200 L
camgany Horg Kong
inctreclly bl
Afiord Limited Hong King. limited ltabdity investmert hoiding HESEE 539380 0
camganmyy Hong Kong
Atlantic Best Limited e Kiang, mited labdity Investmert Rolding [E A7 fer 8
camgpany/ Hang Fang
AaRR TR ERELE Preopie's beoubic of Ching, Frogeeety bokding ind LS5, 500,500 W
Blatrgt PEGOETTY “H‘w liiled laabulity Chfpdiy L]
[Sherumen) Cormpary Limiied) Peopie's Repetinc af China
CECARRRR SRR Prapie’s Reocbi of Ching, Pregueely Poiding and US516L.500,000 s
[Bagreg Yateng Real Ditate limsted Batwlity company Inating
Maragement Company Lmited) Fropis’s Regutéic af Chirg
Century Land nvestment Limed Hanhg Kond. lmited bty Progeerty Sresiopment HES L
company/ Hang Kang
Chiru E8s1 irvestment Limited Hang Kong. limited lisbilty Investmert Aolding HES5,500 s
cafpany Hag Kong
EAREN (T3 WELE Prape's beoubic of Ching, Fregearty boiding ind BUARL 24T 100418 0
(ECM Property Hoiding (Tarjin) Co_Lad)  Fimibed bability company’ Iesing
Feopie's Republic af Chisa
First Verture RE Limited Hong Kong. bmited Gabdity Investmert relding HIESY 0L
comguy/ Horg Rang
Gt Land [H) Limited Hong Kong. lmited abilty Fropenty Bokding and HKSLO00.000 i
cormpany Horg Komg leing

Lirk Hoal Exfate inyestment Tnnt Annual Report 20992020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Fartlculars of
Issmed share
Place of extablishmaent and caphtall
kind of begal entity, migirtarsd
hamst place of sperations Principad aczivities  cphal Brriwewit Padd
Indirectly heid [Contnued]
WHERAR =R N Pecoie’ Repulria of Cring, Propemy haldng and A MDA OO0 LRV EY
[raangehon Qi Qing Hua Real bmited bty comparsy’ ey
Estabe Company Limited) Pempapie’s, Begubic of Tnng
Lk 3000 €2 Limited Sritich Virgin hlandt Finaacing LEsy 0o
kmited fabdity company
Hang Kong
Lk et K Ll o Wing, e fiabdity Prapeity halSing and L4 0%
coempany Hong Kong leasrg
Limik Propaetiet Limited Cayman Iz, hemibed iabity Propaimy holsing and 51 L
cormpany Hong Korg Basing
Lirik Propesty Management Seivices Horg Kang, limised liabiity Propeity management HEG1 000,000 Lz
Limited Cormpany Hong Kong
O W R N PR E Peoole’s Fepubibc of Ching, CorpoiEte management RAAES 00,000 0%
[Link Resl Cotate Conniltancy Fmited Asbiity companyy’ e
[ranghal) Cn, |imitad) Prscapiie's Regijbiic of (rina
Preston Sy (HE) Limised Hong Kang, liméed liabiity Ireestment halcing S 00
company Hong Kong
LSRNSREnEL S Prooe’ Bepuble of Ching, Property hakdng and RN 20, Yo 000 L
[Sanghal Xing Dang Propedtied Co, L1} Fmited fabdity companyy’ lenirg
Presaprle's Biiiusbie? & e
T Line. Finance (Cagyrman] 2006 Limited Sayman hland, Amited Rabdiny IR LT ] 0%
CEmpan Hong Kong
Trie Link Finance (Cayman) JO0S Lmited Cayman iands, meted labity Fnancing sy v
tompany; Hong Korg
Thie Link Finaroe Limited Haoryg Ko, fimited fisbiity Firaecing (5] 0o
company Hong forg

The Manager considers the non-controlling interest in respect of Century Land Investment Limited is not material 1o the

Group

The Manager s of the opamion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidianes will be of excessve length and
thetefare the above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which principally affect the results or assets and

liaoilities of the Group.

Event After the Reporting Date
On 7 Apnl 2020, Link, through a wholly-owned subsidiary, completed the acquisition of an office property in Australia at
an aggregate consideration of approximately Australian Dallars 683 millon {equivalent to approximately HES3.649
millicn). The acquired property, known as “i00 Market Street’, compeizes a 10-storey commercial office tower located at
100 Market Street, which is situated within a mixed-use davelopment in the central business district of Sydney, Australia

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements
The censolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Manager and the

Trustee on 1 June 2020,

Governance, Diiclorurss and Financlal Statemsnts 943
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2020 31
I 207,619 2,838,151
. 47,908 654,902
TR T 159,711 2,183,249
Iv. 2,057,898, 386
V. TN 77.61 1,061

2020 31 406 5,550
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

183 17 1712-1716

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’ s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

CCASS
HKSCC CCASS

0.0027
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1
1
€))

22,000,000 301

22,000,000

2017 31 5,000,001

2018 28 12,000,000

2019 22,000,000

10,000,000
2019 12,000,000 22,000,000
@
— 1 —2
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@
38 59 131
€)
23 103
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
193
Independent Auditor’ s Report
®

2020
13.67
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@
2020 31
31
2020 2019
697,278,232  9,531,793,431 881,356,826  12,048,147,811
(452,556,620)  (6,186,448,995)  (580,352,860) (7,933,423,596)
6,269,540 85,704,612 3,482,416 47,604,627
(244,774,611)  (3,346,068,932)  (288,924,300) (3,949,595,181)
6,216,541 84,980,115 15,562,082 212,733,661
52,999 724,496 (12,079,666)  (165,129,034)
6,269,540 85,704,612 3,482,416 47,604,627
17 30
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2020 31
31
2020 2019
6,269,540 85,704,612 3,482,416 47,604,627
6,269,540 85,704,612 3,482,416 47,604,627
17 30
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2020 31
31
2020 2019
10 6,602,500 90,256,175
5,021,104 68,638,492 4,794,594 65,542,100
9,342,516 127,712,194
11 34,518,241 471,864,354 237,596,887  3,247,949,445
11 1,386,882 18,958,677 2,614,268 35,737,044
12 381,733,462 5,218,296,426 305,370,777 4,174,418,522
438,604,705 5,995,726,317 550,376,526 7,523,647,110
13 136,518,194 1,866,203,712 200,272,418 2,737,723,954
14 10,000,000 136,700,000 10,000,000 136,700,000
9,427,330 128,871,601
247,954,220 3,389,534,187 303,621,418 4,150,504,784
11 2,162,541 29,561,935 1,355,150 18,524,901
396,634,955 5,421,999,835 524,676,316 7,172,325,240
41,969,750 573,726,483 25,700,210 351,321,871
15 22,000,000 300,740,000 12,000,000 164,040,000
19,969,750 272,986,483 13,700,210 187,281,871
41,969,750 573,726,483 25,700,210 351,321,871
17 30
12 30 2020
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2020 31
2019 12,000,000 164,040,000 13,700,210 187,281,871 25,700,210 351,321,871
6,269,540 85,704,612 6,269,540 85,704,612
10,000,000 136,700,000 10,000,000 136,700,000
2020 31 22,000,000 300,740,000 19,969,750 272,986,483 41,969,750 573,726,483
2018 12,000,000 164,040,000 10,217,794 139,677,244 22,217,794 303,717,244
3,482,416 47,604,627 3,482,416 47,604,627
2019 31 12,000,000 164,040,000 13,700,210 187,281,871 25,700,210 351,321,871
17 30
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2020 31
31
2020 2019
16 66,929,700 914,928,999 79,349,646  1,084,709,661
6,035,485 82,505,080 3,694,704 50,506,604
165,000,000  2,255,550,000
(6,602,500)  (90,256,175)
(567,015) (7,751,095) 168,694,704  2,306,056,604
10,000,000 136,700,000
10,000,000 136,700,000
76,362,685  1,043,877,904 248,044,350  3,390,766,265
305,370,777  4,174,418,522 57,326,427 783,652,257
31 12 381,733,462  5,218,296,426 305,370,777  4,174,418,522
17 30
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©
2020 31

HKAS 19

HKAS 28

HKFRS
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HKFRS 2015 -2017
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2020

®

()

305,370,777

)

2020 31

®)

31

2020

3,600,000

BBB+

31
35,905,123

12

381,733,462

100

2019
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2019 100
2019 2,900,000
2019 2020 31
2020 31
240,211,155
381,733,462 2019
2019 305,370,777
2020 2019
10,000,000 10,000,000
247,954,220 303,621,418
2,162,541 1,355,150
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HKFRS
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2020 2019
697,278,232 881,356,826
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2007 LTI

2019 31
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2020 2019
639,907,107 664,675,941
14,134,391 13,912,750
13 25,489,997 173,688,163
679,531,495 852,276,854

2020 2019

8,863,100 8,496,552

13,621,073 15,356,321

30,049 36,000

55,294,310 54,664,000

12,333,917 85,642,583

90,142,449 164,195,456
2007 LTI

O)
2017 LTI
16.5
2020 2019

6,216,541 15,562,082

1,025,729 2,567,744

8,745 10,463,544

(1,034,474) (574,599)

(377,023)

(52,999)
(52,999) 12,079,666
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2020 2019
679,531,495 852,276,854
1,820,754 1,755,790
291,000 22,200
2,111,754 1,777,990
10
2020 2019
6,602,500
2020 31
1,000,000 100
5,000,000 100
11
12
2020 2019
21,733,462 15,370,777
360,000,000 290,000,000
381,733,462 305,370,777
13
2020 2019
81,045,194 102,367,209
55,473,000 97,905,209
136,518,194 200,272,418
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2007 LTI
2007 LTI
2007 23 10 2017 22
2007 LTI
2007 LTI

2007 LTI
2007 LTI
2007 LTI

TUR NP1

2007 LTI 477,632
2019 1,407,782

2017 LTI
2017 10 2017 LTI
2017 LTI

2017 LTI

2017 LTI
2017 LTI

TUR NPI

2017 LTI 366,239
2019 8,000
2007 LTI 2017 LTI
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2019 2020
) 31
'®)
2007 LTI
2016 11 14
2016 11 14 o % 399,236 (341,937) (57,299)
2007 LTI 399,236 (341,937) (57,299)
2017 LTI
2017 14
2017 14 o % 380,679 (264,560) (7,000) (109,119)
2017 14
h20 % 380,365 (75,054) 305,311 661,131
2018 2018 566,500 (121,312) 445,188 989,845
2020 30 . , : ;
2018
Yot % 566,500 (123,379) 443,121 984,988
2019 2019 597,249 (100,566) 496,683 1,123,753
2021 30 . , ; 123,
2019 597,248 (100,566) 496,682 1,123,752
2022 30 . . . 123,
2017 LTI 1,894,044 1,194,497  (264,560) (7,000) (629,996) 2,186,985 4,883,469
2,293,280 1,194,497  (606,497) (7,000) (687,295) 2,186,985 4,883,469
100 (237,374 )
JT— 2,293,280 1,194,497  (843,871) (7,000) (687,295) 2,186,985 4,883,469
2018 2019 2,051,130 1,159,000 (1,415,782) (4,500) (106,549) 2,293,280 4,964,094
) 54 200
)
() 100
14
2020 2019
10,000,000 10,000,000
2009 27 10
2021 26 2020 31
10 2019 10

343/420



15

2019

2019

2020 31

2018 2019 31

2019 10,000,000
16
17
18
19
2020
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12,000,000 12,000,000
10,000,000 10,000,000
22,000,000 22,000,000
12,000,000 12,000,000

10,000,000
2020 2019
6,216,541 15,562,082
(6,269,540) (3,482,416)
7,545 (249,819)

203,078,646 (8,066, 656)
1,227,386 6,218

(55,667,198) 14,102,397

807,391 714,758

(63,754,224) 63,415,418

(18,716,847) (2.652,336)
66,929,700 79,349,646
2020 2019
9,265,620 10,263,230

688,012,612 871,093,596




LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

SREEETEARLE

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Management fee income
Direct costs

Interest income
Administrative expenses
Profit before taxation
Taxation credit/{charge)
Profit for the year
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Note 2020 2019
HES HK$
[ bo7,278,232 881 956,806

(452,556,620) (580,352 8B60)
6,260,540 3,482,416

(244.774,61) (288,524 300)

6,210,541 15,562 082
& 52,000 (12, 079,666)
9 6,260,540 3,482,416

The notes on pages 17 bo 30 form part of these financial statements,

=12~
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R A TR

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

2020 2019
HE3 HES
Profit for the year 6,269,540 3,482,416
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 6,269,540 3,482,416

The notes on pages 157 to0 30 form part of these financial statements.

-13-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

EREEEEARLT
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2020
Note 2020 2019
HKS HES
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Assets
Investments in subsidiarics 10 6,602,500 -
Receivables, deposits and prepayments 5,021,104 4,794,504
Taxation recoverable 9,342,516 -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 11 34,518,241 237,506,887
Amount due from Link Real Estate Investment Trust 11 1,386,882 2,014,268
Cash and cash eguivalents 12 381, 733402 205,370,777
Total asscts 438,604,705 550,370,526
Liabilities
Long-term incentive schemes provision 13 136,518,104 200,272,418
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary 14 10,000,000 10,000,000
Provision for taxation = 9427,330
Trade and other payables 247,954,220 503,621,418
Amounts due 1o fellow subsidiaries 11 2,162,541 1,355,150
Total liabilities 396,634,955 524,676,316
Net assets 41,060,750 25,700,210
EQUITY
Share capital 15 22 600,000 12,000,000
Retained camnings 19,969,750 13,700,210
Member's funds 41,560,750 25,700,210

The notes on pages 17 1o 30 form part of these financial statements,

The financial statements on pages 12 to 30 were approved by the board of directors of the Company on
1June 2020 and were on its behalf by:

ey \.B k¥

George Kyfok OY NG KokSiong
Director

-14 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HiEREEEARLT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

At 1 April 2019
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transaction with equity holder
[ssue of shares

At 31 March 2020

Ar 1 April 2008
Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 March 2010
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Share Retained
capital eArmings Total
HES HES HE$
12,000,000 13,700,210 25.200,210
- 6,209,540 6,260,540
10,000,000 - 10,000,000
22,000,000 10,060,750 41,964,750
12,000,000 10,217,794 22,217,794
- 3,482,416 2,482,416
12,000,000 13,700,210 25,700,210

——

The notes on pages 17 to 30 form part of these financial statements.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
aEEEEEERLY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH zo20

Note 2020 2019
HES HE$
Operating activities
Met cash gencrated from operating activities 16 66,920,700 79,349,646
Investing activities
Interest income received 6,035,485 3,694,704
Decrease in short-term bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months - 165,000,000
Tnvestment in subsidiaries (6,602,500} -
Wet cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (567,015) 168,654,704
Financing activity
Proceeds from issuance of shares 10,000,000 -
Wet eash generated from financing activity 10,000,000
Wet change in cash and cash equivalents 76,362,685 248,044,350
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 305,370,777 57.326,427
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 12 281,733,462 905,370,777

The notes on pages 17 to 30 form part of these financial statements.

-16 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
HREETEaRAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate information

Link Asset Management Limited (the “Company™) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its prineipal activity iz assel management. The address of #ts registered office is
ag/F,, Tower 1, The Cuayside, 77 Hoi Bun REoad, Kvwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong,

The Company is licensed to carry cut Type 9 "Assct Management™ regulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company acts as the management company of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (*Link™).
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial stotements have been prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Finaneial
Reporting tandards ("HEFRSs™) and the Hong Eong Companies Ordinance, HEFRSs is a collective
term which includes all applicable Hong Eong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standiards ("HEASs™) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Publie Accountanis.

Apcounting convention and functional currency

During the year, the Company has changed the presentation of the staternent of financial pogition
by adopting the liguidity basis as it is considered to be more relevant and meaningiul based on the
timing of their realisation or settlement of assets and liabilities. The change in the presentation has
been applied retrospectively and comparative figures have been reclassified accordingly,

The financial staterents have been prepared under the historical cost convention,

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars, the functional currency of the
Company.

Adoption of new and revised aceounting policies

For the vear ended 31 March 2020, the Company has adopted the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations which became effective or available for early adoption.

HEAS 19 Amendments Flan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
HEAS 28 Amendments Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
HEFRS 3 Amendments Definition of a Business
HEKFRES g Amendments Prepavment Features with Negative Compensation
HEFRS 14 Leasges
HE[IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over [ncome Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements to HEFRSs
2015-2007 Cyele

The adoption of these new standards, amendments and interpretations has not had any significant
effect on the results reported and financial position of the Company.

-17-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
AR ETEAmL T

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Adoption of new and revised accounting policies (Continued)

The following new standards and amendments, which have been published but are not yet effective,
have not been early adopted in the financial statements, These are effective for the Company's
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020,

HEAS 1 and HEAS 8 Amendments Definition of Material™®)

HEAS 39, HEFRS 7 and HEFRS g Intercst Rate Benchmark Reformf?
Amendments
HEFRS 10 and HEAS 28 Amendments  Sale or Contribution of Assets betwesn an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venturel®)
HKFRS 17 Insuranse Contracts(®)

Coneeptual Framework for Financial Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reportingtt)
Beporting 2018

) gffective for pcoounting periods beginning on or after 1 Janoary 2020
5 effoctive for acoounting peciods beginning on or after § Janoary 2021
3 no mandatory effective date is determined yvet but carly application is permitted

The Company is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these new standards and
amendments upon initizl application.

Summary of significant aceonnting policies

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set
ottt below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,

Investments in subsidiaries

Subsidinries are entities, inchuding structured entities, over which the Company has control. The
Company controls an entity when the Company is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

In the Company's statement of finaneial position, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The resulls of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and recelvable,

Mo consolidated financial statements are prepared as exempted under HEFRS 10 “Consolidated
Finaneial Statements”. The Company's ultimate holding entity s Link and the consolidated
financial statements of Link have been prepared in accordance with HEKFRSs and are puhblichy
available.

Receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, less
provision for impairment. The Company holds the receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, The Company applies the HEFRS g in assessing expected credit losses,
Receivables are considered to be low risk, and therefore the impairment provision is determined as
12 months expected credit losses.
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R R R E]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts,

Trade and other payables
(i) Trade payahles

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(i)  Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructbve obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where a provision is expected
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate aszet but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market azsessments of the
time value of money snd the msks specifie to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carryving amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds tts recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Mon-financial assets

ather than goodwill that suffer impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date,

Revenue recognition

Management fee income is recognised when sarvices are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time propertion basis uging the effective interest method.
Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised on an acerual basis,

Emplovec benefits

Emgployees benefits such as wages, salaries and bonuses are recognised as an expense when the
employee has rendered the serviee,

Emplayee entitlements to annual Jeave are recognised when they acerue to employees. A provision
is made for the estimated Hability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Employes entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave. The employer's contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund for
emplovess are expensed as incurred.

-19-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
I A R B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Employees' long-term incentive schemes

Incentives in the form of a long-term incentive schemes are provided to eligible emplovess
(including directors).

Employee services rendered in exchange for the grant of the long-term incentive schemes awards
are recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in the liability ineurred. This expense
is charged to the income statement over the vesting periods. Until the liability is settled, the value
of the liability is re-measured at each reporting date and at the date of settlement, with any changes
inn value recognised in the income statement for the year, At each reporting date, estimates of the
number of long-term incentive schemes awards that are expected to vest will be revised and the
impact of the revision is recognised in the income statement. The carrying value of the long-term
incentive schemes awards is reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external
yvaluers at least annually. If the awards do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts charged to the
income staternent will be written back,

Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management is carried out by the Company. The Company's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.,

(i) Market risk
(A)  Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will impact the
earnings of the Company. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk since the
Company's deposits at banks bear variable interest rates.
As at 21 March 2020, if interest rates on deposits at banks had been 100 basis
points {201g: 100 hasis paints) higher/lower with all other variables held constant,
prefit for the year would hawe been approximately HE$3,600,000 (29:

HE§2, 900,000 ) higher/lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income
from deposits at banks.

(B) Currcney risk

Currency risk arises on account of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
a currency that is not the functional currency. As at 31 March 2019 and 2020, there
are no significant monetary balances that are held in a non-functional corrency.

-0 -

353/420



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R AT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
4 Financial risk management {Continued)
{a)  Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is managed by the ultimate holding entity on a group basis. Credit risk arizes
from the potential failure of the Company’s counterparties to meet their obligations under
financial contracts. The Company is exposed to credit risk on its receivables due from group
companics;Link as well a5 cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits.

The Company manages its deposits with banks by limiting the level of deposits to be placed
with any counterparties, Deposits placed with any individual counterparty cannot exceed a
pre-defined limit assigned to the individual counterparty. As at 31 March 2020, all deposits
were placed with banks with external credit ratings of no less than "BBE+".

The maximum exposure Lo credit risk is represented by the earrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financiel position after dedusting any impairment
allowance. As at 31 March 2020, the Company's expasure 10 credit risk arising from
gmounts due from group companies/Link amounted to HE$35905123 (20090
HK$240,211,155). The Company's exposure to credit tisk arising from eash and cash
equivalents and short-term bank deposits amounted to HE$3Bi73g4b2 (2009
HK#£305.470,777) and is set out in Note 12,

(iii)  Liquidity risk
Prodent liguidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from committed credit facilities and operating cash flow.

As at 31 March 2020, the Company bas cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank
deposits of HE$381,733,462 (2019: HE$305.370,777). Management considers that the
Company does not have significant liguidity risk.

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
dates, The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,

2020 2019
HES HES
Less than i year
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow
subsidiany 10,000,000 10,000,000
Trade and other pavables 247,954,220 303,621,418
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 2,162,541 1,355,150

=31=
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FREEEEARLT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEDR)
4 Financial risk management (Continued)
{b) Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern whilst seeking to maximise benefits to member.

The Company considers the equily of the Company (as shown in the statement of financial pasition)
as its capital.

As the Company is a Bzensed corporation for Type @ “Asset Management” regulated activity under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), it has to comply with
the following requirements regarding its capital as stipulated in the Securitics and Futures
{Financial Resources) Rules:

()] a minimum level of paid up share capital has to be met; and
(i) 2 minimum level of liquid capital has to be met.

The Company reviews the capital strocture periodically and manages its overall capital structure

through the payment of dividends and issnance of new shares, Its share capital and liquid capital
levels are closely monitored to ensure strict compliance with the statutory minimum requirements.

{c) Fair value estimation
(i) Fair value hierarchy

HEFES 13 requires disclosure of fair value measurement by three levels of fair value
measurement hierarchy:

s Level 11 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or lHabilities.

» Levelz: Inputsother than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or lishility, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices).

« Levelq: Inputs for the azset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

There were no transfers between these three levels during the vear (zoug: Nil).

The Company's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as
of the date of the event or change in cireumstances that cansed the transfer.

(ii)  Fair value disclosure
The carrying values less impairment provision of reccivables and the carrying values of

bank deposits and trade and other payables are a reasonable approximation of their fair
walues due to their short-term maturities.

-3 -
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FERNETELNLAY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates, It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and ave based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the refated actoal results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next vear are discussed below.

Long-term incentive schemes valuation

The value of awards granted is estimated based on valuation techniques and assumptions on unit
prices, outstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out rates and ether market conditions,
which management considers as representing the best estimate of the value of the liability for such
awards at the reporting date. The carrying value of the long-term incentive schemes awards is
reviewed every six months and is independently valued by external valuers at least annually.

Maonagement fee income
2020 2016
HES HES
Management fee income 697,278,232 B81,a56,826
Stalf costs (including directors’ emoluments)
2020 2019
HES HE$
Wagpes and salaries 639,007,107 664,675,941
Contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme 14,134,301 13,912,750
Long-term incentive sehemes awards (Note 13) 25,480,007 173,688,163
Staff costs (Note o) 670,531,455 852,276,854

-33-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FEREETEAIRLT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

Directors emoluments

2020 2019

HES HES$
Fees 8,863,100 B,496,552
Base pay, allowance and other benefits 13,621,073 15,356,321
Contribution to pension scheme 30,049 36,000
Vardable remuneration related to performance 55,204,310 54,664,000
Long-term incentive schemnes awards (Note) 12,353,917 85,642,583

00,142,440 164,105,450

Mote: Values of the long-term incentive schemes awards are estimated based on valvation
technigues with assumptions on unit prices, outstanding length of the awards, distrifbution
pay-out rates and other market conditions. There i no commitment to pay out the
estimated values provided. The eventual amounts to be paid depend on the scale of
achievement against certain performance and service related vesting conditions. For the
portion of the awards which do not vest on the vesting dates, the amounts previously
charged to the income statement will be written back. Details on the long-term incentive
schemes are set out in Note 13,

For the vear ended 31 March 2020, cartain long-term incentive schemes awards have been
vested and units of Link (*Units") have been issued under the 2007 LTI Plan. The amounts
recognised as expenses represent the provision of the awards granted under both the 2007
LT1 Plan and the 2017 LTI Scheme recognised as set out in the accounting policy Note 3(1).
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
R A ]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Taxation (credit) fcharge

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as there is no estimated assessable profit for the
year, Hong Kong profits tax had been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profit for the vear ended 31 March 2010,

The differences between the Company's expected tax charge, nsing the Hong Kong profits tax rate,
and the Company's taxation for the year wene as follows:

2020 2019

HEK$ HE$
Prafit before taxation 6,216,541 15,562,082
Expected tax calenlated at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of
16.5% (2019; 16.5%) 1,025,720 2,567,744
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 8745 10,469,544
Tax effect of non-taxable income (1,034,474) (574.509)
Utilization of previowsly unrecognized tax loss - {377.023)
Adjustment to pricr year (52,000) -
Taxation (eredit)/charge (52,000) 12,070,666
Profit for the vear
Profit for the year is stated after charging:
2020 2019
HE% HES
Stafi costs (Note 7) 679,531,405 852,076,854
Auditor's remuneration
Andit and audit-related assurance services 1,820,754 1,755,790
Others 291,000 22,200
Total anditor’s remuneration 2,111,754 1,777,000
Investments in subsidiaries
2020 20149
HES HES
Investments, at cost
Unlisted shares 6,602,500 -

- 25-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

R T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments in subsidiaries (Conlinued)

The Company held the following subsidiaries as at 31 March 2020z

Name

Directly held:

Link Property
Managrment Services
Limited

R R R R
HEE

Place of

establishment

and kind of legal  Principal
entity activities
Hong Kong, Froperty
limited liability minagement
cOmpary

People's Republicof  Corporate
China, limited liakility Management
COMPATY services

Balances with group companies/Link
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Particulars of
issued share
capital/
registered Interest
capital held
HES1,000.000 W00k
RMBs 000,000 100%

The balances with group companies/Link are mainly management fee receivables. Amounts due
from/to group companies and amount due from Link were unsecured, interest free, repayable on
demand and denominated in Hong Kong Dallars,

Cash and eash equivalents and short-term hank deposits

Cash at bank

Short-term bank deposits with original maturity of less

than threa months

2020 2019
HE$ HES
21,733,462 15,370,777
350,000,000 250,000,000
381,733,462 405,370,777

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are expected to be reeevered within 1 year.

Long-term incentive schemes provision

2020 2019
HES$ HES

Long-term incentive schemes provision
- expected to be settled within 1 year 81,045,104 102,367,200
- expected to be settled after 1 year 55,473,000 97,005,200
136,518,194 200,272,418
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FEREEEARLY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Long-term incentive schemes provision (Continued)
2007 LTI Plan

A longterm incentive plan (the “2007 LTI Plan") was adopted on 23 July 2007 by Link's
Unitholders which was expired on 22 July 2017 after being in operation for 10 years. After its expiry,
no further awards shall be granted under the 2007 LTT Plan. Nenetheless, awards granted and
accepted prior to its expiry but yet to vest shall continua to have effect and be governed by the rules
of the 2007 LTI Plan.

Under the 2007 LTI Plan, three types of awards - restricted unit award, unit aption and conditional
cach award - might be granted o directors and key employees of the Company. No unit option has
ever been granted under ooy LTI Plan since fts adoption up till expiry.

For those restricted unit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of new
Units to he issned to the relevant grantees on vesting are linked to the performance of Link in terms
of total Unitholders return (“TUR"™) and net property income (“NPI7) or certain vesting conditions,
Conditional cash awards are granted in conjunction with restricted unit awards, bestowing upon
each grantee a conditional right to receive a cash payment representing an amount equivalent to
the aggregate of the distributions during the vesting period.

During the year, 477,632 Unite (2010: 1,407,782 Units) were issued for restricted nnit awards vested
in aceordance with the 2007 LTI Plan.

2017 LTI Scheme

On 10 July 2017, Link adopted a new long-term incentive scheme (the “2o17 LTI Scheme”), Under
the 2017 LTI Scheme, restricted unit awards and conditional cash awards may be granted to
directors of the Company and key emplayees of the group.

During the year, certain directors and key employees of the Company were granted restricted unit
awarde and conditional cash awards at nil monetary consideration under the 2017 LTI Scheme. The
restricted unit awards granted under the zo17 LTI Scheme, in general, will vest approximately two
to three years from the date of grant, Under the 2017 LTI Scheme, Units will be purchased in the
grantees' favour from open stock market to satlsfy restricted units awards vested. For those
restricted unit awards granted with performance goals, the eventual numbers of Units 1o be
purchased in each grantee's favour upon vesting arelinked to the performance of Link based on the
TUR, NPI or certain vesting conditions. Conditional cash awards were also granted in conjunction
with the restricted unit awards, bestowing upon each grantee a conditional right to receive a cash
payment representing an amount equivalent to the aggregate of the distributions during the vesting
period.

During the year, 366,239 units (2019: 8,000 units) purchased from the market for restricted units
awards which have vested in accordance with the 2017 LTI plan.

= Q=
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FREETEARLT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Long-term incentive schemes provision (Continued)

During the vesting period, a liability is recognised representing the estimated value of the awards
granted under both the zooy LTI Plan and the 2017 LTI Scheme and the portion of the vesting
period expired az at the reporting date. The value of the awards was estimated at the reporting date
by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an independent external valuer based on valuation
techniques and assumptions on unit prices, oulstanding length of the awards, distribution pay-out
rates and other market conditions, if sppropriate. The change in value of the outstanding awards
was charged to the income statement. In the event that the vesting conditions are not met, the
amount previously accrued will be written back accordingly.

Movements in the number of restricted unit award duering the year and the maximum nuember of
units to be issued upon vesting of restricted unit award are as follows:

Mamimsrn
Outgtandlng Gramied Yeated Camcelled Lasgeied Disnarading 1o b vesyed
anak during during durimg during ssai anvessng
rate of grasd Vestirg period v April zoag e remr e yeart Uk frear e year 30 March anas datei®
2505 LT Plas
14 Nowember 5006 14 Navemsber aoib
Loy 3o i B 199,378 - L3supa7l ‘ (ErEeS)
2657 LTT Flindukiotal J0ETE b a7l = 15T aeE)
207 LTT Scheany
Ty amy g July 2aiy
ta o Jeng 3aip ko by . [a64 560k (rmas} {sog,ug) = =
14 Juby suiy
b3 30 Jand 3536 LR - ¢ - [ T ] A3 g
4 daly w8 4 iy 3eei
2 30 M 3030 shbgem . - - [{ZTR.TE] FTLN LY S 045
4 2y senl
1830 Bacst 5021 6§80 . " * D 243143 iy, uhl
5 My maup 3 Ry 3map
8 39 Jone S0 L AT = - Dnbd) LUk LEELTEY
3 My peaw
1530 Juns poa3 = Eae248 . - T Sd) 4pb a8z ARG
) LT] Sehutmet wabbota] LEnsnaa LAgadrr  (rbgso) fnwon)  (6ES5HE) b 2R3
2, S ]
Sdrenial EadaaBe  Lasadaer dbokasn) frmon) by, 205 eidboBs  4BEx.be
Additieny] ity wried over s el
seaieted o gwad pranted. - ] [EgTarmayie= = =
aouaaomn inkl s,rigale  Lagddwr (R3S Iz mna) UhNz.3p2) =eBERs EELERTL
salzang iatl LASLIFD 1157200 (sl [agas] o, a4l L L] AGELDRY
Motes:

i Restricted unit award vesting percentages during the year ranged from 54% to 200%.

i If certain vesting conditions are met.

il Additional units over 100% of the restricted unit award granted were vested pursuant to
the relevant vesting conditions.

-aB8-
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
FRFE AR

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary

2020
HES

Approved subordinated loan from a fellow subsidiary 10,000,000

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019
HES

10,000,000

On 27 March 20049, an agreement in respect of a revolving subordinated loan facility of HES10
million from a fellow subsidiary was signed among the Company, the fellow subsidiary and The
Seeurities and Futures Commission and the availability of the facility had been extended to 26
March 2021, As at 31 March 2020, HE$10 million (2019: HES$ 10 million) was drawdown from the

facility.

The approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary is unsecared, interest free, repayable
on demand after two years from the drawdown date and denominated in Hong Kong, Dellars.

The earrying amount of the approved subordinated loan from the fellow subsidiary approximates

HES

12,000,000
10,000,000

22,000, D00

its fair value.
Share capital
Number of
shares
Issued and fully paid;
Al 1 April 2019 12,000,000
Issuance on g April 2019 10, 800,000
At 31 March 2020 22,000,000
At 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019 12,000,000

12,000,000

The Company issued 10,000,000 shares on 9 April 2010 to Link at a cash consideration of

HES10,000,000,
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LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

SRAEEEARAE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Net eash generated from operating activitics

Profit before taxation

Interest income

Deerease/(increase) in receivables, deposits and
prepayments

Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Decrease in amount due from Link

{Decrease) fincrease in trade and other payables

Tnerease in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

{ Decrease)/increase in long-term incentive schemes
provision

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash generated from eperating activities

Related party transactions
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2020 2019

HES HE%
6,216,541 15,502,082
(6,203,540} (3.482,410)
7.545 (245,819}
203,078,646 (8,066,656)
1,227,356 6,218
(55.667,198) 14,102,397
07,301 714,758
(63,754,224) 63415418
(18,716,847) (2,652,236}
66,929,700 79,349,646

During the year, the Company undertook the following transactions with related parties at mutually

agreed rates in the normal course of its business:

Management fee income (Note 8) from:
Link
Fellow subsidiaries

2020
HES

0,265,620
688,012,602

2019
HES

10,263,230
871,003,506

The management fee income is subject to the terms agreed by the parties involved, which is based

on reimbursement of the actual costs incurred by the Company.

Ultimate holding entity

The directors regard Link as being the ultimate holding entity.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company on 1. June 2020.

-30-
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(697.3)
HSBC ) (23.2)
(0.8)
Jones Lang LaSalle
Limited JLL (1.9)
«c )
(17.0)
(12.2)
« )
(8.5)
« )
(2.5)
Colliers
International (Hong Kong)
Limited (0.3)
)
HSBC 38.5
HSBC
)
20.4
(46.4)
(21.7)
Aedas (0.8)
Limited
Aedas (4.5)
Beijing Limited
(0.09)
The
Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Companies CHKLC 10)
Dah Sing 8.6
Bank )
)
(0.5)
1.2)
DBS 0.3
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
DBS HK
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150,000
0.008 0.03
2020
0.006
0.015 150,000
JLL 2019 11 17 2019 11 17 JLL
Beijing Jones Lang LaSalle Property Management Services Co., Ltd.
JLLPM JLLPM
2019 11 17 JLL
JLLPM
Jones Lang LaSalle
Management Services Limited JLLMSL
2019 11 17 JLL
JLLMSL
2019 11 17
2019 11 17
ATM
HSBC
10 2019 10 CHKLC 2019 10
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2020 31
3.2
Lok Fu Place 2021
1101 1102
2.7
Temple Mall 2021
South G3C
1.4
Tin 2021 11 30
Shing Shopping
Centre L120
3.4 1.0
Hang 121A 2021
Seng Bank, Limited
3.5 1.0
G202 2019 10 31
2022
10 31
HSBC 5.1
Lok Fu Place 2022 21
L201 L206
1.3
Temple Mall 2021 31
North N119
1.0
Hin 2020 12 12
Keng Shopping
Centre B
118 120
HSBC 4.2
2020 14
HSBC Bank Metropolitan
(China) Company Plaza 186
Limited HSBC
12
DBS HK
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440

65
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Link 2019 CB Limited
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J.P. Morgan Securities plc

HSBC 2005
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
9.6
HSBC
HSBC
2019

Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Assurance Engagements Other

Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information

Practice Note 740

Auditor’ s Letter on

Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
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HSBC

2020 50,000,000 684

77 29
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF LINK REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

(a collective investment scheme authorised under section 104 of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong))

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Link Real Estate Investment Trust (“Link”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 143, which comprise:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020;
the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;
the consolidated statement of distributions for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and net assets attributable to Unitholders
for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. The key audit matter identified in our audit relates to the valuation of investment
properties.

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matters
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Valuation of Investment Properties

Refer to notes 3(d), 5(a) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Group’s investment properties are
the key component of the net asset value
attributable to the unitholders and
underpins the Group’s result for the year.
The aggregated valuation of investment
properties in the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020
was HK$193,224 million and the fair
value loss of investment properties for
the year was HK$23,948 million, which
were significant components of the
consolidated financial statements. As at
31 March 2020, the Group’s investment
properties portfolio comprises of retalil
and office properties and car parks in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

The valuations were carried out by a third
party valuer (the “Valuer”). Under the
Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts
issued by the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures Commission (the “REIT Code”),
the Valuer shall retire after it has
conducted valuations for three
consecutive years, and may only be
reappointed after three years. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, a new Valuer
was appointed and was engaged by the
Trustee of Link.

The valuation of the Group’s completed
investment properties is inherently
subjective due to, among other factors,
the individual nature of each property, its
location and the expected future rentals
for that particular property.

In determining a property’s valuation as
at 31 March 2020, the Valuer took into
account property-specific information
such as tenancy agreements, rental
income and direct property expenses.
The income capitalisation approach was
primarily used, with cross reference to
direct comparison approach where

Experience of Valuer and relevance of
their work

We read the Valuer's report and
understand that the valuation was carried
out in accordance with the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ RICS
Valuation — Global Standards,
incorporating the International Valuation
Standards Council’s International
Valuation Standards, the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors’ HKIS Valuation
Standards 2017 and Chapter 6 of the
REIT Code. We assessed the Valuer's
qualifications and expertise and read their
terms of engagement with the Group to
determine whether there were any
matters that might have affected their
objectivity or may have imposed scope
limitations upon their work.

Valuation methodology used by the
Valuer

We involved our experts in property
valuation to discuss, assess and evaluate
the reasonableness of the valuation
methodologies and models used by the
Valuer by comparing against our
knowledge in valuation and the properties
industry.

Data used by the Valuer

We checked, on a sample basis, the data
used by the Valuer to perform the
valuation to appropriate supporting
documents, including:
key terms of lease agreements;
operating expenditure details; and
rental income schedules.

Assumptions and estimates used by the
Valuer
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applicable. The Valuer applied
assumptions for capitalisation rates and
net passing income, which were
influenced by the prevailing market yields
and comparable market transactions to
arrive at the final valuation.

In determining a property’s valuation as
at 31 March 2019, the income
capitalisation approach and discounted
cash flow analysis were primarily used for
completed properties, with cross
reference to direct comparison approach
where applicable. For properties under
development, the residual approach was
used, whereby the valuation was derived
from the gross development value of the
project upon completion (estimated using
a direct comparison approach) less
estimated outstanding development costs
and allowance for developer's risk and
profit.

The adoption of income capitalisation
approach only is in line with market
practice of property valuation and the
change is compliant with the Trust Deed.

The existence of significant estimation
warrants specific audit focus in this area.

There were a number of specific factors
affecting the valuations in the year which
we considered when making our
judgements including:

» the revitalisation of certain investment
properties through the Group’s Asset
Enhancement Program; and

» the performance of the Group’s
investment property portfolio.
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We attended meetings with the Valuer
where we discussed the valuation
approaches and the key assumptions
used. The assumptions used varied
across the portfolio depending on the
age, nature and location of each property
but they included estimated capitalisation
rate and net passing income. In each of
these areas, and on a sample basis, we
compared the estimates and assumptions
used by the Valuer against the published
industry benchmarks and comparable
market transactions, and our experience
in this sector. We performed further work
on the properties with assumptions
suggesting a possible outlier versus
market data for the relevant property
sector. Where assumptions were outside
the expected range or were otherwise
unusual, and/or valuations showed
unexpected movements, we held further
discussions with the Valuer to understand
the rationale and obtained additional
audit evidence to support the
explanations received.

We considered that the methodologies
used in preparing the valuation were
appropriate and key assumptions were
supportable in light of available and
comparable market evidence.

Other Information

Link Asset Management Limited (the “Manager” of Link) is responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

410/420



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Audit and Risk Management Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such
internal control as the Manager determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

In addition, the Manager is required to ensure that the consolidated financial statements have
been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed dated 6
September 2005, as amended by 13 Supplemental Deeds (the “Trust Deed”), and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the consolidated financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of
Appendix C of the REIT Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Managers use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit and Risk Management Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit and Risk Management Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit and Risk Management Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Matters Under the Relevant Provisions of the Trust Deed and the Relevant
Disclosure Provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix C of the REIT Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Wong
Hung Nam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 1 June 2020

413/420



12 30
2020 31
HKFRS
HKICPA

HKICPA

HKICPA
2020

HKSA

414/420

31

EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

820



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HKICPA HKFRS

405

HKSA
guarantee

415/420



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HKSA

2020

416/420



EDINETOOOO
00000000 OO00D0bDO000DO00nno(ELS194)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of Link Asset Management Limited (the “ Company”) standing alone set out on pages 12 to 30, which
comprise;

the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020;

the income statement for the year then ended;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give atrue and fair view of the financial position of the Company standing alone as at
31 March 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") and with reference to Practice Note
820 (Revised), “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements Standing Alone of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasisfor our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Directors Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements Standing Alone

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no redlistic aternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the

Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor’' s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Standing Alone

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as abody, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materia if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules
and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professiona judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
abasisfor our opinion. Therisk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control;

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosuresin the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor
sreport. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBER OF LINK ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements Standing Alone (Continued)

We communicate with directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficienciesininternal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities and
Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
(Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 1 June 2020
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